DNA 5 FHs

Family Strings, EKA 

F, 
William
Fh904

L, 
William
Fh894

M9, 
James
Fh258

M14, 
Joseph
Fh452

M15, 
William
Fh780 

N, 
James
Fh269

U1
John
Fh415
DNA 5 Kits

23846
Thomas Boulding b 1664 Wye, England

13, 23, 14, 10, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

11018
William Bolling b 1818  Boyle Co., KY w/ Sarah Gray
13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 11, 13, 13, 29  

12454
Jesse Bowling 1754-1815


13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

14348
John Bolling b 1756 w/ Mary Tarpley, Fh415
13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

1509
James Bowling c 1756, Fh270


13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

1788
John Bolling b 1756 w/ Mary Tarpley, Fh415
13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

2051
Jessie Bowling c1754-1815 of England, Fh345
13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

2713
Benjamin Bolling 1734-1832 ??


13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

2788
Harrison Boling 1802 - c1842, 4657a

13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

30822
David Bolin b 1780, s Jesse b1813, s Alexander b1859
13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

3269
William Bolding c1785, Fh779


13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

3754
David Bowling 1780 & Polly Rail, Fh162

13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

4317
Leonard D. Bolding son of William c1786-1850, 779b
13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

7421
Charles D. Boling b c 1765 VA Fh1564

13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

7566
John Bolling b 1756 w/ Mary Tarpley, Fh415
13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

804
John Bolling b 1756 w/ Mary Tarpley, Fh415
13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

8411
John Bowlin b c 1760



13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

4701
Obediah Bolding b c1764-1770


13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

1653
James Bowling c 1756, Fh270


13, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

6262
Andrew Bowling 1801-1868


13, 24, 14, 11, 11, 13, 12, 12, 11, 13, 13, 29  

2347
Richard Hausber Bowling 1832


13, 24, 14, 11, 11, 13, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

20497
Nathan Coffman Bolin b 1833 OH

13, 24, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 11, 12, 13, 13, 29  

4608
William Bowling c1821-22, 917b


13, 24, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 11, 13, 13, 29  

4832
John Bolling b 1756 w/ Mary Tarpley, Fh415
13, 24, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 12, 13, 28  

1920
William d 1790 Scotland, son James Fh300, Fh904  F
13, 24, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

2164
James Bowling c1756, Bad Eli, Fh270

13, 24, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

2259
Joseph Bolling, 1753-1836, Fh455

13, 24, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

2247
James Bowling, 1775 & Eliz. Morrison, Fh302-M9
14, 23, 14, 11, 11, 14, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

5 65.
Arthur bc1791-d1845/m1815 Mary Wactor—His father was John Fh4473


a
Eviline b1812/m1847 Joseph H. Gill


a
John H. b1813/m1863 Elizabeth Wactor


a
Francis L. b1817


a
Mariah Minerva 1820-1899


a
John H. b1828/m1853 Alice Elizabeth Allred


a
Wiley H. b1828/m1854 Emily Susanna Nettles


a
Riley H.b1829/m1861 Caroline Rushing


a
Ezekiah H. b1834/m1864 Mahala H. Whittington


a
Missouri Ann 1841-1868/m1865 John E. Allred


a
Children per Source #1145.

5
Fh065
Arthur Bolin was born about 1791 to John Bolin (Fh4473). (1145) Arthur Bolin married September 15, 1815 in Franklin County, Mississippi. (1145) Arthur Bolin died September 23, 1845 in Lawrence County, Mississippi. (1145) Arthur Bowlin served in Capt. John Lowry's Company of the Mississippi Militia in the War of 1812.  His pension was WO-22761.  His wife' name was Mary.  (935)(967) 

5M14 150. Benjamin d>1802/----- ----- 



Joel b1766-1784



Henry--alive 1791 KY 

5M14
150a
Joel Bolen was a son of Benjamin Bowling (Fh150) of North Carolina. (7)  1802 Anderson County, Tennessee tax list:
Benjamin Bowling (Fh150,5M14) 1 free poll (no acres). (1553)(1606)
Joel Bowling (150a,5M14)1 free poll 100 acres on Powell River. (1553)(1606)
Absalom Bowling (maybe 452e,5M14) 1 free poll 125 acres Coal Creek Deed. (1553)(1606)
Joel Bowling, along with Larkin (Fh4613,5M14), Benjamin (Fh150,5M14), and Joseph (Fh452,5M14) Bowling, was on the 1805 tax list of Anderson County, Tennessee. (222)(7)  

A Joel in Madison and Fayette Counties Kentucky

Joel Bolen was a mill owner near the mouth of Tates Creek. 

A William Bowlin (UK) in 1795 found a horse near the mouth of Tates Creek, Fayette County, Kentucky. (560)

Joel Bowlin on 1800 Madison County, Kentucky tax list with 1 white over 21 and 1 horse. (1456)(9)(4)(253)(1155) 

Joel Bowlin on 1801 Madison County, Kentucky tax list. (407)

Joel Bowlin on 1802 Madison County, Kentucky tax list with 1 white over 21 and 4 horses. (407)(1456) 

Joel Bowlin on 1803 Madison County, Kentucky tax list with 1 white over 21, 1 black and 2 horses. (407)(1456) 

Joel Bowlin on 1804 Madison County, Kentucky tax list with 1 white over 21, 2 horses and 77 acres near Tates Creek . (407)(1456) 

Joel Bowlin on 1805 Madison County, Kentucky tax list with 1 white over 21, 4 horses and 115 acres near Tates Creek . (1456) 

Joel Boling in 1806 had a saw mill at the mouth of Tates Creek in Kentucky. (1339)  

Joel Bowlin on 1806 Madison County, Kentucky tax list with 1 white over 21, 4 horses and 115 acres near the Kentucky River. (1456) 

Joel Boling was mentioned in the 1806, Kentucky Gazette, Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky. He had a brother or first cousin named Henry Bolen and was one of the Bowlings of Indian ancestry.  Joel Boling was at the saw mill 1806 Fayette County, Kentucky. (7) 

Joel Bowlin on 1807 Madison County, Kentucky tax list with 1 white over 21, 4 horses and 112 acres near Tates Creek. (1456) 

Joel Bowlin on 1809 Madison County, Kentucky tax list with 1 white over 21, 2 horses and 99 acres near Tates Creek. (1456) 

Joel Boling bought in 1809 from James and Phebe Miligan 99 1/4 acres on Tates Creek adjoining William Toland, Madison County, Kentucky, Deed Book G, p. 80-81. (1456) 

Joel and Nancy (sic) Boling in 1810 sold 99 1/4 acres on Tates Creek to Hiram Biggerstaff.  Madison County, Kentucky Deed Book G, p. 499. (1456)

Joel Bolen was in Fayette County Kentucky in 1810 on page 19, line 9 with 21010-00010-00. (9)(2)(1546) 

Joel Bolen is listed in the 1810 Census of Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, with 2 males under 10, one male 10-16, one male 26-45, and one female 26-45. (1456)

1810 Census of Fayette County, KY.

	Head of Household
	0 - 9
	10-15
	16-25
	26-44
	45 up
	
	0 - 9
	10-15
	16-25
	26-44
	45 up
	
	Indians
	SLAVES

	Bolen, Joel
	2
	1
	
	1
	
	
	
	
	
	1
	
	
	
	


Joel is on the 1811 Fayette County, Kentucky, tax list with one white over 21, 5 horses. (1456)

Joel is not listed in 1812-1813 on Fayette County, Kentucky tax lists. (1456) 

A J. L. Bowlin witnessed a transaction in 1814 in Fayette County, Kentucky. (27) 

A Joel Boling in 1816 is mentioned "at the saw mill" in the "Kentucky Gazette". (1456)

5N
418b
In my opinion, the Unknown Son of John Fh418 is William in the following deed (1745):

Greenville County, SC, Deed Book H, page 12, 1807-1807

William Bolling to Willey Hughes.

State of South Carolina Greenville District.  Know all men by these presents that I, WILLIAM BOLDING of the State of South Carolina and district aforesaid, for and in consideration of three hundred dollars to me in hand paid by WILLEY HUGHES of the State and District aforesaid.  Have granted bargained and sold and by these presents do grant bargain and sell unto the aforesaid WILLEY HUGHES all that tract or parcel of land containing one hundred and twenty five acres more or less, situated and lying and being in the State and District aforesaid on Brush Creek waters of Reedy River, being a part of a tract of land originally granted to JOHN HUNT and certificate in the year of our Lord one thousand seven hundred and ninety two said HUNT conveyed the aforesaid one hundred and twenty five acres more or less unto WILLIAM TOWNS anno Domini one thousand seven hundred ninety five. Recorded in the clerks office District above mentioned, Book C, page 428 and 429 by reference this to said land, begins at a popler on the west side of Brush Creek then ... meanders of said creek to the … intersects THOMPSON’S line … thence along his line until it intersects the main road between Reedy River and Saluda then up the said road … the said line by LEMUEL ALSTON’s land to the beginning.  Said land was conveyed by the above mentioned WILLIAM TOWNS anno Domimi Eighteen hundred to SAMUEL CROWDER and by said CROWDER to JONATHAN STOKES and by said STOKES to me and is now by me conveyed to the above mentioned WILLEY HUGHES.  Together, etc…

I have here unto subscribed my name and sealed with my seal this 27th day of April in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and seven…

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of 

Test:  Thomas Wade Easley                                               William Bolding (seal)

           Robert Sutherfield

South Carolina Greenville District

Personally came before me, Robert Sutterfield and maketh oath that he saw WILLIAM BOLDING sign seal and deliver the within deed of conveyance to WILLEY HUGHES for the use and purpose within mentioned and was present and saw Thomas Wade Easley sign as a witness with himself.  Sworn and subscribed to this 21st day of October 1807.

Before me

Elisha Green, J. P.

Recorded the 21st day of October 1807.

I believe that William died shortly after this deed and his wife Rebecca is shown in 1810 (1745):

1810 Census, Greenville County, SC (Next door to Rebecca’s husband’s kin, James Cooper, Her brother in law, John Boling is 2 houses away.  Evidently William Bolding has died and she is living alone with one of her sons or he left.)

Rebecca Boling

1 male, 10 through 15

1 female, 26 through 44. (1745)
5 1562. 
Charles H. (?Hillary) 1799->1860<1870/m1820-23 Mary "Polly" Graves (1800-d>1850)--His father was Charles D. #1564




A descendant kit 7421 tested into DNA 5

*ab
Agnes/Aga/Agga/Aggy bc1825/m1852 Elijah RobersonYow—brother of Alfred


*ab
Martha Jane 1828/m1853 Alfred Ledbetter Yow—brother of Elijah 


*ab
Nancy b1827/29—never married


*ab
Tyson bc1830/m1859 1/w Leasey “Lucy” Lucas,2/w "Dollie" -------


*  b
Alla bc1832-d>1880—never married


*  b
Disa/Dicy bc1835-d>1880—never married


*  b
Alfred b1837-d>1880<1890/m1867 Emiline Garner




A descendant kit 7421 tested into DNA 5

*  b
Sarah bc1839-d>1880



Nancy bc1841


*
Children in the household per 1850 Census of Randolph Co. North Carolina per Source #942

a
Census 1830 Randolph, NC, 1 Male under 5, 2 Females under 5, 1 female 5-10. Adults both 30-40.  


b
Census 1850 Randolph, NC, all children born NC, also http://www.gravesfa.org/gen077.htm

5
Fh1562 
Charles H. Boling was born 1799 in Randolph County, North Carolina.  His father might have been Charles D.  Boling (Fh1564), born 1764 in Virginia.  Charles H. Boling had a son Alfred Boling born 1837 in Randolph County, North Carolina. (898) Charles H. (Hillary?) Boling 1799 - 1860/1870 / married Mary "Polly" Graves. (1527) 

1830 Randolph County, North Carolina  

im 84 of 85

Charles BOLING (Fh1562)
1 male, under 5        unknown

1 male, 30 - 40         prob. Charles, b. ca 1799 NC

2 fem, under 5         prob. Nancy b, ca 1827/29; and Martha b. ca 1825/27

1 female, 5 - 10,      prob. Agga b. ca 1825/23

1 female, 30 - 40     prob.  Mary Polly Graves Boling, b. ca 1800 NC (2093)

1840 Randolph Co., NC, ("prob." and "likely" based on 1850 census entries)

im 40 of 61

BOLLING, Charles (Fh1562)
1 male, under 5                (prob. Alfred, b. ca 1837 - - -   my direct line)

1 male, 5 - 14                   (prob. Tyson, b. ca 1830)

1 male, 40 - 49 yrs            (likely Charles, b. ca 1799 NC)

2 fem, under 5                (prob. Sarah b. 1839; and Disa, b. ca 1835)

1 female, 5 - 9 yrs          (prob. Alla, b. ca 1833-37)

1 female, 10 - 14 yrs      (prob. Nancy, b. ca 1829)

2 females, 15 - 19 yrs    (prob. Aga, b. ca 1825; and Martha [aka Patsy ?]  b. ca 1827)

1 female, 30 - 39 yrs      (likely Mary "Polly" Graves Boling) (2093)

2093.
Informant Sharon Bortner, Xabortners@aol.com (2008), Descendant Alfred, 1562g, Father is 
Kit 7421 DNA Group 5
Charles Boling was in the 1850 Census of Randolph County, North Carolina.  He was age 51 born North Carolina.  His wife was Mary age 50.  See family group for list of possible children. (942) Charles Boling, age 51 in 1850, born North Carolina, is listed in other records as Charles H. Bolling and Charles Boling, Jr. (942) Census August 17, 1850 Southern Division, Randolph Co., NC, stamped pg. 108, 
 fam 456
Charles BOLING, 51, farmer, NC       [Charles H (Hillary?)]
Mary 50, NC                    (nee:  GRAVES)
Aga 25       (all children are born in NC)    / married E. R. YOW
Martha 23                                              /married A. YOW  
Nancy 21                                               /never married
Tyson 20                                               /mar twice
Disa 15                                                  /never married
Alla 17 (?)                                              /never married
ALFRED 13                          [Sharon Boling Bortner’s great great grandfather]
Sarah 11                                                /never married (2093)

5 1564. 
Charles D.1764->1850<1860/Mary ------




A descendant kit 7421 tested into DNA 5


Charles H. b1799/Mary "Polly" Graves--See Family #1562

5
Fh1564  Charles D. Boling was born 1764 in Virginia. (898) A descendant kit 7421 tested into DNA 5. Charles D. Boling might have had a son Charles H.  Boling (Fh1562) born 1799 in Randolph County, North Carolina. (898) Charles Bolen was in Randolph County, North Carolina in 1800 in household 298 with 21110-00122-00. (9) Charles Bolin was on the 1815 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina.  (942) Charles Bolin was on Capt.  Harvey's district 1815 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina.  He had 500 acres on Fork Creek. (942) 1815 - Leonard's in the tax list living along the Little River in Capt. Harvey's District near Bolins (Mark, John, Jr. Bill, and Mitchel). (1414) 1815 Tax List of Randolph County, North Carolina: In Capt. Harvey's District is Mark Bolin, Mitchel Bolin, John Bolin Sr, Charles Bolin....all living along Little River as neighbors. http://www.gravesfa.org/gen077.htm (1414) 

1830 Randolph County, North Carolina  

im 45 of 85

Charles BOLIN (Fh1564)
1 male, 5 - 10        unknown

1 male, 10 - 15      unknown

1 male, 50 - 60        Charles, b. 1764, VA / birth yr range should be 1770 - 1780

1 female, 40 - 50    unknown

1 female, 50 - 60      Mary, b. ca 1764, VA / birth yr range should be 1770 - 1780 (2093)

1840 Randolph Co., NC, ("prob." and "likely" based on 1850 census entries)

im 44 of 61

BOLLING, Charles, Senr    ("Senr" noted in census listing)

1 male, 10 - 14                (unknown)

1 male, 60 - 69            (prob. Charles b. 1764, VA / birth yr range should be 1771 - 1780)

1 fem 40 - 49                   (unknown)

1 female, 60 - 69         (prob. Mary, b. 1764, VA / birth yr range should be 1771 - 1780) (2093)
Charles Boling was in the 1850 Census of Randolph County.  North Carolina in household #396, age 86 born Virginia.  Mary age 86 born North Carolina was also in the household.  Charles Boling, age 86, born Virginia, is listed in other records as Charles D. Bolling. Charles D.  Bolling and William Bolling sold land in 1814 to John Bolling the land was a grant, entry 1780, to William Bolling, Jr. This might suggest that Charles Boling was a son of William Bolling, Sr.  This was probably William Bolling, Sr. of Montgomery County, North Carolina, on 1763 tax list of Anson County, North Carolina (now Montgomery). (942) Census August 17, 1850 Southern Division, Randolph Co., NC, stamped pg. 108, 
fam 396, line 21 Charles BOLING, 86, b. VA (assumed to be Charles D. BOLING, Fh1564,5)
Mary, 86, b. NC

5N 1565. Christopher 1787-1876/m1808 Nancy Baker (1790-1862) FAG=34391023--His father was James #270


abcd
Martha "Betsy" b1810/m1834  Samuel Peters


abcd
William b1813--Unmarried


abcd
Farabee/Ferreby 1817-1900/m1837 Hawkins Bales


abcd
Leatha A. "Leth" 1820-1888/9/m1839 Absalom Bales Fulford


abcd
Christopher C. b1822/Amanda E. Howler (1826-1901) and/or m1846 Elizabeth Amanda Guy


  bcd
Susannah "Susie" 1824-1853/m1841 David T. Neale b1818


a    d
Balamm or Balaam 1829-1895/m1851 Anna Goodwin (1834-1894)--FAG=34280070

ab  d 
Stephen 1830-1893/m1859 Ellen Lollar or Wilen Weaver b1840


ab  d
Lucinda Baker 1831-1917/m1850 Jackson Bales


      d
John b1832 died young


      d
James b1834 died young


a    d
Jesse b1835 died age 11


a
Children per Source #1240 (Leslie Gunter)


b
Children per Source #1417 (Patricia Ann Mitchell)


c
Children per Source #1465. (Leon Morris)--Six (6) children all born Clay County, KY


d
Children per Source #1414 (Ernie Perry)

5N 
Fh1565 
Christopher Bowling was born 1787. (7)(85)(104)(106)(320) Christopher Bowling was born in Tennessee. (7)(85)(104) Christopher Bolling was born 1787 in Hawkins County, Tennessee. (117)(85) Christopher Bolin was born 1787 in Hawkins County, Tennessee. (595)(376)(1417) Christopher was born about 1788. (1806) Christopher Bowling was the son of James Bowling (Fh270) and ----- Blevins(?). (7)(85)(104)(106) Christopher Bowling was the son of James and Mary "Polly" Blevins. (320) Christopher Bolin was the son of James Bolin. Christopher Bolin's mother may have been a Blevins.  (376) Christopher Bowling 1808 married Nancy Baker in Clay County, Kentucky. (7)(85)(104)(106) Christopher Bolling married 1808 Clay County, Kentucky, Nancy Baker the daughter of George Baker. (117)(85) Christopher Bowling married Nancy Baker the daughter of George and Esther (Robinson) Baker. (320) Christopher Bolin married Nancy Baker the daughter of George and Susannah (Morris) Baker (George and Susannah were married Wilkes County, North Carolina, 1778). (376) Christopher Bowling married 1808 Clay County, Kentucky, Nancy Baker. (1212) Christopher Bolin married 1808 Clay County, Kentucky, Nancy Baker the daughter of George F.  and Susannah (Morris) Baker. (595)(1417) Christopher Bolin married Nancy Baker. This Nancy was not a daughter of Rev. George Washington Baker. His probate records prove that. (587)  Christopher had children:


a.  Martha who married Sam Peters. (320)  Martha "Betsy" married 1831 Sam Peters. (376)


b.  William unmarried (320)(376)


c.  Farabee born 1817 who married Hawkins Bales. (320) Farabee married 1837 Hawkins Bales. (376)


d.  Christopher born 1822 who married Amanda E. Howler (320)


e.  Susannah born 1824 who married David T. Neal (320) Susannah Bolin (1815-1853) married 1841 David T. Neal. (360) Susannah was born in 1824 and in 1841 she married David T. Neal and in 1853 she died, (376) Called "Susie". (376)

   
f.  Letha who married Absent Fuller (sic Fulford). (320) Leatha married 1839 Absent Fulford, not Fuller. (376) Leatha A. Bolin born 1820, Clay County, Kentucky or Hawkins Co, TN, married 1839 Absalom Bales Fulford, Morgan County, Indiana. She died 1889, Monroe County, Indiana, buried Hindustan Cemetery, Monroe County, IN. (1417) FAG=21337638.

g.  Balamm or Balaam born 1828 who married Anna Goodwin (320) One son was Balin or Balamm (1829-1895) not Bolin who married 1851 Anna Goodwin. (376) Balaam born in 1829. (1806)

h.  Stephen born 1830 who married Ellen Lollar (320)  Steven born 1830 married 1859 Ellen Lollar. (386)

     
i.  Lucinda born 1831 who married Jack Bales. (320) Lucinda married 1850 Jackson Bales.  Lucinda died 1917 in Smith County, Kansas. (376)

   
j.  Jesse died at age 11, (376) 


k.  James died young, (376) 


l.  John born 1832 died young, (376) 

All children were born in Clay County, Kentucky. (376) Christopher Bowling was on the 1808-10 tax list of Clay County, Kentucky. (253) Christopher Boling was in the 1810 U.S. Census of Clay County, Kentucky. (89)(104)(869) Christopher Boling (Fh1565,son of James Fh270) was on the 1810 Census of Clay County, Kentucky with 1 0 1 0 0 - 0 0 1 0 0 - 0. Oldest male born 1784-1794. (1473)

Christ Bowling (Fh1565, son of James Fh270) was on the 1820 Census of Clay County, Kentucky with 2 1 0 0 1 0 - 3 0 0 0 1 - 0 - 0. The oldest male born 1775-1794. (1474)

2—male under 10

1—male 10 to under 16

0—male between 16 and 18

0—male 16 to under 26

1—male 26 to under 45

0—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775

3—female under 10

0—female 10 to under 16

0—female 16 to under 26

0—female 26 to under 45

1—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775
Christopher Bowling was in the 1820 Census of Clay County, Kentucky with 1 male 26-45, 1 male 10-16, 3 males under 10, 2 females 16-26, 1 female 10-16 and 2 females under 10.  Other Bowling in the Census were William (age over 45), John (over 45), Jesse Sr. (over 45), Justus (age 26-45), John (age 26-45), Elijah (age 16-26), and Jesse Jr. (age 16- 26). (7) Christopher Boling was on the 1833 tax list of Clay County, Kentucky. (1143) They moved to Morgan County, Indiana. (117)(85) Christopher Bowling went to Morgan County, Indiana. (320) Christopher Bolen was in the 1850 of Morgan County, Indiana, born 1787 Tennessee. Also 1870 Census of Indiana. (2089) 
Death

Christopher Bolin died 1876 in Morgan County, Indiana and is buried there in the Union Christian Cemetery. (376) Both Christopher and Nancy are buried in the Union Cemetery, Morgan County, Indiana. (595) FAG= 34391023. There was a Christopher Bolin obit in the "Martinsville Republican" October 12, 1876, Page 5, Column 2, "Uncle Christopher Bolin departed this life Friday, Oct. 6th of old age. He was a veteran of Kentucky: was one of the first settlers of this county, and at the time of his death had arrived at the extreme age of ninety-four years." (1416)

Things that appear wrong

Christopher Bolin was the son of William “Blackwater Bill” Bolin (Fh744). (1784)
5N 1566. Christopher b<1718-d>1780/m     Lydia ----- --His father was probably James #269



Christopher Jr. b<1746,r1776-1778



William b<1746,r1767,r1769,(?)dc1778/m       Sarah “Sally” --------



James b1756/mc1776 Sarah "Sally" or Mary "Polly" Blevens/Blevins—Probably Fh270  



James (?)/mc 1776 Sarah Rea—See Family Group #301



John (?)/m     Rebecca Rea—See Family Group #418

5N  
Fh1566 
Christopher Bolling had a wife Lydia -----. (175)(1155) Christopher Bolling, Land Office Patents and Grants, 26 Mar 1739, Goochland County, Virginia, below Willis River. (1475)

Land Patent Maps:

http://www.rochester.edu/college/BIO/bannister/PatentMaps/Cumberla/CumbMar_98/HYDRO.GIF
(1414, This one shows the general waterways and Bollings Quarter Branch)
http://www.rochester.edu/college/BIO/bannister/PatentMaps/Cumberla/CumbMar_98/EARLY.GIF
(1414, This one shows JBolling and CBolling)

Christopher Bolling, 26 Mar 1739, VPB 18:289, 250a, Gooch/below Willis Riv on brs of sd riv. (1414)(1475) Goochland County, Virginia Deed  Book 4, Page 172. Apr 13, 1743. from Christopher Bolling (Fh1566) of G (Goochland), to James Bolling (Fh258) of G, for 20 E, a certain tract of land in G below Willis' River, on the branches of the river, and bounded by said James Bolling, James Cuningame, about 250 acres, which land was granted to said Bolling by patent dated Mar 23, 1739. Signed - Christopher (B his mark) Bolling. Wit - John Atkinson, Lydda (+ her mark) Bolling. Recorded May 17, 1743. Lydia, the wife of Christopher Bolling, relinquished her right of dower to the conveyed lands. (1414) Goochland County, Virginia, Deed Book 4 Page 169. May 17, 1743, from Ashford Hughes of the Parish of St James and G, to Christopher Bolling (Fh1566) of same, for 10 E, a certain tract of land in G on the south side of James River on the branches of Muddy Cr, about 150 acres, and bounded by Thomas Walton, said Ashford Hughes, James B Loving, Ralph Flippen. Signed – Ashford Hughes. Wit - none. Recorded May 17, 1743. (1414) Goochland County, Virginia, Deed Book 4 page 250. Oct 18, 1743, from Christopher Bolling (Bowling) of the parish of St James and G, to Thomas Fliphen of same, for 20 £, all that plantation tract of land in the Parish of St James and G in the fork of Muddy Cr containing about 150 acres, which land was deeded to said Bolling by Ashford Hughes, and as per the deed, is bounded by Thomas Walton, Ashford Hughes, William Bleven, Ralph Flippen. Signed Christopher (B his mark) Bowling. Wit - John Cix, Jno Alexander, Ralph Flippen. Recorded Oct 18, 1743. Liddy, the wife of said Christopher Bowling, relinquished her right of dower to the conveyed lands. (1414) In 1743 from Christopher Bolling (Bowling) (Fh1566) sells to Thomas Fliphen/Flippen about 150 acres in the Parish of  St James in Goochland County, Virginia,  in the fork of Muddy Creek which land was deeded to Bolling by Ashford Hughes.  It is bounded by Thomas Walton, Ashford Hughes, William Bleven, Ralph Flippen.  It is signed by C. Bowling his mark witnessed by John Cix, Jno Alexander, Ralph Flippen.Liddy, wife of C. Bowling  relinquished her dower rights. I find this interesting especially since I am looking at the present map of  Cumberland County and see Muddy Creek with Flippen Millpond at the end of Muddy Creek. It hardly seems possible that the name Flippen carried down over 250 years to the present millpond but is an interesting coincidence? (1414) It is also interesting to note a variation of the name Blevins which we see later in the case where James Bowling (Fh270) marries a Blevins. (1414) Abstracted from Cumberland County, Virginia Deeds, 1749-1752. Keep in mind Cumberland County, Virginia, was created from Goochland County, Virginia .in 1748. Deed Book 1, Page 6. May 22, 1749 from James Bolling (Fh258)  of C (Cumberland), to Jonas Meador of Caroline County, for 25 L, a certain tract of Land in c (Cumberland) on the branches of Willis Creek about 200 acres bounded  on the north and west by James Cunningham, on the south by Samuel Adkinson and Thomas Carter, and east by John Johnson and Alexander Cunningham, and is part of a tract patented to Christopher Bolling. Signed - James (his mark) Bowling. Wit - Wm Johns, William Hobson. recorded May 22, 1749. (1414) Christopher Bolling  granted land to James Bolling 1743 Deed Book 4, page 149-50 Goochland County, Virginia  Christopher Bolling shows up in the Goochland County, Virginia, records as early as 1743, when he deeded land to James Bolling and others.  However, the parcels of land in Christopher's name were nothing close to the size of those parcels occupied by the Bollings (John I, John II, Thomas, and William) who established "Licking Hole" Plantation, later to be known as "Bolling Hall". (339) I've found that Christopher Bolling Sr had property bordering Merry Webb (who seemed to own much land) and that William Blevins was in a suit against Merry Webb (or the other way round). Therefore I'm guessing that Wm. Blevins lived close to at least one of Merry Webb's properties. The years that we are talking about now is ca 1749-67 and probably in the Leatherwood area near Martinsville (Halifax, Pittsylvania and now in Henry County, Virginia)? (1414) Christopher Bolling received 400 acres between December 21, 1751 and January 18, 1752 in Halifax County, Virginia.  Thomas Bouldin (Fh679,I), James Bouldin (Fh273,I), and Ephraim Bouldin (678e,I) each also received 400 acres during this same time period. (575) Christopher Bolling had legal action against him 1752-55 in Halifax County, Virginia. (7) Christopher Bolling 300 acres branches of Leatherwood Creek, 1756, Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (1414) Christopher Bolling moved on from Goochland County, having received land grant of 765 acres in Halifax County, Virginia, in 1759. (339) Christopher Bolling was granted 268 acres in Halifax County, Virginia, 1759, on a branch of the Leatherwood Creek. (1453) Christopher Bolling, Land Office Patents and Grants, 10 Aug 1759 Halifax Co. on Branch of Leatherwood Creek adj. Lomax & Co. Line. (1475) Christopher Bolling and his son, William, appear on the Pittsylvania County, Virginia, tax list in 1767.  (339) Christopher Bowlin paid taxes 1767 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia.  In the household was his son William.  Also on the same tax list was Christopher Bowling Jr, Joseph Bowlin and James Bowlin (Fh258). (597) Christopher Bowling Sr. was on the 1767 tax list of Pittsylvania County, Virginia.  Other Bowlings were Thomas, 2 Johns, Archibald, Christopher Jr., William (son of Christopher Sr.), James and Joseph.  Land only for Thomas and 1 John; 100 acres each.  Christopher Sr. and Jr., William & James were all from Goochland County, Virginia and also had lived in Halifax County, Virginia. (693)(421) Christopher Bolling 187 acres fork of Jacks Creek 1769 Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (1414) Chris. Bowling 62 acres Smiths River transferred to William Burks 1774 Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (1414) Christopher Boling Sr. was on a list of person renouncing Great Britain and swearing allegiance to the Commonwealth of Virginia at Henry County, Virginia.  Also on that list were John Boling, Joseph Boling, Archibald Boling and Christopher Boling.  (960) It is just a guess but I believe that Christopher (Fh1566) and James (Fh258) of Goochland  County, Virginia. about 1743 were brothers. (1414) Research proves that James (Fh258) and Christopher Sr. (Fh1566) shared the same neighbors (James and John Cunningham) as did the earlier James (Fh269) from his 1730 inventory in  Goochland County, Virginia, and perhaps the land records will say that in fact they shared the same piece of land. (1414) We have James' (Fh258) will 1771, Pittsylvania County, Virginia but for Christopher Sr.(Fh1566) we have only circumstantial evidence that James (Fh270) is connected to him; James (Fh270) and Christopher Sr (Fh1566) were both in Montgomery County, Virginia (ca 1780 Oath of Allegiance) at the same time along with the Blevins family.  James (Fh270) married Sarah/Mary Blevins. That of course would not prove conclusively that they were father/son related -- could be uncle/nephew. Having said that, I do not believe that James (Fh270) was the son of James (Fh258) because a younger James was still in the Pittsylvania County, Virginia area some years after Christopher Sr. and James is shown in Montgomery County, Virginia. (1414) Perhaps son Christopher, Jr. married Catherine ----- and went to Louisiana. (1414) Perhaps son William married Sally Fugate. (1414) Since John Rea witnessed or was surety in the will of James (Fh258) who died in 1771 (Fh258), I'd guess that Rebecca Rea married John, son of James (Fh258) rather than John, the son of Christopher Sr. (Fh1566) bca1711. (1414) Christopher Bowling was on the 1782 tax list of Montgomery County, Virginia. (7)(347)

5N  
1566a  
Christopher Bowlin Jr. paid taxes 1767 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (154)(597)(693) Both a Christopher Bolling Sr. and Junior appear on the Henry County, Virginia, muster roll in 1777. (339) Christopher Bolling, Sr (269a,Fh1566 or 1566a, N) was on the Henry County, Virginia, Tax List 1780.  See place index for others on that tax list. (1414)(1495) But there are indications that Christopher did not stay put, since he later show up on records in Hawkins County, Tennessee, and later in Clay County, Kentucky.  (339) Christopher Bowling was of Halifax and Henry Counties, Virginia and Hawkins County, Tennessee.  He may have been a close kinsman to James Bowling (Fh270) who was born 1756. (7)(85)  Christopher Boling and a William Boling are in the 1786 account book of Thomas Amis of Big Creeek , Hawkins County, Tennessee. (1155) Thomas Amis of Big Creek, Hawkins County in his first account book (1782-89) states that in 1786 Christopher Boling (1566a) bought 2 grubbing hoes, 2 quarts whiskey, 2 hats, 2 horse feedings, powder, blanket, and 2 gallons whiskey. (1155) Christopher Bowling (probably  1566a) and William Bowling bought items from Thomas Amis store in Rogersville, Hawkins County, Tennessee.  In 1786 William bought horsefeed and miscellaneous supplies; Christopher sold small furs and a barr [sic] skin and bought miscellaneous items.[Source: Amis Account Books available at the Knoxville, Tennessee library]. (1414)  Christopher Bolling is listed 1791 Tennessee Deed Book 1, page 64, Hawkins County, Tennessee.  (175) Christopher Boling: my information differs slightly on the deeds in Hawkins County, Tennessee. In 1791 Christ Bowlin is the conveyee, Book 1, page 64 and in 1794 Christopher Bowlins is the conveyor, Book 2, page 147. (698) On 21 of January 1794, James Thompson sold to Christopher Bowlin (1566a), in the County of Hawkins, for forty pounds, two hundred acres North side of Holston River in the Fork of Cluds Creek on a branch of Stock Creek. (1155) I have someone researching Hawkins and Grainger Counties, Tennessee for early records and they have found a 1791 deed for Christ Boling and a 1796 deed for Christopher Boling.  Since so many of the Haywood County, Tennessee Bowlings were in Grainger County, Tennessee in 1805 (William, Alex, Lewis, Joseph, Thomas), I am wondering who the Christopher is and what family he belongs to. (698) It was presumed by all researchers that Christopher Bolling had died in Hawkins County, Tennessee after 1790 but not so.  Christopher Bolling went to Louisiana that part which became Mississippi.  He was a deputy surveyor and his wife was Catherine -----.  It appears that he lived 1792-1798 in the District of Natchez or the District of Felicinia. (7)(280) Christopher Bolling was a surveyor of land from 1793 to 1805 in both Baton Rouge and Feliciana, Louisiana.  Christopher Bolling lived in Feliciana County, Louisiana, in 1796. A William Bolling had a land claim of 600 acres (west of the Pearl River) in Feliciana in 1797 and in 1792-93 a Catherine Bolling was nearby in Homochitlor, Dist of Natchez, Louisiana.  In 1812 a Eli Bolling had a land claim west of the Pearl River, east of the Mississippi River in Louisiana. (1024)(1025) It is just a guess but I believe that  the Christopher Jr. of 1786 in Hawkins County, Tennessee, was the son of Christopher, Sr. (Fh1566) Christopher Jr. seemed to have sons John and James. John died leaving his property to his parents (not married), while James went on to further mischief ca1834 or so. James had several warrants for his arrest for fighting with (I've forgotten his name). Don't quote me on all this because it's from the top of my head at the moment and I'll have to dig it out for you. It happen in Tennessee. Believe that Christopher Jr. wound up in Alabama, perhaps as the result of this problem..... just guessing. (1414) 

5N  
1566b 
William Bowlin was in the household of his father Christopher Bowlin who paid taxes 1767 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (597)(693)  William Bowling, James Bowling, and Christopher Bowling Sr. & Jr. are on the 1767 tax list of Pittsylvania County, Virginia were all from Goochland County, Virginia and also had lived in Halifax County, Virginia. (693) William Bollin paid taxes 1767 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (154)(878) William Bowling 118 acres branches of Elk Creek 1769 Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (1414) Two William Bollings were on the 1810 tax list of Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (380) William Boling was on the 1820 Census of Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (348)

5F 159. 
Daniel 1798-1869/m1821 Rachel Callaway--His father was James #300



Leah Ann Jane b1822--unmarried



James Addison 1823-1897/m1850 Caroline E. Williams




A descendant's Kit 99999 tested into DNA 5



Nancy F. b1824/m1846 Solomon Linch



William 1826-1852



Elizabeth S. 1828-1842



John A. b1831/m1851 Mary Jane Brazell



Daniel A. b1834



Sanford Washington b1836/m1861 Mary Malisa Hearn



Thomas N. b1840

5F  
Fh159 
Daniel Bolin was born 1798 in Cumberland County, North Carolina the son of James Bolin (Fh300). His mother's maiden name might have been Ferguson and her first name might have been Jennet.  Daniel Bolin married 1821 Rachel Calloway (1800-1877) in Jasper County, Georgia. They had nine children: Leah Ann Jane, James Addison, Nancy F., William, Elizabeth S., John A., Daniel A., Sanford Washington and Thomas N. Bolin. The first child was born in Jasper County, Georgia; the second child was born in Henry County, Georgia and the 8th and 9th children were born in Troup County, Georgia. Daniel Bolen died 1869 in Troup County, Georgia. (371) Daniel Boling was on the 1830 Census of Georgia on reel 33, page 217.  On reel 33, page 242 was a Wiley Boling. (1038) Daniel Bolin born 1798, North Carolina, married 1821 in Georgia, Rachel Callaway. (2074, Vol. 6) Daniel Bolen was in the 1850 Census of Troup County, Georgia, born 1799 in North Carolina. (2089)

5M14 161.  David bc1785->1850/m1804 Polly Rail/Rayl (1783-<1850)--May have had a sister, Lucy who married 


1801 James Eastridge in Grainger Co., TN



Mary Anna bc1810->1850/Nicholas Bowman d<1850



David B. bc1814-d>1850



2 female



3 female



4 female



5 female

5 162.
David b1780-d>1850




A Descendant kit 3754 tested in to DNA Group 5


a
Alexander (?) bc1805/m1825 Mary Gilmore


a
Edmond/Edmund (?) bc1805/m1824 Sally Going


a
Jesse Bolling 1813-d>1880/m1835 Anna York (1822 –d>1880)




A Descendant kit 30822 tested in to DNA Group 5


a
Linda/m1825 John Harbin


a
Rose/m1825 Wilson Myers


a
Possible children per Source #1356 

5
Fh162
David Bolling born 1780 had a son Jesse Bolling born 1813 who married Anna York (1822 -     ).  A Descendant kit 3754 tested in to DNA Group 5. These Bolins came from North Carolina to Scott County, Tennessee to Pulaski, Wayne, Whitley, McCreary Counties, Kentucky. (1356) David Boland was in the 1810 Census of Wayne County, Kentucky. (2) David Bolin had a Kentucky land warrant 1822 in Pulaski County, Kentucky. (17) Son Jesse Bowling was in the 1880 Census of Pulaski County, Kentucky:

	
	Household Record

 1880 United States Census 

 

Search results |  Download 

Previous Household   

Next Household 






	 
	Household:
 Name 
Relation
Marital Status
Gender
Race
Age
Birthplace
Occupation
Father's Birthplace
Mother's Birthplace
 Jesse BOWLING 

 Self 

 M 

 Male 

 W 

 64 

 KY 

 Farmer 

 VA 

 --- 

 Anna BOWLING 

 Wife 

 M 

 Female 

 W 

 50 

 TN 

 Keeping House 

 --- 

 --- 

 Rutha BOWLING 

 Dau 

 S 

 Female 

 W 

 22 

 TN 

 At Home 

 KY 

 --- 

 Andy BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 18 

 TN 

 Works On Farm 

 KY 

 --- 

 Jesse BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 20 

 TN 

 Works On Farm 

 KY 

 --- 



Source Information:
 

Census Place
District 88, Precinct 8, Pulaski, Kentucky

 

Family History Library Film  

1254440
 

NA Film Number  

T9-0440

 

Page Number  

137D     




5M9 162b
Edmond Bowlin had a wife Fanny Going on 4 June 1805, when she was mentioned in her father's, Shadrack Going, will, in Patrick County, Virginia. (1236) Edmund Bowlin in 1805 had a wife Fanny Going, mentioned in her father's, Shadrock Going, will, 4 June 1805, Patrick County, Virginia, pages 80-81. (7) 

5N 224.
Elijah "Bad Eli" b1785-7/1/w m1806 Sarah or Nancy Anderson--His father was James #270

A descendant kit 2164 tested into DNA 5

ab
Rebecca b1805/m1822 Jesse Roberts


ab
James "Bar Creek Jim" 1807/10-1882/1/w m1829 Mahala or Haley Wilson, 




2/w m1855 Martha Benge Robinson


ab
Nancy b1808/m1826 Thomas Boone Roberts


a
Stokley/m1830 Elizabeth Wilson


a
Mourning/Mornaty b1815/m1837 William Sizemore—See 442a



6 child



2/w m1817 Mrs. Nancy (Herde or Hurd) Wilson b1790


ab
Lydia b1819/m1839 Clem Herd


  b
Mary "Polly"


ab
Blevens b1815 or b1822/Harriet McCullom—See 442b


a
Eli Jr. 1823-1847/Nancy Bowling—See 442c



or


  b
Eli Jr. 1833/m1861 Ibby Baker- he died while in CW, Union Army.


a
Sally b1825/Richard Bowling


ab
Pallas b1824 or b1828/Mary Cornett


  b
William b1827


ab
Louvina "Vina" b1833/1/h John Woods, 2/h James Moore


a
Children per Source #320


b
Children per Sources #1414 and #1465

5N 
Fh224  
Elijah "Bad Eli" Bowling was born 1785 the son of James and Mary "Polly" (Blevins) Bowling (Fh270). (320)  Eli “Bad Eli” Bowling (Fh224) was born 1785. (1414)(1465) Eli Bowling was born about 1785.  Eli Bowling's parents were James and ----- (Blevins) Bowling. (106) Eli Bowling was born 1786 in Tennessee. (1235) Eli Bolling was born about 1785-87.  He was the son of James Boling. (117)(85) Eli Bowling came from Licking River, Tennessee, to Clay County, Kentucky in 1807.  His sister Mary, called Mollie, came with him and married Rev. John Gilbert.  Eli had brothers Levi, John, and James who came with him and a sister Nancy who married - ---- Sizemore.  They had an uncle Rev.  Jesse Bowling who settled on the North Fork. (119)(94)  Ely Boling was in the 1810 Census of Clay County, Kentucky. (869) Ely Boling (Fh224,son of James Fh270) was on the 1810 Census of Clay County, Kentucky with 1 0 1 0 0 - 2 0 1 0 0 - 0. The oldest male being born 1784-1794 . (1473) By 1806 Eli Bowling was in Tennessee. Eli Bowling married first Sarah (?) Anderson. They came to Clay County, Kentucky on or before 1810. They were on the 1810 Census in Clay County, Kentucky, with one son and two daughters under 10 years old.  Six children were born to this union.  Elias Bowling was on the 1808-10 tax list of Clay County, Kentucky. (253) Eli Bowling in 1811 was listed on a tax list of delinquents "removed to Clay County, Kentucky. (1348) Elijah "Bad Eli" Bowling married 1st in Tennessee Nancy Anderson. (320) Eli Bowling married Sarah Anderson. (1235)  Eli Bowling  married first Sarah Anderson. (7)(85) In 1806 he married Sarah Anderson. (106) Eli "Bad Eli" Bowling married first Sally Anderson in Hawkins County, Tennessee. (1414)(1465) They had six children (1414)(1465): 

Rebecca born 1805 who married Jesse Roberts (320) Rebecca who married 1822 Jesse Roberts, (1414)(1465) 

James 1807-1882 born Hawkins County, Tennsee. (1414)(1465) One of Eli's sons was James "Bear Crick" Bolling 1807-1882. (117)(85) James born 1810 who married 1st Mahala Wilson, (320) James married first 1829 Mahalia Wilson, his step-mother's daughter.  He married second Martha Benge Robinson.  (117)(85)  

Nancy born 1808 married 1826 Thomas Boone Roberts,  (1414)(1465) Nancy Bowling married Thomas Roberts. (605) Nancy born 1808 who married Thomas Roberts (320)

Stokley who married 1830 Elizabeth Wilson (320)

Mourning born 1815 who married her 1st cousin William Sizemore. (320)

Eli Bowling marrried second Mrs. Nancy (Herde) Wilson. (7)(85)  Eli Bowling married 1817 Nancy Wilson. (88)(89) Eli Bowling married 1817 Nancy Wilson in Clay County, Kentucky. (1212) Elijah Bowling married 2nd 1817 in Clay County, Kentucky, Mrs. Nancy (Herd) Wilson, widow of William Wilson.. Eli Bowling married second Nancy Herde Wilson, who had two children by an earlier marriage. Eli Bowling married second Nancy Hurd Wilson born 1790 widow of William Wilson. (1414)(1465) They had five children:

Lydia born 1819 who married Clem Herd, (320) Lydia married 1839 John Clem Hurd, (1414)(1465) 

Mary Polly born Knox County, Kentucky. (1414)(1465)

Lavina born Knox County, Kentucky. (1414)(1465) Lovvina "Vina" born 1833 who married 1st John Woods and 2rd James Moore. (320)

Blevens born 1822 who married Harriet McCullom, (320) Blevins born 1815 Knox County, Kentucky. (1414)(1465)

Pallace b1824 Knox Co KY, (1414)(1465) Pallas born 1828 who married Mary Cornett. (320)

Sally born 1825 who married Richard Bowling, (320)

William born 1827 Clay Co KY, (1414)(1465)

Eli (Jr.) born 1833 Clay County, Kentucky-married 12/1/1861 Ibby Baker- he died while in CW, Union Army. (1414)(1465) Eli Jr. (1823-1847) who married Nancy Bowling, (320)   

Early Madison County, Kentucky Tax lists show:1795 William Bolling (Fh744) with 3 horses, 1803 Eli Bowling under 21 years of age with horses,1803 John Bowling (Fh440) with horses, 1803 William Bowling (Fh744) with horses,  Lucy Bowling with horses,1804 William Bowlin (Fh744) over 21 years of age and wife, 1804 Isham Bowlin (Fh2545),1804 Lucy Bowlin, acquired a 100 acre farm in Clay County, 1804  John Bowlin.  All the above mentioned persons settled on the Red Bird Fork in the area that later became Clay County, Kentucky in 1807.  The 1810 Census lists William Boling (Fh744) over 45 years of age, one son age 10 -16, 2 sons under 10, wife age 26 - 45, 1 daughter age 10 - 16, 2 daughters under 10.  His son (sic) John (no this would be Fh436, son of Jesse Fh350) is listed as age 10 -26 years of age, 2 sons under 10, wife age 26 - >45, 1 daughter age 10 - 16, 3 daughters under 10 years of age. William (Fh744), like his brother Jesse (Fh350), had been a constable in early North  Carolina.  Wilkes County Court (North Carolina) 4-26-1787.  Ord. Following Constables and justices be appointedd.  Capt. N. Gordons; William Boling - Benjamin Herndon. (1417) Dr. John J. Dickey's Diary. Interview of Henry Lucas, Manchester, Kentucky, December 22, 1898. My uncle, John Cundiff, killed Eli Bowling. Bowling was a bully, a man of great power. He led my uncle to old Bill Dincel's house, where old Millie Henson lived. They had a quarrel about the woman. Bowling kicked my uncle, a small man. He went away and came back with a dirk knife, called Bowling to the door, and plunged it into him. He died in a few minutes. My uncle left the country and never returned. Uncle Sam Lucas took his wife to him. Eli Bowling was a bad man. His son, James Bowling, was hunting for my uncle, John, when he met my grandfather Cundiff. "Jim, put that gun down. We have gotten rid of two bad men and let the matter stop." He did so. The Cundiffs of Breathitt County are the same stock. Eli Bowling was a great rogue. I have heard him tell of stealing his neighbor's horse, put him in a cave, fattened him, cut off his tail, trimmed his ears, and led him to his neighbor's door a few months afterwards; and the owner did not recognize the horse. He would laugh when he told me. He told it at a horse race at the old tanyard, which was above town. He also said he bet a fellow $5 that he could steal his blanket as they were camping on a hunt, and he got it. (1507). Eli Bowling was killed by John Cundiff (a bully with great power), uncle of Henry Lucas.  They quarreled about Milly Henson, and John Cundiff stabbed Eli Bowling.  Eli was bad and his son James looked for John. (605)  

5M9 232. Gabriel 1784-1868/m1813 1/w Elizabeth Tuggle dc1847/48-His father was James #301


*
Mary "Polly" b1816-d<1866/m1835 Claiborn Thompson b1815


*
Sarah b1817-d>1866/m1834 James W. Richardson b1816


*
John W. 1818-c1864/m1836 Elizabeth Elanon Hubbard b1821


*
Nancy bc1819-d<1866/m1840 George Washington Conner 


* 
Henry T. b1820-d>1866/m1839 Eleanor Burnett b1820


*
Gabriel 1823-1885/m1846/7 Alaminta Adams (1827-1907)



2/w m1849 Mrs. Catherine Sally (LeSueur) Lavinder 


*
Children per Source #910. Children mention in Gabriel’s 1866 will.

5M9
Fh232  
Gabriel Bowling/Bolling was born about 1788 in Virginia. (910) 1997 E-mail from Cher27@naxs.com. stated that Gabriel's parents were Jerusha Wingfield and William M. Bowling (Fh754). (1245) Deed, 1811, Patrick County, Virginia. This indenture made this 20th day of December in the year of our Lord 1811. Between Benjamin Woosly & Gabrerel Bolen both of the county of Patrick Witnesseth the said Benjamin Woosly for and in consideration of the sum of one hundred and ten dollars to him in hand paid by the said Gabriel Bolen whereof the receipt is hereby acknowledged that the said Benj Woosly & his wife hath granted bargained sold unto the said Gabrel Bollen one certain tract or parcel of land lying & being in the county of Patrick on both sides of a branch on the waters of Smith River Could Cusses place bounded as followith to wit Beginning at a poplar thence a strait line to chestnut to a spanish oak thence strate line to a chestnut on the top of a ridge thence running on top of a ridge to pointers thence running to pointers thence straite to the Beginning with  its appertanances to have and to hold the said tract or parcel of land it being fifty acres more or less with all its appertanances to the said Gab Bollen and his heirs or assigns sharing the above land & giving peasable porshshon of the same for which Benj Woosly and wife so acknowledged that we are fully satisfied for the same & for the further consideration we so warrant & defend the title of the aforesaid land from all claims or claims that may be claimed hereafter by any person or persons whatsoever we warrant & forever defend the same whereas we Benjamin Woosly and wife have hereunto set our hand & seal  the day and year above written & delivered in presence of us Prier Pendleton, Benj Woosly  L.S., Wm War, Elizabeth (her X mark) Woosly L.S., Jesse Dehardt. Recorded: Patrick County April Court 1812. (910) Gabriel Bowling married first 1813, Patrick County, Virginia, Elizabeth Tuggle, daughter of John and Elizabeth (Harrison) Tuggle.  They had children (see his family group) all born in Patrick County, Virginia, in the period 1816-1823.  Gabriel Bowling bought some land in Patrick County, Virginia, in 1813 and Marvel Bolling (Fh4653) was a witness.  I believe Marvel is possibly the brother of Gabriel. (910) Deed Book 4 Page 70, Patrick County, Virginia, December 19th, 1813. This indenture made this 19th day of December 1813 between Henry Thompson of the county of Patrick and state of Virginia of the one part and Gabriel Bolling of said county of the other part.  Witnesseth that for and in consideration of the sum of one hundred & thirty five dollars current money of Virginia unto him in hand paid before the ensealing & delivery of these presents the Witnesseth whereof is hereby acknowledged hath bargained sold released and confirmed unto the said Gabriel Bolling of said county one certain tract or parcel of land situated lying and being in the county aforesaid on the waters of Fells Creek containing one hundred and ten acres it being the same more or less and bounded as followith to wit  Beginning at a conditional line corner White Oak thence to a corner Maple thence north to pointers 21degrees East 136 poles to David Morgin corner Black Gum on a branch thence down the branch as it meanders to the wagon road thence the road to said Morgins back line thence new lines North 86 degrees West XE "West"  38 poles to a Black Oak North 213 degrees West 34 poles to a Chestnut Oak North 86 degrees West 38 poles to pointers South 11 degrees West 36 poles to a poplar South 78 degrees east seven poles in Allens line with that line South 76 degrees east 45 poles to Spanish Oak thence South 17 degrees of West thence to the conditional line corner Gum made thence a straight line to the beginning be the same more or less to the said Gabriel Boling his heirs & forever with all its aspectainancies with all woods, ways, water courses, two orchards, houses, fences and all other accoutrements thereunto belonging or in any wise asspecting to have and to hold the same unto the said Gab. Bolling above names with its appurtenances to hold and to fully enjoy the same and so for myself my heirs & forever warrant and defend the right & title of the land and promises to him the said Gabriel Bolling his heirs forever against the claims or demands of any person or persons whatsoever either in law or equity.  In Witnesseth whereof I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my seal this day and year above written.   Henry Thompson L.S. Teste: Marvel Bowan, Elijah Dehardt, John McAlexander. Recorded: Patrick County April Court 1814. (910) Gabriel Bowling married second 1849, Franklin County, Virginia, Mrs.  Catherine S.  (Lesuer) Lavinder, widow of John Lavinder, Sr..  Gabriel Bowling died about 1868 in Floyd County, Virginia.  (910) There is speculation that Marvel (Markus) Bowling (Fh4635 or Fh4653) was Gabriel Bowling/Bolling's (Fh232) brother, but I have found nothing conclusive.  Marvel was a witness to an 1811 deed transaction for Gabriel in Patrick County, Virginia.  Marvel & Gabriel both named their first son, John W.  I received a letter from Verona Hosack from Detroit several years ago and she said she had copied some history of Knox County, Indiana and that there was a Gabriel Bolon Sr. & Jr. living there around 1800,  but sold their property in 1807 and moved out.  She said they may have moved to Virginia, which would be close to the time when Gabriel appeared in Patrick County, Virginia. (910) William M. Bowling (Bouldin) (Fh754) and Jerusha Wingfield, had a son Gabriel who married Catherine Lavinder October 15, 1849. Catherine Sally LeSueur Lavinder was the daughter of Martell and Elizabeth Bacon LeSueur.  No children (1247) Gabriel Bowling, birth and death dates are unknown, he was the son of William M. Bowling and Jerusha Wingfield , Gabriel Bowling married October 15, 1849, Catherine Sally LeSueur Lavinder, born April 08, 1800. Gabriel and Catherine Sally LeSueur Lavinder were married in Franklin County, Virginia.  Surety was Grandison B. LeSueur who was Catherine's brother. (1249) This bond is at the courthouse in Rocky Mount, Virginia which is known as Franklin County, Virginia. This one is on Gabriel Bowling or Bolling.  I will attempt typing the wording from the bond, but some words are hard to decipher. "Know all men by these presents, That we Gabriel Bolling and Grandison B. LeSueur are  ?? and firmly bound unto the Commonwealth of Virginia in the just and full sum of one hundred and fifty dollars the ?? payment whereof, ?? and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administors jointly and ??, firmly by these presents.  Sealed with our and dated this 15 day of October 1849.The Condition of the above Obligation is such,  That whereas the above bound Gabriel Bolling hath obtained from the Clerk of the county court of Franklin, a license for his inter marriage with Catherine S. Lavinder of said county.  Now if there shall be no lawful cause to obstruct the said marriage then the above obligation to be void, else, to remain in full force and virtue."






his





Gabriel   X  Bolling         (Seal)






mark





G.B. Lesueur                 (Seal)

(1249) I wonder if there might have been 1 or 2 other brothers for Gabriel and Marvel, namely William and James Jr.  They all were in Patrick County, Virginia, at the same time and they appear in various combinations on each others business and family transactions. (1228) Last Will and Testament of Gabriel Bowling Sr., Will Book D Page 251 Floyd County, Virginia, March 20th, 1866.I Gabriel Bowling of the County of Floyd and state of Virginia considering the uncertainty of life and being of sound mind and memory do make and publish this my last will and testament in manner and form following. First after paying all my just debts and funeral expenses I give and bequeath to my beloved wife Catherine Bowling my plantation on which I now reside to have the entire control of during her widowhood together with my wagon and houses, and two choice horses, two choice milk cows, as many hogs and sheep as she wishes to keep for her purposes.  My farming utensils, household and kitchen furniture also one years provisions and one hundred dollars in money to use if she needs it. Secondly I give to my daughters Sarah Richardson, Mary Thompson and the heirs of her body, John Bowling, Henry Bowling, Gabriel Bowling, Nancy Conner and the heirs of her body remainder of my stock to be equally divided amongst them the respective sums of which is three hundred dollars to be deducted from John Bowling and Nancy Conners part.  I give to my grandsons Gabriel P. Bowling and Gabriel Conner twenty five dollars each.  I also will that Henry Bowling have my land at twelve hundred dollars and that he have two and three years to pay it in, if he does not want at that price any of the rest of the heirs may have it at the same price, but if none take it that will be sold to the highest bidder, the purchase money to be equally divided amongst my heirs: the said Sarah Richardson, Mary Thompson and heirs of her body, Nancy Conner and heirs of her body after deducting the said three hundred dollars bond which I hold against George W.Conner and after deducting the said three hundred dollars from John Bowlings part, and to Gabriel Bowling, Henry Bowling.  I hereby appoint my son Gabriel Bowling and Martel Lesuer my executors, this last will and testament, hereby revolking all other Wills and made by me heretofore.  In witness whereof I have hereunto affixed my seal this 20th day of March in the year of our Lord 1866. Gabriel (His Mark X) Bowling (Seal) Delivered in presence and hearing of us who at his request have subscribed our names as witness: G.L. Tuggle, Daniel Conner. Virginia  At the May term of Floyd County Court 1868. The last will and testament of Gabriel Bowling was proved by the oaths of Green L. Tuggle and Daniel Conner suscribing witnesses thereof and admitted to record. Teste: H. Godsey,  CLK. (910) Gabriel Bolling (Fh232,M9) bca 1770 - 88. Gabriel Bolling died 1868 Floyd County, Virginia. Gabriel Bolling married Elizabeth Tuggle on 14 Dec 1813 Wayne County, Kentucky. (1414) Gabriel Bolling (Fh232,M9) married Catherine Lavender b1800 who appears on the 1850 Patrick County, Virginia census as age 50, w/o (wife of or widow of?) Gabriel Bolling Sr.. (1414) James Bowling (Fh301) had a son Gabriel Bowling (Fh232) born 1784 Amherst County Virginia, and died about 1868 in Floyd County, Virginia. (1155) Obit of son Gabriel Bowling (232f,M9), age 61, died 29 January 1885 of pneumonia (b. abt 1824) Parents: Gabriel & Elizabeth Bowling (Fh232,M9). Consort: Almint Bowling. Informant: J. A. Bowling, wife. (1155)

5N 258.
James b1711-<1716-w1771,wp1772/m     Elizabeth Edwards--His father was probably James #269


*
Judith b1743


*
John 1745-1800/m      Rebecca Rea (bc1750)--See Family #418 


*
Mary 1748-1814/m      John M. Rea 1738-1813


*
Ann b1753


*
James J. b1756/mc1776 Sarah "Sally" Rea--See Family #301  


*
William b1756-probably died March 11, 1778


*
Mentioned in James' 1771 will

5N
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James Bolling had 200 acres, both sides of Crooms Quarter Branch, in Goochland County, Virginia, in 1737. To own land he would have had to be age 21 at least so born prior to 1716. (7) John Bolling (Fh418) was the son of James Bolling (Fh258) who died before 1772 in Pittsylvania, VA.  James’ wife was Elizabeth Unknown. (1745)  Jas Bolling, 10 Jun 1737, VPB 17:335-1, 200a, Goochlan/bs CroomsQuarter Br. (1414)(1475) James Bolling had land adjacent to land granted 13 Oct 1736 to Jacob Micheaux. as 400 acres Goochland County, Virginia on both sides of the West Run of Groom's Quarter Branch of the South side of Willis River, adj. James Cunningham, James Bolling and Thomas Basset, p. 191. [Source: Anne Baker, 30 Jan 98, quotes - Cavaliers and Pioneers, Vol. IV, 1732-1741, Virginia Genealogical Society, 1994.] (1414) James Bolling, Land Office Patents and Grants, 10 June 1737, Goochland County, Virginia, on both sides of Coomes Quarter Branch. (1475) James Bolling was granted land, 1743, from Christopher Bolling (Fh1566) and his wife Lydia, Deed Book 4, page 149-50 Goochland County, Virginia. (175)(1155) Goochland County, Virginia Deed  Book 4, Page 172. Apr 13, 1743. from Christopher Bolling (Fh1566) of G, to James Bolling (Fh258) of G, for 20 E, a certain tract of land in G below Willis' River, on the branches of the river, and bounded by said James Bolling, James Cuningame, about 250 acres, which land was granted to said Bolling by patent dated Mar 23, 1739. Signed - Christopher (B his mark) Bolling. Wit - John Atkinson, Lydda (+ her mark) Bolling. Recorded May 17, 1743. Lydia, the wife of Christopher Bolling, relinquished her right of dower to the conveyed lands. (1414) Goochland County, Virginia Deed Book 4, page 149,  Sep 15, 1742, from James Bolling (Fh258) of the Parish of St James and G, to John Atkinson of same, for 15 £, a certain tract of land on the south side of James River, and being on both sides of Grooms Quarter Branch, and bounded by James Cuningame, 200 acres. Signed -James (~ his mark) Bolling. Wit - Ashford Hughes, William Cox, James Cuningame. Recorded Mar 15, 1742. (1414) Abstracted from Cumberland County, Virginia Deeds, 1749-1752. Keep in mind Cumberland County, Virginia, was created from Goochland County, Virginia .in 1748. Deed Book 1, Page 6. May 22, 1749 from James Bolling of C (Cumberland), to Jonas Meador of Caroline County, for 25 L, a certain tract of Land in c (Cumberland) on the branches of Willis Creek about 200 acres bounded  on the north and west by James Cunningham, on the south by Samuel Adkinson and Thomas Carter, and east by John Johnson and Alexander Cunningham, and is part of a tract patented to Christopher Bolling. Signed - James (his mark) Bowling. Wit - Wm Johns, William Hobson. recorded May 22, 1749. (1414) James Bolling 109 acres Turkey Cock Creek 1755 Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (1414) James Bowling 204 acres Balls Creek of Smith River 1762 Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (1414) James Bowlin paid taxes 1767 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (154)(597)(693)  James Bowling who paid taxes 1767 in Pittsyvania County, Virginia, along with Christopher Sr. & Jr.  and William also on the list, were all from Goochland County, Virginia and also had lived in Halifax County, Virginia. (693) James Bolling had a will dated 1772 in  Pittsyvania County, Virginia. (35)  James Bolling/Boulling, spelled both ways in his estate records, died in Pittsylvania County, Virginia, with will date 20 May 1771, filed 24 September 1772, listing sons John, James, and William in that order. (818)  James Bowling/Boling had a will dated 20 May 1771, probated 24 Sept 1772 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia.  It named his wife Elizabeth, daughters Judith, Mary, and Ann; sons John, James Jr. and William.  Son William Bolling was left a tract of land lying in Pittsylvania County, Virginia, on “Bolling Creek”. William Edwards, Sr., Thomas Edwards, Isham Edwards were a witnesses. The will is recorded in Deed and Will Book 5, page 383. Proved by James Boling, Jr. and Elizabeth Boling with Thomas Edwards and John Rea their security. (568)(607)  James Bolling who died in 1772 left land in Pittsylvania County, Virginia, on “Coleing (sic) Creek” to his son William. (818)  “Tithables in Pittsylvania County, Virginia, in 1767” listed John Bollin and William Bollin next to each other.  Each having one Tithe but owning no land. (818) William Bolling (Bowling), perhaps a son, from Virginia died while in the Continental Service as a private in the 14th Virginia Regiment and died at Valley Forge on March 11, 1778.  It is logical that this was the William Bolling described in the minutes of the first court held in Henry Count, Virginia, on April 20, 1778, as follows: “Elizabeth Cooper came to court and made oath that John Bolling (son of James Bolling), of Henry County, is the lawful heir of William Bolling, deceased, who went from the said county into the Continental service and there died”.  The statement would probably mean that John Bolling was the father, brother or son of William Bolling.  A likely explanation is that this John and William were brothers and the sons of James Bolling (Fh258) who died in Pittsylvania County, Virginia, with a will dated 20 May 1771 and filed 24 September 1772, listing sons John, James, and William in that order. (818) Boulling (Bolling), James   Dated May 20, 1771, Proved Sept 24, 1772, Names wife, Elizabeth Boeling - all moveable property unto my children at death of wife to be divided as followeth: James, Judith, John, Mary, Ann Bolling, shall have one equal part; Ann and William shall have two equal parts. Son: William Bolling a tract of land lying in Pittsylvania County on Bolling Creek.  Executors: Wife, Elizabeth Boeling and son, James Boeling, Jr. Witnesses: William Edwards, Sr., Thomas Edwards, and Isham Edwards Signed James Boeling. Will presented by James J. Bolling, Jr. and Elizabeth Bolling, Ex'rs. Proved by oaths of two witnesses and O.R. Sec: Thomas Edwards and John Rea. (1441) I believe that James Bolling's wife was Elizabeth Edwards, since custom required that a member of the wife's family be present to witness the transfer of the wife's interest prior to Rev War. (1414) Correspondence with some Edwards (surname) say that Isham Edwards was related to the Flemings and the Clacks. Henry County, Virginia (1777-1780 Will Abstracts Vol. 1 & 2) indicates an estate sale at John Blogg at which Joseph Bolling, John Cox, and William Fleming made purchases. (1414) : I believe  1) John Bolling's wife was named Rebecca Rea [supported by deed abstracts] and lived on the Smith River, 1782, Henry County, Virginia.  Also I believe that the Elizabeth Cooper above is the same Elizabeth Cooper who appeared in Henry County Court on April 20, 1778 "....and made oath that John Bolling, of Henry County, is the lawful heir of William Bolling, deceased, who went from the said county into the Continental Service and there died." 2) Notice that George Hairston appears on the Court Case involving Rea. (1414) My reference for 'Bolling Creek' is the will of James Boulling (Bolling) (Fh258) dated May 20, 1771, D&W 5, p383, P. on Sept. 24, 1772, in which James Boeling (note all the different spellings) said, "...... Son: William Bolling - a tract of land lying in Pittsylvania County on Bolling Creek."   I stopped at the Library of Virginia, Richmond  and the map department there quickly found Bolling Creek for me. (1414) It is just a guess but I believe that Christopher (Fh1566) and James (Fh258) of Goochland  County, Virginia, about 1743 were brothers. (1414) Research proves that James (Fh258) and Christopher Sr. (Fh1566) shared the same neighbors (James and John Cunningham) as did the earlier James (Fh269) from his 1730 inventory in  Goochland County, Virginia, and perhaps the land records will say that in fact they shared the same piece of land. (1414) We have James' (Fh258) will 1771, Pittsylvania County, Virginia but for Christopher Sr.(Fh1566) we have only circumstantial evidence that James (Fh270) is connected to him; James (Fh270) and Christopher Sr (Fh1566) were both in Montgomery County, Virginia (ca 1780 Oath of Allegiance) at the same time along with the Blevins family.  James (Fh270) married Sarah/Mary Blevins. That of course would not prove conclusively that they were father/son related -- could be uncle/nephew. Having said that, I do not believe that James (Fh270) was the son of James (Fh258) because a younger James was still in the Pittsylvania County, Virginia area some years after Christopher Sr. and James is shown in Montgomery County, Virginia. (1414) Perhaps son John married Rebecca Rea. (1414) Perhaps son William married Nephany Hodges. - I think this William married Jesse Hodges daughter, Nephany, but Hazael doesn't........ and she may be right. We either have the wrong father or the wrong son here or another William yet to be found.  Another reason I don't think this is Hazael's William is that he was alive in 1812 at the time of Jesse Hodges' death and not killed in the Rev War so we have a bit of reconciling to do on this one for sure.  (1414) Since John Rea witnessed or was surety in the will of James (Fh258) who died in 1771 (Fh258), I'd guess that Rebecca Rea married John, son of James (Fh258) rather than John, the son of Christopher Sr. (Fh1566) bca1711. (1414) Son John 1745-1800 (Fh418) married Rebecca Rea. Rebecca Rea was a sister to my direct, Elizabeth, who married Thomas Cooper.  These two families migrated to Greenville District, SC . Daughter  Mary 1748-1814 married John Rea 1738-1813 and went to TN. Son James J. b1756 (Fh301) married about 1776 Sarah "Sally" Rea. If the Sally Rea is the wife of James Bolling, Jr. she well could be the Sarah Rea, sister to Elizabeth and Rebecca, whom I have married to an Unknown Bolling. (1745) VIRGINIA TAX ROLLS 1771-
Bolling, (Bouling), James d. May 20,1771 (Fh258)
 
Wife – Elizabeth, Children – James Jr., Judith, John, Mary Ann, William

5N  
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William Bowling was in the 2nd Virginia State Regiment and also the 14th, Continental Line. (385) William Bolling (Bowling) from Virginia who died while in the Continental Service was a private in the 14th Virginia Regiment and died at Valley Forge on March 11, 1778. (818) 

Personal ID: Virginia 13423

William Bowling

Rank: Private

Rank Type: Rank and File

State:  Virginia

Regiment:  2 ART

Division:  Support Divison

Brigade:  Artillery Brigade

Company: Captain Henry Conway's Co.

Monthly Status Data  

December 1777:   

January 1778: Fit for duty

February 1778: Sisk Present

March 1778: Sick Present

Additional Remarks: Date of enlistment not shown. First borne on roll for January 1778 with remark -joined the regiment lately; Sick; March, 1778, Deceased MARCH 11, 1778. (1414) It is logical that this was the William Bolling described in the minutes of the first court held in Henry Count, Virginia, on April 20, 1778, as follows: "Elizabeth Cooper came to court and made oath that John Bolling, of Henry County, is the lawful heir of William Bolling, deceased, who went from the said county into the Continental service and there died". (818)(880)  The statement would probably mean that John Bolling was the father, brother or son of William Bolling.  A likely explanation is that this John and William were brothers and the sons of James Bolling (Fh258) who died in Pittsylvania County, Virginia, with a will dated 20 May 1771 and filed 24 September 1772, listing sons John, James, and William in that order. (818) John Bolling in Orange County, Virginia, court 1792 (Minute Book 2) appeared that he was heir-at-law to William Bolling, his brother, who died in 1778. (818)  William Bolling enlisted as soldier in the 2nd Virginia Regiment in the Month of February 7, 1777 in the company commanded by Capt. Dudley.  (160)(944)  John Bolling, William's brother, said William died in the month of July or August 1778 in service.  Proved by Peachey Bledsoe, Sgt. certified by Zachariah Burnley, Court held 27 March 1792 (Minute Book 3, page 116). (944)  William Bolling died in the month of July or August 1778 while in the service, which was proved by Peachy Bledsoe, who was Sgt.  in said Regiment.  (160) This William Bolling, who died in July or August 1778, had a brother John Bolling, who was his heir.  John Bolling came to court 1792, 14 years after William's death.  John Bolling was still in Orange County, Virginia, in 1792. (944)  There is no mention that William Bolling who died in service in 1778 was married or had children. (944)  Hening’s Statutes shows a certificate for depreciation pay due William Bowling, deceased (July 1778) the heir-at-law was John Bowling and that his father, William had enlisted as a soldier in the 2nd Virginia State Regiment. (176) Personal ID:  VA10084

William Bowling

Rank:  Private

Rank Type:  Rank and file

State:  Virginia

Regiment:  2 VAST

Division:  5th Division

Brigade:  1st Virginia Brigade

Company: Bernard's

Monthly Status Data  

March 1778:  

April 1778: Fit for duty

May 1778: Fit for duty

June 1778: Sick present

Additional Remarks: Rolls of Regiment commence March 15,1778. (1414) 

5N 269.
James b<1680-d1730--Head of Family String N

a
Christopher bc1711-d>1780/m    Lydia ----- -- See Family #1566


a
James bc1711-d1771/m     Elizabeth (Perhaps Edwards)--see Family #258


a
Joseph d>1772 and maybe d>1780


a
Possible sons per Source #1414

5N
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James Bolling had a 1730 will (book 1, page 269) in Goochland County, Virginia. (79)(979)  It was not a will on those pages but an inventory. See below. (1486) James Bolling had an inventory in 1731 in Goochland County, Virginia. (35) Inventory of James Bolling, dec'd, taken July 10, 1730, in Goochland County, Virginia. Value 9/10/10 (Nine pounds, ten shillings, ten pence, not a lot of money but it could buy as much as 200 acres of land without houses, or half the acreage with houses, plenty to live on in those days) taken by James Nevil and James Cunningham.  Stephen Hughes presented inventory, recorded 20 July 1731. (1486) Research proves that James (Fh258) and Christopher Sr. (Fh1566) shared the same neighbors (James and John Cunningham) as did the earlier James (Fh269) from his 1730 inventory in  Goochland County, Virginia, and perhaps the land records will say that in fact they shared the same piece of land. (1414) With reference to the several who asked for a look-up on James Bolling, Book 1 page 269, Goochland County, Virginia. I found this day on said page-"An Inventory of the estate of James Bolling _____ taken July 10th 1730" then there is listed 9 line items ranging from household goods such as clocks, blankets to stocks of cattle, hoggs, spining whool, etc., "Praissed by James Novil and James Cunningain" 7 bussels corn, tobacco the weight not known. "At a Court hold for Goochland County July 20, 1731. Stephen Hughes presented this Inventory and it was _____ admitted to record. Henry Wood, Court Clerk. (1486) As to whether its Cunningain or Cunningham; my guess is that it is Cunningham and probably a transcription or spelling error. Lucie Fritz first sent us a transcription that spelled it Cunningham and Nevil.  We have ample evidence that the Cunninghams were in that area. The name Novil should be Nevil. One of the Cunninghams married a Micheaux (another neighbor) and James Nevil (the younger) married Mary Lewis. His father, James Nevil, Sr. born 1686 lived in St. Anne Parish, Albemarle County, Virginia. Should they be related to James Bolling (Fh269) and I think they probably were since they were selected to appraise the estate, St. Anne's Parish, , Albemarle County, Virginia, might be another place for us to look for related information. (1414) I believe that James (Fh269) is the same James that was granted land [about 49] acres in 1690 in St. Peter's Parish, New Kent County, VA above the main fork of the Pamunkey River. [Source: Cavaliers and Pioneers, Vol. ll, 1656-1695, Nugent, 1934]. This is the same area where the Hughes and Napiers were located at this time. Whether he is an offspring of a yet earlier Bolling already in the Colonies, I am not yet ready to speculate. Sometimes children were sent abroad and then returned at maturity at which time they were legitimately granted headrights ..... don't know if this is the case. At any rate, I'd guess that this James was born about 1670, a little earlier than previously speculated. (1414) 

5N
269d 
Joseph Bowlin paid taxes 1767 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (154)(597)(693) Joseph Bowling 90 acres branches of Leatherwood Creek 1772 Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (1414) Joseph Boling was on a list of person renouncing Great Britain and swearing allegiance to the Commonwealth of Virginia at Henry County, Virginia (part that was Pittsylvania earlier).  Also on that list were John Boling, Archibald Boling, Christopher Boling Sr. (Fh1566) and Christopher Boling (1566a). (960) Joseph Bolling (269d,N) and Joseph Bouldin (678e,Fh454,I) were on the Henry County, Virginia, Tax List 1780.  See place index for others on that tax list. (1414)(1495) Henry County, Virginia, Deed Book 1, page 530, 09 Apr 1787 [inserted between pp. 530-31] "A poll taken of a section of Delegates at Henry County Courthouse this 9th of April 1787 for Abraham Penn, Esq." [included the following]: 

27. William Bolling (disputed) (830f,U1)

65. Joseph Bolling (678e,Fh454,I) or  (269d,N)

110. John Bolling (disputed) (830b,Fh415,U1) 

I believe that the John Bolin, Sr. (830b,Fh415,U1) of Sullivan County, Tennessee shown on the Pension Rolls of 1835 and who filed a claim on 21 Nov 1832 declaring that he enlisted "as a minute man from Henry County, Virginia, under Capt. Abraham Penn in 1780" is the same as can be found with Abraham Penn in the above record. The reason the several Bollings were disqualified was because they seem to have voted more than once -- they voted for both guys running for the same office. (1414) A poll taken in Henry County, Virginia, for Thomas Cooper, 9 Apr 1787 shows James Boldin (Fh270,N), James Edwards, William Bolling (830f,U1), John Bolling (Fh415,U1 or Fh418,N), Thomas Edwards and Augustine Thomas (Augustine Thomas was distantly related to Ursula Bell who married John Bolling (Fh367,N)).  (1414)

5N 270.
James 1756-d>1791/mc1776 Sarah "Sally" or Mary "Polly" Blevens/Blevins--His father may have been  


Christopher Fh1566 or James Fh258, but not Benjamin Fh110. (DNA proof) -His father was not 


John Fh380




A descendant kit 1509 tested into DNA 5



A descendant kit 1653 tested into DNA 5

A descendant kit 2164 tested into DNA 5

A descendant kit 47982 tested into DNA 5
abc
Catherine "Katey" or Katherine "Katy" b1777/mc1792 1/h John Amis, 2/h(?) m1811 Wiley 
Horton, 
3/h (?) m1825 Robert "Julius Bob" Baker


abc
Mary Martha "Mollie" 1779-1846/8/m1804  Rev. John Bige Gilbert (1758-1868)


  bc
Levi b1780/Mary "Polly" Asher--See Family Group #4615


abc
Nancy 1784-1875/m1804 John "Rockhouse” Sizemore (c1792/6-1850)


abc
Elijah "Bad Eli" 1785-1833/m1806 1/w Sarah Anderson, 2/w m1817 Mrs Nancy (Herde) Wilson--

  

See Family Group #224

A descendant kit 2164 tested into DNA 5

ab
William b1786/7-d1839/Sally Bowling and/or m1807 Malinda Walters--See Family Group #778


abc
Christopher 1787-1876/m1808 Nancy Baker--See Family Group #1565


abc
James b1789/m1808 Elizabeth "Kize" or Keziah Lockart--See Family Group #271


ab
John b1790 TN/m1818 Sarah "Sally" Henson--See Family Group #442




or John bc1790/m     Susan Napier--See Family Group #362


abc
Joseph b1791-d>1841/m1807 Nancy Bowling--See Family Group #451


a
Children per source #1235 (Informant Judy Neel)


b
Children per source #77, #85, #117, #320


c
Children per source #1155

5N
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James Bolling was born 1756. (30)(31)(45)(64) James Bowling was born in Virginia on Jan 9, 1756. He was one of the early settlers of Clay County, Kentucky. He was known as "Big Mouth" Jim Bowling (605) While I am reluctant to make a guess about James' parentage, strong indications are that his parents lived in Henry County, Virginia 1750-1767 based on the fact that my William Blevins' son-in-law [Eli Wallin] lived on Smith's River (2 miles east of Martinsville, Virginia. [“The Wilderness Road” by Robert Kincaid, 5th edition, 1992, page 67] and that William Blevins had frequent interactions with Tully Choice, the Coxes, and the Various Bollings of that area. This William Blevins is believed to be the father of Sarah/Sally Blevins who married James Bolling (Fh270) of Clay County, Kentucky. (1414)  James Bowling was born 1756. (106)(77)(85) James Bowling was born in Petersburg, Dinwiddie County, Virginia.  (106)  James Bolling was born in Virginia.  (31) James Bolling was born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) James Bowling was the son of John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling (106) James Bolling was born to John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling. (30) James Bolling was born the son of Major John Bolling.  All were descendants of Pocahontas.  (45)(64) The John Bolling-Elizabeth Blair (Fh380) connection for James (Fh270, and several others) has been pretty much discredited. It has been proposed that several of these genealogies (James (Fh270), William (Fh744), Jesse (Fh350), Benjamin) were fabricated to hide their true pedigrees, whatever they may be. I have seen this happen several times, where the children or grandchildren promote one false genealogy to hide their Cherokee or Melungeon heritage (my Reuben Rose is one example that comes to mind). (1468) James Bowling was born in either Virginia or North Carolina.  James Bowling’s parents are unknown.  James Bowling may have married -----Blevins.  (77)(85) James Bolling married Sarah “Sally” Blevens born 1757-60. She was the daughter of William and (Bunch?) Blevens.  (?) (106) James Bolling  (Fh270) 1756-1826 who married Polly Blevins, was NOT a son of Benjamin Bolling (Fh110) 1734-1832. My current book is "BOLLING-BOWLING - USA - ROOTS TREE - POCAHONTAS". (1438) James Bowling married Mary Polly Blevins the daughter of William Blevins. (320) From Henry County, Virginia Deed Book l & ll (1776-1784 by Adams, 1975 -- William Blevins of Henry County, Virginia sold land on Beaver Creek (120 acres) to John Cooper; 20 Oct 1777, Deed pages 79,80. --- Beaver Creek is part of the Dan River/Marrowbone Creek, etc. (1414) I believe that James Bolling (Fh270) is the son of James Bolling (Fh258). (1414) James Bolling (Fh258) had 109 acres on Turkey Cock Creek; it runs off Snow Creek (where Tully Choice had land) which branches off Pigg River. Turkey Cock has another branch off the Dan River. Christoper and Joseph Bolling held land on Leatherwood Creek. (James Williams & William Brown of Henry County, to Francis Nortcutt of Charlotte County, 150 acres on Leatherwood Creek being a part of tract formerly granted patent to Thomas Bolling (Fh678) of Charlotte County, Virginia. (1414) Christopher and James had land on Smith's River, while William had land on Elk Creek. I believe this is where my James Bolling (Fh270) met William Blevin's daughter, Mary/Polly or Sarah/Sally and were perhaps married. The Blevins owned land in the Marrowbone Valley and interests in the Smith River. In 1778 William Blevins sold property which he had patented in 1756 to Phillip Thomas who in turn sold it to George Hairston in Feb 1784. On 29 Oct 1793 (from Abstracts of Deeds Books V & VI, Henry County, VIRGINIA 1792-1805, by Adams, 1979) it shows John Collier of Pittsylvania County, to Charles Dickerson of Henry County 351 acres on branches of Leatherwood Creek joins James Blevins (may be either the brother or son of William Blevins, Sr.) and Christopher Bolling. This area Halifax/Pittsylvania/Henry Counties, Virginia is the only area where I have found the Bollings/Blevins to have contact at a time where James Bolling could have met/courted Miss Blevins. While others sort of "stick" James Bolling (Fh270) with Benjamin (Fh110), I find more evidence suggesting that he is connected to these Bollings ---James, William, Christopher, and Joseph Bolling --- than any others. James named his children John, James, William, Christopher, Joseph and Eli. However, I must confess I do not yet know who he is from. (1414) James had children (Also see Family Group Record):


a.  Catherine was born in North Carolina.  (77)(85)(106)(117)(85) Catherine was born 1776 in Tennessee.  (149) You'll note that the first  two daughter'ss birthplace is indicated as Hawkins County, Tennessee.  I believe they were born near the Watauga Settlement which is now in Sullivan/Johnson County, Tennesee and should be near the Holston. Why? That is where William Blevins was in 1775 (he purchased land there at that time), but it could have been called Hawkins County at one time or another. (1414) None of the daughters of James Boling (those mentioned) would have been born in Tennessee; Tennessee didn't exist as a state until 1796. They may have been born in the part of North Carolina that became Tennessee (I have them born in NC, not TN). The area that is now TN was called Washington District, then Washington County,, NC in 1776 and 1777. (1468) Catherine “Katey” married John Amis.  (106) Catherine married first John Amis, second -----Horton, third Robert Julus Baker.  (117)(85) Catherine married 1793 in Tennessee first Robert Julius Baker.  (149) Katherine “Katy” born 1777 who married 1st John Amis and, 2nd Wiley Horton, and 3rd Robert/Julius Bob Baker.  (320) Katherine Bolling married John Amis/Amos (605) Two of James' daughters married wealthy men--- Amis, an early settler at Rogersville, Hawkins, County Tennessee. (1414) Katy, born May 20, 1777, married first to John Amis (son of Thomas Amis founder of  Rogersville Hawkins County, Tennessee who kept the Amos Ledgers recording purchases by ----- and Christopher Bolling about 1787 if my memory serves me). Katy and John had a cattle farm together and John also had interests in a salt mining project in Clay County, Kentucky.  John Amis was shot while in the witness chair (1808 in Clay County, KY -- this is no doubt why she wore a pistol); after his death the Amis family filed suit claiming that Katy and John were never married (although they had 7 kids together) and that his assets belonged to them. I have no idea how the suit was settled. Some good soul should go to the county records and look it up; the suit should provide interesting testimony. (1414) First, the marriage record shows Robert Baker to Caty Bowlin, 24 Feb 1825, Clay County, Kentucky. Caty Amis would not have married second as a Bowlin. She would marry as Caty Amis. (1414) It appears someone found the marriage record for Robert Baker-Caty Bowlin and made a terrible mistake assuming this was Caty Amis and from there made the assumption that Caty Amis must have been a Bowling and that she married Robert Baker after John Amis's death. Totally untrue. (1414)


b.  Mary was born in 1775. (77)(85)(106)(117) Mary was born in North Carolina. (106)(117)(85) Mary married John Gilbert.  (106) Mary Bolling married Dr. John Gilbert.  (117)(85) Mary “Molly” 1779-1846 married John Bige Gilbert. (320) Mary “Mollie” Bowling a young lady of McWhorten, Kentucky married -----Gilbert.  She was a sister of James Bowling (Fh271) an early settler of Clay County, Kentucky  (605) . Two of James' daughters married wealthy men---Gilbert, a senator and the wealthiest man in Clay County, Kentucky.  It was Gilbert who rode all the way from Pineville Kentucky to Richmond Virginia to get a [special] license, then married Mary on horseback [a custom of that era]. (1414) Mary (b1776) who married on Sep. 11, 1804 (others have a different month, but same year) to Rev./Dr. John Bige Gilbert (State Senator 1833-37). This Rev. Gilbert took the 1807 Tax List and I believe the 1810 Census.  He is the one who rode all the way to Richmond for a license then married her on horseback (BFA Newsletter).  (1414)


c.  Levi (Fh4615). (77)(85)(117)  Levi born 1780 who married Mary Polly Asher. (320)


d.  Nancy. (77)(85)  Nancy born c1783 who married John Sizemore.  (106)  Nancy born 1783/88 married John Sizemore. (117)(85) Nancy 1783-c1875 married Rockhouse John Sizemore (320)  Nancy Bolling married 1/h John Amis and 2/h John Sizemore.  She was sister to Mary “Mollie” Bolling.  (605)


e.  Eli (Fh224). (77)(85) Eli born c1785 who married 1806 Sarah Anderson. (106)  Eli born about 1785 who married Sarah (?) Anderson. (117)(85)  Elijah “Bad Eli” born 1785 who married 1st Nancy Anderson and 2nd Mrs.  Nancy (Herd) Wilson.  (320)


f.  William (Fh778). (77)(85) William born Hawkins County, Tennessee who married 1807 Malinda Walters. (106) William who perhaps married 1807 Malind Walters. (117)(85)  William born 1786 who married Sally Bowling daughter William Bowling (Fh744).(320) 


g.  Christopher (Fh1565) was born 1787.  (77)(85)(106)(117)(320) Christopher was born in Hawkins County, Tennessee . (117)(85) Christopher was born in Tennessee.  (77)(85) Christopher married Nancy Baker. (320)(117)(85)(106) Christopher married in 1808.  (106)


h.  James (Fh271) born 1780/81.  (77)(85)  James born 1789.  (106)(286)(320)(117)(85) James born in Tennessee. (117)(85)(77)(85) James married in 1808.  (106) James Bowling married Keziah Lockart.  (286) James married Keziah Lockard (320) James married Kize Lockard.  (117)(85)(106)

   
i.  John (Fh362 or Fh442). (77)(85) John married 1818 Sally Henson.  (106) John who may have married Sarah Henson. (117)(85) John married Susan Napier who was born 1790.  (320)

   
j.  Joseph (Fh451).  (77)(85)(117) Joseph married Nancy Bowling.  (106)(320) Nancy Bowling was the daughter of William Bowling (Fh744).  (320)  Joseph married in 1807. (106)


k.  Catherine was born 1777.  (77)(85)(106)(117)(85)

James Bolling (probably 258e,Fh270,N) and James Bolling (UK) were on the Henry County, Virginia, Tax List 1780.  See place index for others on that tax list. (1414)(1495) A poll taken in Henry County, Virginia, for Thomas Cooper, 9 Apr 1787 shows James Boldin (Fh270), James Edwards, William Bolling (830f), John Bolling (Fh415 or Fh418), Thomas Edwards and Augustine Thomas (Augustine Thomas was distantly related to Ursula Bell who married John Bolling (Fh367)).  (1414) James Bowling was probably a close kinsman of Christopher Bowling of Halifax and Henry Counties, Virginia and Hawkins County, Tennessee.  (7)(77)(85) Many of you are probably aware of the "Blue Fugates" of southeastern Kentucky. Many of the Fugates carried a recessive gene for methemoglobinemia (Trost, 1982). When one of these recessive gene holders married another with the recessive gene, roughly one quarter of their children would have both recessive genes and it would be expressed in that person.  This person would have a blood disorder that caused them to be blue in color. Meeting someone else with this recessive trait is unlikely in modern times, but 200 years ago, with all the inbreeding in the central Appalachians, it wasn't that uncommon. Methemoglobinemia is a trait recognized in Eskimos and Native Americans. The Cherokee had a clan called the Blue or Paint clan and I wonder if it is related to this syndrome. Anyway, several of the Bowling families had this trait. Possible candidates would be..


William "Blue Head Willie" Boling (350m, b. 1806), son of  Rev. Jesse Boling (Fh350).

Jesse "Blue Butt" Bowling (b.ca 1870), md. Sarah Jane Benge. Father was probably William "Blue Buck" Bowling (aka William Cox).


William "Blue Buck" Bowling (b.ca 1838), md. Nancy Catherine Gray. He descends from the James Boling/Sarah Blevins (Fh270) line AND the William "Blackwater Bill" Bolin/Sarah Fugate (Fh744) line.


Each of these people have to have two copies of the gene, one from the mother and one from the father. The reason I bring this up is that it may indicate that these Bolings are related. Jesse (Fh350), James (Fh270) and William (Fh744) are probably brothers. (1468) To date no documented evidence of James Bolling’s parents, birthdate or place has been found. (1414) We know of no earlier publication citing a different birthdate for James Bolling. (1414) . I use James (bca 1756) just to identify him and it probably is within a 10-year range of being correct judging by his daughter, Katy's birthdate, which we do know from Baker's diary. (1414) The 1810 Clay County, Kentucky census information states that he is over 45 at that time. (1414) James Boling (Fh270)
is in the 1810 Census of Clay County, Kentucky with 0 0 1 0 1 - 0 0 0 0 1 - 0. Thus the oldest male was born before 1765. (1473) The Clay County, Kentucky census information suggests that he died there between 1810-20. (1414) One child of James (Fh270) married a Sizemore and they claim Indian-Melungeon heritage, however, I don't believe that James nor William were Melungeons-- I am  talking about William Bolling (Fh744) who married Sally Fugate, daughter of John "Castlewoods" Fugate and James Bolling (Fh270) who married Mary/Sally Blevins, daughter of William Blevins. I believe that this James and William were probably brothers and sons of Christopher Bolling. (1414) William Bolling (Fh744) is shown on the Clay County, Kentucky 1810 census as being about the same age as James (Fh270) and Jesse (Fh350), which gives credence to being brothers and perhaps sons of Benjamin (Fh110). The problem I have with that is I've never found Benjamin living in the same county/area as James! Nor have I found Jesse living near James except when they both moved to Clay County, Kentucky ca 1807-1810 where William, James and Jesse's children intermarried. So what do we have? James named his sons Levi (maybe),  Elijah, William, Christopher, James, and Joseph. Do his children and grandchildren repeat this same naming pattern.... yes, they do. So who were Christopher and Joseph in relation to James (Fh270)??? We can find William, Christopher, James, and Joseph Bolling living next to one another on Pittsylvania County, Virginia 1767 Tithables. But if this is our William and James, we don't know anything about Christopher and Joseph. (1414) We have James' (Fh258) will 1771, Pittsylvania County, Virginia but for Christopher Sr.(Fh1566) we have only circumstantial evidence that James (Fh270) is connected to him; James (Fh270) and Christopher Sr (Fh1566) were both in Montgomery County, Virginia (ca 1780 Oath of Allegiance) at the same time along with the Blevins family.  James (Fh270) married Sarah/Mary Blevins. That of course would not prove conclusively that they were father/son related -- could be uncle/nephew. Having said that, I do not believe that James (Fh270) was the son of James (Fh258) because a younger James was still in the Pittsylvania County, Virginia area some years after Christopher Sr. and James is shown in Montgomery County, Virginia. (1414) What is your documentation for James (Fh270) being a son of Christopher (Fh1566)? [Hazael, the documentation is circumstantial at best; however, here are the bases I use not necessarily in the best order:
1) This is the only line that consistently uses the name of Christopher in their progeny,
2) in Montgomery County, 1782 there is only one Christopher left, while in 1767 there were two; this Christopher is probably Christopher Jr. and too young to likely be James bca 1756' father.... but can't rule him totally out;
3) if we consider James who died in 1771 and Christopher Sr. to have been about the same age, somewhere around 1711,  it is likely that Christopher Sr. died between 1780-1782 when  they both seem to disappear from the lists;
4) we know that James' (bca 1756) brother, William married a Fugate, both William and James bca1756 lived in Clay County, KY, and Christopher appear in Montgomery County, Militia List 1782.
5) Castlewoods, home of the Fugates, was included in Montgomery County, ca 1780-1785;
6) Winston's paternal line is Lockhart and they are found in Montgomery County, at the same time;
7) the Blevins are found in/near Montgomery County, VIRGINIA at this time;
8) the 1767 Pittsylvania Tithables specifically names Christopher and son, William, plus Christopher Jr. and includes the Sizemores, Blevins, Elkins, and others related to them in someway and we know that James (d1771) was there in Pittsylvania Co as well;
9) we know that Christopher and Lydia assigned property to James (d1771) in Cumberland County, about 1743 or so (off the top of my head);
10) we know that in 1792 William and Christopher appear in Amis store in Rogersville to purchase items; Thomas Amis (store owner) was the father-in-law of Katy Bolling, d/o James bca1756. Thomas Amis reared Kathy and John Amis' boys (not girls) after John was shot in the witness chair by Joel Elkins ca1809. James Bolling appears with his family on the 1810 census of Clay County,, KY --- he is not listed on the 1820 census. (1414)
Proven Bad Data

James Bowling was born 1757 in Virginia the son of John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bowling. (320)

5N 271.
James 1789-1870/m1808 Elizabeth "Kize" or Keziah Lockart (1795-1873)--His father was James #270


ab
John b1816/Arrah Asher


a
Peggy

ab
Christopher 1820-1853/Elizabeth Isabell "Ibby" Cornett


ab
Lucinda b1824--unmarried


ab
Thomas J. b1839/Alabama James


a
Children per Source #605 (Dickey Diary)


b
Children per Source #320 (William G. O'Connor)

5N
Fh271
James Bowling was born 1780-81 in Tennessee.  His parents were James Bowling and ----- Blevins(?).  In 1808 he married Elizabeth “Kize” Lockard in Clay County, Kentucky.  (7)(85)  James Bowling married Kize Lockard 1808. (104) James Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Clay County, Kentucky. (104)  James Boling was in the 1810 Census of Clay County, Kentucky. (869) The 1810 Census entry is probably his father James Bowling (Fh270). The oldest male was born before 1765. (1414)  James Bowling was born 1789.  His parents were James and ----- (Blevins) Bowling.  In 1808 James Bowling married Kize Lockard. (106)  James Bolling Jr. was born about 1789 in Tennessee. James Bowling married Kize Lockard. (117)(85) James Bowling was in the 1820 Census of Clay County, Kentucky, with 1 male 26-45, 1 male 10-16, and 3 males under 10, 2 females 16-26, 1 female 10-16, and 2 females under 10. (7) James Bowling (Fh271,son of James Fh270) was in the 1820 Census of Clay County, Kentucky, with 3 1 0 0 1 0 - 2 1 2 0 0 - 0 - 0. 

3—male under 10

1—male 10 to under 16

0—male between 16 and 18

0—male 16 to under 26

1—male 26 to under 45

0—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775

2—female under 10

1—female 10 to under 16

2—female 16 to under 26

0—female 26 to under 45

0—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775


The oldest male was therefore born 1775-1794. (1474) James and Keziah Bowlin had a son Christopher who was born 1820 in Clay County, Kentucky and Christopher died Clay County, Kentucky in 1853, age 33. (316)  James Bowling was born 1789 the son of James and Sarah “Sally” (Blevens) Bowling.  He married 1808 Keziah Lockart the daughter of John Lockart.  They had a son Christopher born about 1820 who married 1851, Clay County, Kentucky, Elizabeth Isabell “Ibby” Cornett.  Christopher died in 1853.  (286)  James Bowling was on the 1808- 10 tax list of Clay County, Kentucky. (253)  James Bowling was born 1789 the son of James and Mary “Polly” (Blevins) Bowling (Fh270).  James Bowling married Keziah Lockard.  They had children: John born 1816 who married Arrah Asher, Christopher born 1820 who married Ibby Cornett, Lucinda born 1824 unmarried, and Thomas J. born 1839 who married Alabama James. (320)  James Bolin Sr. had a Kentucky land warrent 1829 in Clay County, Kentucky. (17)  Jim (called “Big Mouthed”) Bolling was the brother-in-law of Rev. John Gilbert. (605) James Bowling (Fh271) was born 1789 and  died 1870. James Bowling was the son of James and Mary Polly Blevins Bowling. James Bowling’s  wife was Keziah  Lockard was born 1795 and died 1873. James Bowling was born in Tennessee and moved to Clay County, Kentucky, before 1808. Keziah Lockard was born in North Carolina to John Lockard and ?.  James and Keziah were married in Clay County, Kentucky on May 25, 1808 and settled on Red Bird River. They had a son John Bowling. Other children were Peggy, Lutecia (*spelling not sure*), Christopher, Thomas (605) James Bowling moved from Hawkins County, Tennessee, about 1806-07 to Clay County, Kentucky.  He appeared in the 1810 Clay County, Kentucky Census. He died in Clay County, Kentucky. (7)(77)(85)

5N 277. James Marion 1781-1863/1/w m     Anne Pickens b1787—His father was John #418—also see #415




A descendant kit 804 tested into DNA 5




A descendant kit 1788 tested into DNA 5
a
Frances b1811/m     James M. Hill

a
Elizabeth 1811-1861/m      Rev. Hardin Patterson (1809-1893) 

a
Andrew “Andy” Pickens 1812-1874/1/w m      Mary Ann Patterson b1816-1818

2/w m      Mrs. Mary “Polly” Ann Hill

a
John Porter b1815/m    Lucretia Warnock (d>1853-<1860)

a
James R. 1823-1899/m     1/w Susan C. ----- (1834-1886),m 1887 2/w Martha E.Bishop 

a
Robert “Bob” A. bc1829-d1850—died age of 21

a
Daughter /m       Jasper Mink


Daughter/m        ------ Dillard  

a
4 more daughters that died young

2/w    Widow Martha (Wren) Bently d1853

a
Children per Source #1745 and #1746

5N 
Fh277,418i or 415b  
James Marion Bowling (Bolling) was born 1780 in Henry County, Virginia the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bowling). (488) James Bowling was born 1781 the son of John and Rebecca (Rea) Bowling (Fh418). (1745)




A descendant kit 804 tested into DNA 5




A descendant kit 1788 tested into DNA 5
Book K, page 269, 1818, Greenville County, SC
State of South Carolina
Know all men by these presents that we, OBADIAH BOLLING (Fh4667,418d), JOHN BOLLING (Fh416,418e), COLLINS BOLLING (418h), JAMES BOLLING (Fh277,418h), WILLIAM AYRES (Husband of Mary 418e), JOSEPH AYRES (Husband of Elizabeth 418i) & JOHN COOPER (Husband of Nancy 418a), of Greenville district state aforesaid for and in consideration of the sum of Four hundred dollars to us in hand paid by JAMES COOPER, of said state and district have granted, bargained and delivered by these presents do grant bargain sell and deliver unto him the said JAMES COOPER, all that tract of land originally granted to Robert Hazlet lying and being in the district of Greenville on Saluda River Two Hundred and Seventy some acres be the same more or less beginning on….(etc)
To have and to hold all and singular the premises before mentioned to the said JAMES COOPER, to him his heirs and assigns forever……
…witness our hands and seals the nineteenth day of January 1818.
Wit: John Ayres and Robert Alexander
Signed: Obadiah Bolding 
John Bolding

Collins Bolling
James Bolding
Wm. Ayres
Joseph Ayres
John (x) Cooper
State of South Carolina, Greenville District
Personally came by me, Robert Alexander being duly sworn and saith on said oath that he saw Obadiah Bolding, John Bolding, Collins Bolding, James Bolding, William Ayres, Joseph Ayres and John Cooper sign seal and deliver the within deed to James Cooper for the use and purpose within mentioned and that he saw John Ayres sign his name with himself as a subscribing witness sworn to and subscribed the 31 day March 1818.
James Alexander, P. P. Robert Alexander
Recorded 7 Sept 1818. 

James Marion Bolen was a preacher in Alabama in the 1840s and 1850s. In Franklin County, Alabama, records can be found Andrew Bolling/Bolding, James Tarply Bolling/Bolding, and Edgar Tarley Bolling/Bolding and several girls named Martha Bolling in the Cox and Jones families. (1237) The Bolding Bible says, "James Bolding Senr departed this life Mar 27, 1863 aged 81 y 4 m 3 d". From this I calculate his birth to have been Nov. 23, 1781. "James Boland", a 79 year old wheel right born in Virginia, is listed on the 1860 census of Itawamba County, Mississippi living in the home of "James R. Boland " (sic clearly should be James R. Bolding, not Boland). In a letter written June 2, 1922 by James Floyd Bolding, son of James R. Bolding, he says, "My great grandfather came from East Tenn. about 1835 or 40. He settled in north Ala., and married the last time a widow Bentley. He had four sons if I remember right.. John, Andy, my father (James R.) and Bob." Since his father was one of the four sons he obviously was writing about his grandfather, not his great grandfather. James Bolding, Senr., a 69 year old Methodist preacher born in Virginia, is listed on the 1850 census of Franklin County, Alabama with his 57 year old wife Martha. These are the only records I have found of James Bolding, Sr. and I can not be sure that the 69 year old preacher on the 1850 census of Franklin County, Alabama and the 79 year old wheel right on the 1860 census of Itawamba County, Mississippi are the same men. (1746) From the 1860 census we know that James Bolding, Sr. was born in Virginia and from the dates and birthplaces of his children and grand children it appears that he moved to South Carolina before 1811 and then to East Tennessee by 1815. He then moved to Franklin County, Alabama between 1835 and 1840 and apparently lived out the last few years of his life in the home of his son James R. Bolding in Itawamba County, Mississippi. (Note: Itawamba and Tishomingo Counties in Mississippi bordered Franklin County, Alabama and Bear Creek mentioned in one of the letters and some property records where the Bolding families lived crossed thru the junction of these three counties. The part of Itawamba County where the Bolding family lived became Lee County in 1867, so although four counties and two states are involved there were no great distances involved.) (1746) James Bolding, Sr. had four sons: Andrew P. Bolding , John Porter Bolding , James R. Bolding , and Robert Bolding; one daughter Elizabeth Bolding; another daughter (name unknown) who married Jasper Mink. In addition there were four unknown daughters and possibly other children who died young. (1746) "James Bolling" is listed on page 188 of the 1830 census of McMinn County, Tennessee. His age is given as 40 - 50. There is one female age 15 - 20 listed; one male age 15 - 20 and one male age 10 - 15. There are no males listed between 5 and 10 but two are listed under age 5. . The complete listing of the James Bolling family on the 1830 census is: 
  

2 males under 5 1 female under 5 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1 female 5 - 10 

1 male 10 - 15 1 female 10 - 15 

1 male 15 - 20 1 female 15 - 20 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1 female 20 - 30 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1 female 30 - 40 
1 male 40 - 50 - - - - - - - - - - - - 
(1746) James Bolding of McMinn Co., TN, testified in a case of the June term of the 1825 court of bordering Roane County, TN. (1746) 

5U1 296. James Pleasants 1799-1879/m1818 Elizabeth Gibson (1797-1870)--His father was John #416


a
James Pleasants b1819


a
Franklin b1820


a
Harrison b1822


a
John Alden b1823




Descendant Kit 4832 tested into DNA 5


a
William Wesley 1825-1904/m     Mary Louisa Glenn


a
Atalissa b1830


a
Enoch Blair b1832


a
Wesley Washington (twin) 1836-1918


a
Calvin Powhatan (twin) b1836


a
Marion Joseph b1839


a
Elizabeth Caroline "Callie" b1841


a
Pinkney b1842


a
Children per Source #1698

5U1
Fh296
James Pleasant Bolling was the son of John Tarpley Bolling (Fh416). (253) James Pleasants Bolling was born 6 Apr 1799 in Sullivan county, Tennessee, the son of John Tarpley Bolling and Mary Pleasants. (1698) James Pleasants Bolling married Elizabeth Gibson April 30, 1818 in Pendleton County, South Carolina. (1698) See the family group for their children. Descendant Kit 4832 tested into DNA 5 (1698) The first two of their children were born in Pendleton County, South Carolina (b1819-1820). The rest of their children (b1822-1842) were born in Franklin County, Alabama. (1698) James Pleasant Bolling had a son Wesley Washington Bolling born 1836 in Franklin County, Alabama. (253) James Pleasants Bolling died June 15, 1879 in Monroe County, Mississippi and is buried there at the Hattey Cemetery. (1698)

5F 300.
James c1767-1843/1/w mc1794 Jennet Ferguson--He had a brother William #904a--His father was 
William #904



Daniel 1798-1869/m1821 Rachel Calloway--See Family Group #159




A descendant's Kit 99999 tested into DNA 5



2/w mc1802 Lucretia Bell



John A. 1809-1883/m1832 Sarah Robinson



Margaret 1813-1878/mc1830 Edward Robinson



Sarah "Sally" Ann b1814/m<1835 Alexander B. Campbell



Mary b1816/m1842 John L. Bethea



Flora 1817-1854



William 1820-1887/m1846 Mary P. McClean or McLean



Thomas 1822-1875/m1850 Sophia McClean or McLean



Malcolm 1825-1889

5F
Fh300
James Bolin was born in Scotland about 1767. (244)(430)(1044) James Bolin was born 1770 in Scotland. (31) James Bolin was born 1767 in Kentyre Scotland. (371) James Bolin was born in Kintyre Scottland, 1767, died in Cumberland County, North Carolina, January 4, 1843. Source: North Carolina Scottish Ancestry, S. Buie, Ft. Worth, 1992. (1693) I'm skeptical that he was from Scotland.  Why? This family relates to the Betheas/Betheys -- who connect to Yvonne's Williams line. Yvonne's Bollings are descendants of James d1771-Pittsylvania. The Betheas originated in the southeast part of Virginia. I do think they intermarried with a group of Scotish immigrants who settled in that area who were directly related to the Bonnie Prince Charles in some manner. (1414) James Bolin married 1st about 1794 ----- Ferguson in North Carolina. (244)(1044)  Her first name may have been Jennet, see below.  (371)  James Bolin had a brother William Bolin. (430) James Bolin in 1794 was an heir in his brother William Bolin’s estate in Cumberland County, North Carolina. The will was witnessed by Nancy Bolen. (7)(371) In 1798 James Bolin added to the land left to him by his brother William Bolin by buying land from John Clark on the Cape Fear River. (430) Between 1790 and 1800 James Bolin married and had a son Daniel (Fh159), then his wife died. (430) James Bolin had a son Daniel Bolin born 1798 in Cumberland County, North Carolina. Son Daniel Bolin married 1821 Rachel Calloway in Jasper County, Georgia. (371) James Bolin was in Cumberland County, North Carolina in 1800 in household 376 with 10010-00000-40. (9)(1303)  James Bolin married 2rd Lucretia Bell about 1802 in North Carolina. (244)(1044) James Bolin born 1767 of North Carolina married Lucretia Bell. (2074, Vol. 6) Lucretia Bell was born 1784 in North Carolina. (371) After 1800 James Bolin married Lucretia -----. They had eight children. The Bolins must have lived in the part of Cumberland County, North Carolina, that later became Harnett County. (430) James Bolin was in MacCranie’s District, Cumberland County, North Carolina in 1810 in household 263.(9) In 1815 the Presbyterian Church of Averasbore was organized by members of the mother church at Barbecue and Bluff. James Bolin is listed as a charter member in a History of Harnett County, North Carolina. (430) James Bolin died in 1843. (244) James Bolin died 1843 in Cumberland County, North Carolina. (1044)  James Bolin had a will 1841 in Cumberland County, North Carolina. It named his wife Lucretia, and sons Daniel, John, William, Thomas and Malcom. It also named daughters Margaret, Sally Ann, Mary and Flora. (7) I have a copy of the will of James Bolin and he names his children. (371) In James Bolin’s will he spoke of his home as “The Mansion House”. (430) A descendant of Daniel Bolin (Fh159) son of James Bolin, found the gravestone of James Bolin in the Harnet County area. He gave us a rubbing of it. (430) James Bolin was buried in the Buies Creek Cemetery. There are about 8 graves in the Bolin section, which appear to be the oldest graves in the cemetery. One stone was Flora (James’s daughter) died 17 July 1854.  One stone was James Bolin. One stone said 1795 and I believe the name was William (James’s brother).  One stone said “Jennet Bolin decesd (sic) August 13, 1798”. This was probably the first wife of James who died after the birth of their son Daniel Bolin (Fh159). (371)

5M9 301.

James bc1756-1820/mc1776 Sarah Rea-alive 1788 (and perhaps m1781 Sarah Carter)--His father was James #258


  a
James 1775-1861/m1801 Elizabeth Morrison (1778->1820)-See Family Group #302


  a 
Marvel or Marvil b1780-1855/m1801 1/w Sarah "Salley" Wright--See Family Group #4653


*a
Gabriel 1784-1868/m1813 Elizabeth Tuggle--See Family Group #232


*
Markus bc1786/mc1805 Elizabeth Wright--See Family Group #4635


*
Children per source #961


a
Children per source #1155

5M9
Fh301
James Bowling was born 1735 (sic, probably 1756).  Capt. James Bowling was in the Revolutionary War.  James Bowling married about 1781 Miss ----- Carter of Amherst County, Virginia.  They had two sons:  Gabriel born about 1784 who went to North Carolina and nothing further is known of him; Markus (Fh4635) born about 1786 who married about 1805 Miss Elizabeth Wright. (961) A descendant of Markus Bowling told me that Marcus and Marvel/Marvil were the same man. (1310) James Bowling (Fh301) born 1735 (sic) married Ruth Carter per www/worldconnect.rootsweb.com . They were supposed to have been married 1781 in Amherst County, Virginia. Three offspring listed: James Bowling (Fh302) born 1775 and died July 21, 1861 in Patrick County, Virginia; Marvel Bowling (Fh4653) born 1780 Virginia and died 1855 Mercer County, Virginia (now West Virginia); and Gabriel Bowling (Fh232) born 1784 Amherst County Virginia, and died about 1868 in Floyd County, Virginia. (1155) The information about James Bolling and Ruth Carter is mostly made up from a manuscript written in 1934 by Rufus Bird (a Marvel Bowling descendant).  Bird himself admitted to giving James Bolling's wife the first name "Ruth" because "this name antedates all aristocratic names." (698 from an email from Daniel Garnet Bowling) Obituary of son James Bowlin (Fh302.M9), Patrick County, Virginia - Death of James Bowlin, Date of death: 21 July 1861 Patrick County, Virginia at age 90. (i.e. born about 1771), Parents: James and Sarah Bowlin. Wife: Elizabeth Morrison, daughter of Thomas Morrison b. 1745 d. abt 1802 Patrick Couty, Virginia and Rebecca. Daughter: Mary Atkins. (1155) Presumably the parents of James (Fh302) born 1775 were James Bowling and Sarah, but which Sarah. Is this Sarah an unknown, perhaps Rea, who married as the first wife of James Bolling (Fh301) 1756 - 1820. This James married Sarah/Ruth Carter as second wife? (1155)

5M9 302. James 1775-1861/m1801 Elizabeth Frances "Franky" Morrison (1778->1820)-His father was James 
#301 A descendant kit 2247 tested into DNA 5

  a
John 1794-1851/m1815 Lucy Clay bc1793-d>1860—See Family Group #446




A descendant kit 33589 tested into DNA 5



  a
Thomas  /m1817 Polly Smith—had two daughters

*ab
Mary bc1801-1882/m     Brice Atkins


*ab
Nancy 1803-1858—never married but had children


*ab
James Luke bc1806/m1835 1/w Sally Nowlin, m1838 2/w Sarah Huckleberry


*ab
William Green 1809-1859/m1833 Nancy E. Moles bc1813

 


A descendant kit 22688 tested into DNA 13

   b
Sirena b1810 unmarried but had a son

*ab
Lucy 1816-1859/m       Elisha Anglin


*ab
Obediah C. 1815-d>1880/m1837 Ann R. Wells


  a
Frances 1817-<1860/m1844 William W. Hall 


*
The 1820 Patrick County, Virginia Census. Son William from Source #1230

a
Children per Source #1988

b
Children per Source #1803 (Informant Diane Jones)

5M9
Fh302
James Bowling (Fh302) was born 1775, the son of James Bowling. (1155) James Bowling (Fh302,M9) was the son of James & Sarah Bowlin. (1155) James Bolling (Fh302, 5M9) parents were James and Sarah Bolling (Fh301, 5M9). (1673) James Boling, born about 1771 possibly in Pittsylvania County, Virginia, (his death record lists his birthplace as Patrick County, but Patrick County wasn’t founded until 1791 from Henry County, which was founded from Pittsylvania County in 1777). He was the son of James and Sarah Boling. (1988) Presumably the parents of James (Fh302) born 1775 were James Bowling and Sarah, but which Sarah? Is this Sarah an unknown, perhaps Rea, who married as the first wife of James Bolling (Fh301) 1735 - 1820. This James married Sarah/Ruth Carter as second wife? (1155) James Bowlin was born about 1770, probably in Virginia. (1310) James Bowling was born 1775 (1230) Presumably the parents of James born in 1775 were James Bowling and Sarah, but which Sarah. Is this Sarah Watkins who married James Bowling b. August 10, 1734 (Thomas of the Swan line); or is this Sarah an unknown who married as the first wife of James Bolling b.1735 - 1880. This James married Ruth Carter as second wife? (1155) On James Bowling's death record, his parents are listed as James and Sarah Bowlin. (1310)

Marriage and Children

James Bolling married 1801 Elisabeth Morrison in Patrick County, Virginia. (1213) James Bolling (Fh302, 5M9) married Elizabeth Morrison 1801, Patrick County, Virginia. (1673)  James married (1) Frances surname currently unconfirmed. Popular belief is that James Boling, born 1771, married first Elizabeth Morrison in January 1801and that her name was Elizabeth Francis and she went by the name Francis/Frankie. However based on Patrick County, Virginia, personal property tax lists James had at least one son, and possibly a second son born before 1800, and there were two men named James Bowling living in Patrick County, Virginia, in 1800, and another living in Henry County, Virginia. So which James Boling married Elizabeth Morrison?Also Patrick County death register entries for two of James’s daughters list their mother as Frances and daughter Nancy’s birthplace is listed twice as Henry County. From 1798 through 1803, a James Boling lived in both Patrick County and one lived in Henry County. So it’s possible that James Boling, born 1771, married before 1800 to Frances possibly in another county, or his first wife may have died and he married Elizabeth Morrison. A James Bowlen married Frankey Dyer on 29 August 1815 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. This Frankey is ruled out as a possible stepmother of Nancy and Lucy Bowling as Frankey Dyer was underage (not yet eighteen) when she married in 1815 with her father giving his consent. This puts her birth date after 1797. Based on the 1820, 1830, and 1840 censuses, James Boling’s wife was born in the early 1770s. There is a marriage for a James Bolton to Fanny Clarkson 1 October 1785 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. This also can’t be the James and Franky Bolling of Patrick County, since this James was only about 14 years old in 1785. There is no marriage for James Bolling/variants in published Henry County, Virginia marriage records. In fact the only marriages found were for several Bouldin’s and a Fanny and Leanner Bolling. So at this time it appears the identity of James Boling’s first wife is unknown. In studying James Boling and his children, it appears most if not all of the family members could sign their names, and when they signed their names they spelled it BOLING. (1988)
James Bowling married in 1801 Elizabeth Morrison (daughter of William Morrison) who was born in 1778.  This marriage took place in Patrick County, Virginia. (1230) See Family Group for their children. (1230)(1988) James Bowling married 1801 Elizabeth Morrison.  The marriage record of that particular James shows that he was born in 1775, married 30th day (month was not readable) 1801 to Elizabeth Morrison in Patrick County, Virginia.  Elizabeth was the daughter of William Morrison. Elizabeth born 1778. (1230) James Bowlin married Elizabeth Morrison in Patrick County, Virginia in 1801. (1310)  James & Elizabeth had several children, but I know two of the daughters were named Lucy and Mary. Mary married an Atkins.  Lucy never married. I think these girls can be added to the family group but I do have to voice one concern.  In both of these women's death record, their mother was listed as Frances or Franky.  My opinion is that Elizabeth Morrison's name was Elizabeth Frances and she went by her middle name. Unfortunately, I have no proof, but at least I have not found any record of James remarrying. According to Mary's death record, she was born ca 1800, so I think she was probably the daughter age 19 listed in the 1820 census. Lucy was probably the daughter born ca 1810. I think it is reasonable to assume that James (Fh302) is the son of James (Fh301), as both Gabriel and Marvel ended up in the same area as James Fh302. One reason being that the death date listed for James (Fh302) in Patrick County, Virginia is 21 Jul 1861, also according to the death record, he was born about 1770. According to census records, his wife died between 1840 and 1850 (I'm assuming it was still Elizabeth Morrison), but the county had not started keeping death records then, so I'll have to look for that data elsewhere. This family (?) appeared on the Patrick County, Virginia census in 1840, but by 1850 they were gone to WV (I think).(1310) James Bowling (Fh302,M9) married January 30, 1801 Patrick County, Virginia to Elizabeth Morrison b. 1778, daughter of Thomas Morrison and Rebecca. (1155)

Identified children:

1.
John—See John (Fh446)

2.
Thomas—see write-up on Thomas 302b. (1988)
3.
William G. Bowling (302e,M9) b. 1809 Patrick County,, Virginia married Aug 15, 1833 Nancy E. Moles b. 1815 Patrick County,, Virginia d. Jan 27, 1885 Patrick County,, Virginia, cause unknown, d/o James & Jo Moles. (1155) William G. Bowling born in 1809 in Patrick County, Virginia. William G. Bowling married Nancy E. Moles, born 1813 on August 15 1833 in Patrick County, Virginia. Nancy E. Moles was the daughter of Joseph Moles.(1230) William G. Bolling married Aug 15, 1833 Nancy Moles, Surety William Keith. Minister Joshua Adams. (1155) William G. Boling, born 1809 probably in Patrick County, VA; died between 1850-1860 in either Patrick or Henry County, VA. According to information submitted to Ancestry.com’s World Tree Project by Harry Owen Martin, William Green Bowling was born 18 September 1809 in Henry County, Virginia; died 10 May 1859, Patrick County, Virginia. William married Nancy Moles 15 August 1833 in Patrick County, VA. On 23 May 1843 William leased a log cabin and around five or six acres of land on the waters of Blackberry Creek and Smith River in Patrick County, Virginia, from James Rangeley. The lease was for a term of ten years beginning 23 May 1843, at a yearly rate of 25 cents. It was unlawful for William or his heirs to assign the lease over to anyone else without Mr. Rangeley’s permission. William signed his name Wm. G. Boling. Ancestry.com World Tree Project submitted information states William was the son of James Bolling and Elizabeth Frances ‘Franky’ Morrison. (1988)

4.
Mary Bowling married Mr. Atkins (302a,M9). (1155) Mary Boling born 1800-1801 in Virginia; died after 1861; married Brice Atkkins after 22 March 1825 and by 1829 probably in Patrick County, Virginia, although no marriage record has been found in Patrick County, Virginia. On 22 October 1853 James Bolling sold to Booker W. Adkins [sic] 64 acres of land in Patrick County, Virginia that James first purchased from the descendants of Jesse Corn in 1818. Booker paid James $172 (amount may have been $122). (1988) When Mary Atkins (302a, 5M9) died 1882, age 82, her death certificate stated her parents were James and Franky Bolling. (1673)
5. Nancy Boling, born 1803 in Henry County, Virginia; died 5 October 1858 in Floyd County, Virginia. (1988) I think Nancy Bolling, born 1803 Henry County, Virginia who died 1858 in Floyd County, Virginia, had sisters Lucy Bolling and Mary Atkins (302a, 5M9). (1673) 

6. James Luke Bowling, born between 1805-1810 probably in Patrick County; Virginia married Sally Nowlin, the end of March or the beginning of April 1825 in Patrick County, Virginia. In March 1826 James Leah [sic] Bolling appeared in a Patrick County, Virginia, court wishing to be considered for “one of the Commonwealths justices of the peace of Patrick County.” Also appearing in court with James as his sureties were Jesse Corn, Jeremiah Burnett, Edmund McAlexander, Jesse Chany, and “Marvill” Bolling. James paid $50, and the other men $10, and James L. Bolling was acknowledged a Patrick County, Justice of the Peace.
 Sometime after 1831 James L. Bolling and family moved and by 1840 were living in Washington County, Indiana. According to Ancestry.com public member trees, James’s wife Sally died, and he then married Sarah Huckleberry 8 April 1838 in Washington County, Indiana. (1988) 

7. Lucy Boling, born 1811-1812 in Patrick County, Virginia; died 11 April 1859 in Patrick County, Virginia. It appears that Lucy, like Nancy, never married. In 1839, 1840, and 1841 Lucy was taxed in Patrick County, Virginia, for one horse. On 27 December 1850 Lucy purchased for $65 about 100 acres in Patrick County, Virginia, on the north side of Bull Mountain, from the heirs of Dandridge Slaughter; his widow Susan Slaughter, and B.A. and Judah Burnett. (1988) When Lucy died 1859, age 43 her daughter Catherine stated that her mother's parents were James and Frances Bolling. (1673) 
8. Obediah Boling, born 1815/1816 in Patrick County, Virginia; married Ann R. Wells December 1837 in Henry County, Virginia; In 1835 Obediah was a surety on the marriage bond of Andrew W. “Bolen,” Obediah did not sign his name but left his mark. In November 1851 Obediah and Ann sold 47 acres located in Patrick and Henry counties, Virginia, for $166.25 to James M. Morris, this time Obediah signed his name O.C. Boling. Obediah’s occupation listed in the 1850 through 1880 censuses was blacksmith. (1988)

9. Frances Boling, born 1817, Virginia; died possibly before 1860; married William W. Hall, 4 July 1844 in Patrick County, Virginia. Originally I thought that Frances was the daughter of Thomas and Polly Boling, but after I reviewed censuses it appears that she was probably the daughter of James Boling. According the1820 census living in James Boling’s household was a female born between 1810-1820. In the 1830 census an unknown female born between 1815-1820 lived in his household and then in the 1840 census an unknown female born between 1810-1820 was in the residence. At the time of Frances’s marriage, James Boling, along with William W. Hall posted the marriage bond on 3 July 1844. (1988)
Movement

James Bolling Sr. and Jr. were on the 1810 (and 1821) tax list of Patrick County, Virginia.  Also on that tax list were Thomas Bowlin, Thomas Bowlin J.C. and Marvel Bolling. (7)(380) The family is in the 1820 Patrick County, Virginia Census. (1230) James Bowling (Fh302,M9) born 1775.(1155) 
Death
James Bowling (Fh302,M9) died July 21, 1861 Patrick County, Virginia. (1155) When James Bolling (Fh302, 5M9) died in Patrick County, Virginia, 1861, age 90, the information given for him was by Mary Atkins, daughter (302a, 5M9). (1673) From "Patrick County, Virginia. Death Records 1854-1870.
James Bowlin married January 30, 1801. (1155) James Boling died on 21 July 1861 in Patrick County, Virginia. (1988) Obituary of son James Bowlin (Fh302.M9), Patrick County, Virginia - Death of James Bowlin, Date of death: 21 July 1861 Patrick County, Virginia at age 90. (i.e. born about 1771), Parents: James and Sarah Bowlin. Wife: Elizabeth Morrison, daughter of Thomas Morrison b. 1745 d. abt 1802 Patrick Couty, Virginia and Rebecca. Daughter: Mary Atkins. (1155)
Date of death: 21 July 1861 Patrick County,, VIRGINIA. Age 90. (1155)
Parents: James and Sarah Bowlin. (1155)
Wife: Elizabeth Morrison, d/o Thomas Morrison b. 1745 d. abt. 1802 Patrick
County,, VIRGINIA & Rebecca b. 1750. (1155)

5M9
302b 
Thomas Bowling/Boling was listed in the Bounty Land and Pension file for the War of 1812.  He married 1817 Polly Smith in Patrick County, Virginia.  She was alive 1879 in Patrick County, Virginia. Thomas Bowling/Boling died 1831 in Wythe County, Virginia. (934)(935)(967) Thomas Boling served in John A. Corns' Company of the Virginia Militia in the War of 1812. His wife was Polly Smith.  His pension number was WC-27009. (935) Thomas Boling, born between 1794-1804 probably Virginia. Thomas may have died before 1830 possibly in Virginia since he does not appear in the 1830 census; married Polly Smith 6 April 1817 in Patrick County, Virginia. Based on personal property tax lists for Patrick County, Virginia it is believed that Thomas was the son of James in 1816 there were two males over age 16 living in James Bolling’s household. In 1817 there was only one male over 16 in James’s household, and one male over 16 in Thomas Bolling Jr.’s household. John Boling, along with Dandridge Slaughter, witnessed the marriage permission statement by Polly’s mother, Sarah Smith on 3 March 1817. Thomas Boling and John Boling posted the marriage bond for Thomas’s marriage and both men signed their name Boling. No additional information is currently known about Thomas Bolling. In 1850 a Mary “Bowlin,” age 48 was living with the Leonard and Nancy Fitzgerald family. Could this Mary be the widow of Thomas Boling? Mary and Polly are interchangeable names, and her age is about right. She doesn’t fit into any other Boling family in the area, and Nancy Fitzgerald’s maiden name was Smith, the same maiden name as Thomas’s widow. (1988)

Assumed children of Thomas & Polly:

unknown female BOLING, b. between 1810-1820.

unknown female BOLING, b. between 1810-1820. (1988)

5L 345.
Jesse 1759-1815/m1785 Susan or Sarah Robertson/Robinson (1769-1813)--was “of England” --His father 
was William #894




A descendant kit 2051 tested into DNA 5



A descendant kit 12454 tested into DNA 5


William b1786 or 1791-1857/1/w ----- ----- 2/w m1813 Elizabeth Perdue--See Family Group 



#865



Thomas b1788



John "Jack" 1799-1877/m1820 Sarah "Sallie" Walker (1804-1892)--See Family Group #378



Dorcas b1792--never married



Nancy b1794/m Hiram Burgess



Virginia b1797/m Joe Crawford



Betty "Betsey" b1799

5L
Fh345
Jesse Bowling was probably born about the year 1754.  (322) Jesse Bolling was born 1759. (199) Jesse Bowling was born 1759 in Virginia. (7)(167) Jessie c1754-1815 (Fh345,was family L) and wife Sarah/Susan Robertson matches the James bc1756 (Fh270,N) DNA number 12/12 (575658544575). (698) As the story goes, Jesse Bowling was kidnapped in England and brought to America prior to the Revolution in 1775.  (322)(873) Jesse Bowling married 1785 Susan Robertson/Robinson in Cumberland County, Virginia. (7)(167) We believe Jesse (Fh345,5L) was a brother to Thomas Bolling (894a) who married Agnes unknown.... both sons of William Bolling (Fh894) and Ann Unknown of Cumberland Co., VA.  Ann, the widow, married secondly to Francis Amos, a neighbor. (1414) Jesse Bolling married Sarah Robinson.  (199) Jesse Bolling married Sarah Robertson 1785 Cumberland County, Virginia.  (7) They had children:


a.  Thomas (7)(167) Thomas settled on Twelve Pole in Wayne County, West Virginia (359)

     
b.  John (Fh378) married Sarah Walker (7)(167) John married Sallie Walker and settled on the Bluestone, near Spanishburg.  John Bowling reared a large family who lived in Mercer and Summers Counties, West Virginia, nearly all living in Mercer. (359) 


c.  William (Fh865) born 1791 who married 1813 Elizabeth Perdue (7)(167) William  married a Perdue (359)


d.  Dorcas (7)(167) Dorcas who never married (359)


e.  Nancy (7)(167) Nancy married Hiram Burgess (359)


f.  Virginia (7)(167) Virginia married Joe Crawford (359)

    
g.  Betty (7)(167) Betsey (359) 

Jesse was a private in the 2rd Virginia.  He was in Company 5 as it stood at muster 1777.  (7)(167)(353) Personal ID:  VA07091                  

Jesse Bowling

Rank: Private

Rank Type: Rank and file

State: Virginia

Regiment: 2 Virginia

Division:  3rd Division

Brigade:  2nd Virginia Brigade

Company: Jones (Hoomes)

Monthly Status Data  

December 1777: Fit for duty

January 1778: Fit for duty

February 1778: Fit for duty

March 1778 Fit for duty

April 1778: Fit for duty

May 1778: Fit for duty

June 1778: Fit for duty. (1414) 

Jesse was a Private in the Revolutionary War from Virginia. (199) Jesse fought on the side of the colonies in the Revolutionary War. (322)(873) A year or so after the close of the war Jesse married a woman by the name of Robertson and settled in Campbell County, Virginia, near what is now called Lynchburg.  They had five children and we have no record. (322) Jesse Bolwing moved to Giles County, Virginia, from the part of Bedford County, Virginia, that later became Campbell County, Virginia. (873)  Jessie Bowling was the original Bowling ancestor.  He was kidnapped in England and brought to Maryland.  He remained there until the Revolution, volunteered in the Continental Army for six months, and continued in the active service until the close of the war.  He come to Lynchburg after the revolution, married Sarah Robinson, and then settled on Wolf Creek, in Giles County, where he reared a family of seven children. (359) Jesse (Fh345,L) was from Cumberland County, Virginia . Jesse came home from the war, married Sara Robertson, and claimed his right to western land.  I believe his progeny has been traced.  I  checked the VIRGINIA GAZETTE index at the William & Mary College archives.  I found that Jesse of Cumberland County was placed in the Williamsburg jail and charged with the theft of a horse.  I don't know if he was convicted. (339) The Cumberland County, Virginia, Jesse Bolling (Fh345,L) has an interesting background if the various reports involving his name are correct; i.e., his being kidnapped in London and brought to Maryland or Virginia as part of a ship's crew in 1775.  At least two family groups appear to confirm their connection to him in that context.  Quite by chance I discovered the Virginia Gazette account of Jesse of Cumberland being placed in the jail at Williamsburg and charged with the theft of a horse.  His marriage is on record and signed with his mark.  So how did he locate with the other Cumberland County Bolling? (339) The 1779  Petition of Littleton Parish of Cumberland County, Virginia. The original manuscript does indeed show both Thomas Boling (894a) and Jesse Boling (Fh345) in 1779 signing this petition. (1414) My late brother, Guy, began collecting information on Jesse.  Guy was in correspondence with Mrs. Mary (J.H.) Meade. I have the copy of her letter to him dated March 5.1957.  With reference to Jesse Bolling/Bowlin she wrote that he was " ... supposed to have been kidnapped in England and brought to Md. (Maryland?) -- is supposed to be the ancestor of the Princeton Bowlings".  Her reference to the Princeton Bowlings means the vicinity of Bluefield, West Virginia and across the state line, Tazewell County, Virginia.  I know that a Bowling from Tazewell was not "one of us", i.e. not related to Benjamin (Fh110). (339) In the trial of the case of the Commonwealth against Peter Dingess on indictment for selling spiritous liquors, the following jury was empaneled and sworn on this date: Samuel Cecil, Archibald Marrs, John Chapman, John Hale, Isaac French, Charles Hale, John King, Jesse Bowling, Nimrod Smith, James Coply, James Rowe Jr, and Tunis Muncy. The jury on the same date returned into court with the following verdict “We the jury find the defendant not guilty”. Nov. 11, 1806. (Giles Co VA, Justices’ Ct. Min. Bk. 1, page 45.) (1414)
5N 362.
John bc1790/Susan Napier b1790--His father was James #270



Stokley b1827/Sintha Jones



John b1837



Alsey b1839

5N 
Fh362 
John Bowling was the son of James (Fh270) and Mary "Polly" (Blevins) Bowling.  He married Susan Napier who was born 1790.  They had children: Stokley born 1827 who married Sintha Jones, John born 1837, and Alsey born 1839. (320)  John Bolling, son of James (224a) and Mahala (Wilson) Bolling, married Susan Napier. (605)

5L 378.
John 1799-1877/m1820 Sarah "Sallie" Walker (1804-1892)--His father was Jesse #345 


*
William Anderson 1827/28/31-d>1880/m1856 Demarus White b1825-d>1880 


*
Charles A.  1832-1911/m1857 1/w Lucy M. Brammer 1836-1902




2/w m      Sarah A. Lourinda Lovins 1836-1882


*
Nancie/ Nancy W. bc1841-1900/m      Thomas Lilly 


*
Wilson Lee 1835/37/38-1921—Single in 1880 Census 


*
Jesse Ingraham 1837/8-1921/m1861 Sarah Jane Karnes 1848-1922


*
Thomas Jefferson 1840-1924/m1865 Virginia Frances “Jenny” Karnes 1847-1928


*
Sarah Elizabeth Jane 1842-1917/m1865 Greenville Campbell Bailey 1841-1928/9


*
Children per Source #1555 (Informant Ernest Clyde Bowling)

5L 
Fh378
John Bowling was born 1799 the son of Jesse Bowling (Fh345). (1555) John Bowling (Fh378) married Sarah Walker (7)(167) John married Sallie Walker and settled on the Bluestone, near Spanishburg.  John Bowling reared a large family who lived in Mercer and Summers Counties, West Virginia, nearly all living in Mercer. (359) John Bowling died in 1850. (1555) John Bowling married Sarah Walker (1804-1892). (1555) See his family group for their children. (1555) Widow Sarah Bowling is in the 1880 Census of Mercer County, now West Virginia, as was son William:

	Household Record

	 1880 United States Census 


	 

	
	Search results |  Download 

	Previous Household   

	Next Household 



	




	 
	Household:
 Name 
Relation
Marital Status
Gender
Race
Age
Birthplace
Occupation
Father's Birthplace
Mother's Birthplace
 Sarah BOWLING 

 Self 

 W 

 Female 

 W 

 76 

 WV 

 Keeps House 

 VA 

 VA 

 Wilson L. BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 42 

 WV 

 Farming 

 VA 

 WV 

 John DAVIS 

 Other 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 20 

 WV 

 Works Farm 

 --- 

 WV 



Source Information:
 

Census Place
Rock, Mercer, West Virginia

 

Family History Library Film  

1255408
 

NA Film Number  

T9-1408

 

Page Number  

77B      



	Household Record

 1880 United States Census 

 

Search results |  Download 

Previous Household   

Next Household 






	 
	Household:
 Name 
Relation
Marital Status
Gender
Race
Age
Birthplace
Occupation
Father's Birthplace
Mother's Birthplace
 William A. BOWLING 

 Self 

 M 

 Male 

 W 

 52 

 WV 

 Farming 

 VA 

 WV 

 Demarris BOWLING 

 Wife 

 M 

 Female 

 W 

 53 

 WV 

 Keeps House 

 VA 

 WV 

 John E. BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 22 

 WV 

 Works Farm 

 WV 

 WV 

 Barber B. BOWLING 

 Son 

 M 

 Male 

 W 

 21 

 WV 

 Works Farm 

 WV 

 WV 

 James H. BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 19 

 WV 

 Works Farm 

 WV 

 WV 

 Watson BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 18 

 WV 

 Works Farm 

 WV 

 WV 

 Amy BOWLING 

 DauL 

 M 

 Female 

 W 

 16 

 WV 

 Works In House 

 WV 

 WV 



Source Information:
 

Census Place
Rock, Mercer, West Virginia

 

Family History Library Film  

1255408
 

NA Film Number  

T9-1408

 

Page Number  

77B



5 411.
John bc1785-d<1860/Martha -------- (bc1794/1800-d>1860)-- may have been a brother or cousin of Charles Boling 
(b1799,1564a,5)

*ab
Louisa bc1815-d>1880/never married--She had a son William Henry Harrison Boling. 





She & Louis Latham are named as parents of Wm Henry Harrison Boling




b 1 Jun 1844 – per death certificate of William Henry Harrison Boling.  

  ab
Sallie b1820/Joseph Eversole-(See 437b,3U3)


*ab
Nancy b1820-d>1900-never married- had 1 daughter Candace c1848. Bastardy bond Randolph Co 




NC Nancy Boling/Cummin King, 1848 female child born.


Susan b1825


*  
Westwood bc1826-d1863/4 (Civil War)-- moved to Owen County, Indiana

*ab
Mary Ann bc1831-d>1850/m      Luther ------, or perhaps, her cousin Charles Boling -- moved to near 



Vandalia, Owen County, Indiana with brother Neal



  ab
Neal-- moved to near Vandalia, Owen County, Indiana with sister, Mary Ann


*  b  
Mattie/Martha bc1833-d>1850->1860

*
In the household of John in 1850 Census Randolph, NC, this per source #942 (Informant Ora Callicott).




See Source #1049 for more information.


a
Children per Source #1233 (World Family Tree, by Family Tree Maker, Vol. 2 (1997) Entry made by 
Ann Hancy, 24 Highpoint Drive, Gulf Breeze, FL, 32561, annwmshancy@bellsouth.net, (2002) 
Descendant of Robert Fh514, 6M19.

b
Copy of letter from David W. Bolen, Hillsville, Virginia, 22 Mar 1923 to Flanders Boling, Esq., 



Vallonia, Indiana: under the family of John Boling is listed his children including: "Sallie, Mattie, 



Louisa, and Nancy remained in North Carolina, but Nancy never married. Mary Ann, and her brother, 


Neal, went
to Ind. about a hundred years ago, [Linda’s note: c1823] and it is believed they settled in 



Owen County, Indiana. It is believed she married a Luther, or perhaps, her cousin Charles Boling."

A different John 6S Fh407 was in Randolph County, North Carolina. Some have mixed the two families.
5 Fh411 
John Boling was born about 1785, based on Census data. (1785) John Boling (Fh411,5) may have been a brother or cousin of Charles Boling (b1799,1564a,5). (Informant Linda Boling) John Boling died after the 1 Jun 1860 census. Wife Martha ------  born about 1794/1800 and died after the 1 Jun 1860 census (1785) Their children were:

a.
Louisa was born about 1815, North Carolina, she remained single but had one son William Henry Harrison Boling born 1 Jun 1844. She would be about 29 at William Henry Harrison's birth. (1785) John Boling's daughter, Louisa (Louiza) had a son as an unwed mother, William Henry Harrison Boling (born1844) (called Harrison). Harrison is the direct male line to my husband--my husband's DNA, as expected, was not a Bowling DNA. (Informant Linda Boling)


Other Census data:

1850 Louisa is age 35


1860 Louisa is age 41


1870 Louisa is age 40    


1880 Louisa is age 56

The William born about 1844. [I believe this is Wm. H. H. b. 1 Jun 1844, son of Louisa & gr-son of John & 
Martha] (1785)

Digitized image of William's Death Certificate

Handwriting looks like it is spelled "Williom H. Baling"

FamilySearch.org

State File No. 156

Name: William H. Baling
Death date: 06 Jun 1925

Death place: Union Township, Randolph, North Carolina

Gender: Male

Race or color: white

Age at death: 81y 3d

Estimated birth year: 

Birth date: June 1st 1844

Birth place: Randolph Co., N.C.

Marital status: Widowed

Spouse name: 

Father name: Louis Latham
Father birth place: Randolph Co. N.C.

Mother name: Louize Boling
Mother birth place: Randolph Co., N.C.

Occupation: Farmer

Street address: 

Residence: 

Informant:  Essie Tucker
Address: Seagrove, NC  R#2

Cause of Death: Acute Lobar Pneumonia  (duration) 21 days

Cemetery name: Pleasant Hill

Burial place: 

Burial date: 07 Jun 1925

Funeral home: W. L. Stutts, Seagrove NC

Additional relatives: X

Film number: 1893738

Digital GS number: 4216523

Image number: 701

Reference number: fn 949 cn #156, Rn 5

Collection: North Carolina Deaths, 1906-1930

Buried in Primitive Hill Baptist Church Cemetery, per Genealogical Journal of the Randolph Co NC Vol XVI, No 4, Fall Issue of 1992.
	William H Boling

	· Memorial 

· Photos 

· Flowers 

· Edit [image: image1.png]


[image: image2.png]


[image: image3.png]
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Share 

	Learn about removing the ads from this memorial...

	Birth: 

Jun. 1, 1844

Death: 

Jun. 6, 1925

[image: image6.png]




Family links: 
Spouse:
Amanda Trogdon Boling (1845 - 1908)

Children:
Joshua E Boling (1879 - 1881)*
George Columbus Boling (1882 - 1958)*
Charlie Carson Boling (1888 - 1970)*
Amanda Laura Boling King (1891 - 1970)*

[image: image7.png]


*Calculated relationship
Burial:
Pleasant Hill Primitive Baptist Cemetery 
Asheboro
Randolph County
North Carolina, USA


Created by: Jenny Hotchkiss
Record added: Mar 18, 2012 
Find A Grave Memorial# 87011956


	


b. 
Nancy was born about 1823, North Carolina, remained single but had one daughter Candace born about 1846. (1785) Other Census data: 

1850 Nancy is 27, living with parents John and Martha Boling.


1860 Nancy is 38, still listed as single and with her parents.


1870 Nancy is  38


1880 Nancy is 50  single


1900 Nancy is 80  single

c 
Westward born about 1823/1826. (1785) Other Census data:

1850 census age 24, single, living with parents.


1860 census age 37, single, living with mother.


[not found later; could this be the “Westward” be the person who died in VA during civil war, usually attributed to being son of John B. & Lucy Randolph?  just a thought] Son Westwood Boling was born in North Carolina. Westwood Boling died. 3 Jul 1863 Gettysburg. MILITARY:According to Billie Bocetti of North Carolina, Westwood was killed at the Battle of Gettysburg, Picketts Charge, in the Confederate Army. His discharge papers are alleged to have been submitted but before action could be taken on them, he was killed in what was thought to have been Pickett's charge. MILITARY:American Civil War Research Database, Soldiers from Ancestry.com on internet: Westwood Boling  Enlisted 15 Sep 1863 Wake Co NC; Enlist Rank: Priv; no age given.  Enlisted E Co. 4th Inf Reg. NC; Killed at Spotsylvania Court House, VA on 12 May 1864. Source: North Carolina Troops 1861-65, A Roster; publ 1993. [note:this date is a year later than Billie Bocetti record showed] Washington (IN) Historical Society Boling File: Copy of letter from David W. Bolen, Hillsville, VA,  22 Mar 1923 to Flanders Boling, Esq., Vallonia Ind: under the family of John Boling is listed his children including: "Westwood Bollen remained in N.C., and was mustered into the confederate army, killed in the battle of Gettysberg, 3 July, 1863. He had at the time reached the age, which entitled him to be discharged, and the application for his discharge had been filed with the proper authorities, but the battle came on before the papers were acted upon, and he was killed; it is believed, in Picketts charge." (1785)

Census data:


1850 census age 24, living with parents.  Southern Div., Randolph Co, NC


1860 census age 37, living with mother. (1785)


1860 could this be the "Westwood" who died at Gettysburg??  No...the one who died was enlisted in Wake Co NC in the E Co. 4th Inf. Reg. NC.

The Roster of Union Soldiers 1861-1865

Genweb online database:

HISTORY OF CLAY COUNTY   IN

Bowling, Westerd, Sept. 20, 1861, _, H; died Calhoun, Ky., Feb. 4, 1863.

Genweb online

Clay County Indiana Civil War Soldiers 31st REGIMENT

Surname Given Name Enlisted Co. Discharged Comments

BOWLING Westerd Sept. 20, 1861 H Feb. 4, 1863. died Calhoun, Ky.

http://files.usgwarchives.org/in/clay/war/31st.txt

http://www.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~inclay/war/civil/31st.htm

Clay County Indiana Civil War Soldiers

31st REGIMENT

Name                              Enlisted                 Co.    Discharged         Comments

BOWLING    Westerd    Sept. 20, 1861      H      Feb. 4, 1863.       died Calhoun, Ky.

The Roster of Union Soldiers 1861-1865

INDIANA
Page 81

Bowling, Westerd, 31st Inf. Co. H

d.
Mary A. born about 1831. Age 19 in 1850 Census. (1785)
e.
Martha born about 1833/1835. Age 17 in 1850 Census. (1785)
f.
Son Neal Boling moved to near Vandalia, Owen County, Indiana with sister, Mary Ann, born about 1831. Washington (IN) Historical Society Boling File: Copy of letter from David W. Bolen, Hillsville, VA,  22 Mar 1923 to Flanders Boling, Esq., Vallonia Ind: under the family of John Boling is listed his children including: "Sallie, Mattie, Louisa, and Nancy remained in North Carolina, but Nancy never married.  Mary Ann, and her brother, Neal, went to Indiana about a hundred years ago, and it is believed they settled in Owen County. It is believed she married a Luther, or perhaps, her cousin Chrles (sic) Boling." "Neal went to Indiana about ninety years ago, and it is believed he settled in Owen County near Vandalia. From a composite listing of information sent to Katherine Parsons Ray in Parkersburg WV, it was stated that Neal Boling lived near Vandalia, Owen Co IN. She stated it was believed he spelled his name Bollen. (1785)

1850 Census Randolph County, North Carolina, Page 112, 22nd Aug
453 - 460
John BOLING
65
300
NC
Martha

50

NC
Westward

24

NC
Louisa

35

NC
Nancy

27

NC
Mary A.

19

NC
Martha

17

NC (942)
  
 
Census August 17, 1850 Southern Division, Randolph Co., NC, stamped pg. 108, family 460 
John BOLING, 
65 NC
Martha, 

50
Westwood 
24
Louisa 

35
Nancy 

27
Mary 

19
Martha 

17
Things that are probably wrong

John Bolling (Fh407,6S) married Lucille Randolph and had children: Sallie, Mattie, Mary Ann, Nancy-never married, Lousia, Bettie who married Solomon Latham, Benjamin (Fh132), Randolph born about 1800 in Randolph County, North Carolina, John, Jesse born 1802 who married first Sarah Hobbs and second Dorinda Anderson, Neal and Westwood. (173)(808) (This is probably combining the children of John 6S Fh407 and John 5 Fh411)  
5U1 415.  John 1756/7-1835/m1777 Mary Tarpley 1760-1836--His father was by some thought to be 


William #830. Some think this Fh830 family never existed. See John Fh418.


Head of Family String U1



A descendant kit 14348 tested into DNA 5


John (?)Tarpley 1778-1849/m1798 Mary Pleasants--See Family Group #416




A descendant kit 4832 tested into DNA 5




A descendant kit 7566 tested into DNA 5


James Marion 1781-1863/1/w m     Ann Pickens b1787—See Family Group #277

2/w    Widow ---- Bently

 


A descendant kit 804 tested into DNA 5




A descendant kit 1788 tested into DNA 5


Sarah Elizabeth 1782/5-1782



Mary Meotaka b1782/5 twin



Modenia Anthem b1786



Ara or Ira Jane 1788-1789



Joseph Marvin Ransome b1791



Amelia Randolph b1793



William Andrew/Andres Meade b1795



Robert Thomas b1797



Margaret Melverdie/Melverdia b1798 twin of George Kennon



George Kennon b1798 twin of Margaret Melverdie—could be Fh239



David Blair b1799 twin of Rodney Rolfe



Rodney Rolfe b1799 twin of David Blair



William Ransome b1799 twin-Could be Fh912



Calvin Powhatan b1801



Solomon Henry b1803/4 twin of Enoch Wesley



Enoch Wesley b1803/4 twin of Solomon Henry, 1/w Alcy -----, 2/w Marian -----, 3/w ----- -----

5U1 
Fh415 
John Bolling was born 1756 the son of William Bolling (Fh830). (108) John Bowling was born 1757 in Halifax County, Virginia. His parents were William and Amelia (Randolph) Bowling. (7) John Bolling was born 1756 in Halifax County, Virginia (that part that later became Pittsylvania and still later Henry County, Virginia).  He was the son of William and Amelia (Randolph) Bolling (Fh830). (488) John Bolling was the son of William and Amelia (Randolph) Bolling.  Apparently he had brothers Archabald, Samuel, and Rolfe.  They came to Henry County, Virginia from Halifax County, Virginia.  John, Archibald, and Samuel were in the Militia.  Their father William Bolling was killed in 1776. Their mother Amelia and John Bolling and his family stayed for a time in Henry County, Virginia, and the rest went to South Carolina.  Later John Bolling went to North Carolina and later Tennessee.  (946) John Bolling was born to William and Amalie (Randolph) Bolling in Halifax County, Virginia, the part that later became Pittsylvania and still later Henry County, Virginia.  John Boling was on a list of person renouncing Great Britain and swearing allegiance to the Commonwealth of Virginia at Henry County, Virginia. Also on that list were Archibald Boling, Joseph Boling, Christopher Boling Sr. and Christopher Boling. (960) Henry County, Virginia, Tax List 1780, John Bolling (830b,Fh415,U1). See place index for others on that tax list. (1414)(1495) John and his brother William (830f) served in the Henry County, Virginia militia in 1782.  Both William and John later lived in Sullivan County, Tennessee. (7) John Bowling married Mary Tarpley.  They had children: John Tarpley, James Marion, Sarah Elizabeth, Rodney, Mary, Modenia Anthem, Ira Jane all born 1778-1788 in Henry County, Virginia, Joseph Marion, Margaret Melverdie, Amelia R., Andrew, Robert Thomas, David, William Ransome, Calvin, George all born 1791-1802 in Pendleton County, South Carolina, Solomon Henry and Enoch Wesley born 1804 in Pendleton County, South Carolina or born 1803 in Sullivan County, Tennessee. (7) John Bowling, along with William Bowling & Joseph Bowling, were in the Henry County, Virginia, militia in 1781. (22) Henry County, Virginia, Deed Book 1, page 530, 09 Apr 1787 [inserted between pp. 530-31] "A poll taken of a section of Delegates at Henry County Courthouse this 9th of April 1787 for Abraham Penn, Esq." [included the following]: 

27. William Bolling (disputed) (830f,U1)

65. Joseph Bolling (678e,Fh454,I) or  (269d,N)

110. John Bolling (disputed) (830b,Fh415,U1) 

I believe that the John Bolin, Sr. (830b,Fh415,U1) of Sullivan County, Tennessee shown on the Pension Rolls of 1835 and who filed a claim on 21 Nov 1832 declaring that he enlisted "as a minute man from Henry County, Virginia, under Capt. Abraham Penn in 1780" is the same as can be found with Abraham Penn in the above record. The reason the several Bollings were disqualified was because they seem to have voted more than once -- they voted for both guys running for the same office. (1414) A poll taken in Henry County, Virginia, for Thomas Cooper, 9 Apr 1787 shows James Boldin (Fh270,N), James Edwards, William Bolling (830f,U1), John Bolling (Fh415,U1 or Fh418,N), Thomas Edwards and Augustine Thomas (Augustine Thomas was distantly related to Ursula Bell who married John Bolling (Fh367)).  (1414) John Bolling married 1777 Mary Tarpley.  They had a son John Tarpley Bolling born 1778. (108) John Bolen, along with Joseph Bolen, was in the 1790 Census of Pendleton County, South Carolina with either 01-01-04-00-00 or 02-01-02-00-00.  (9) Books D-E (1795 - 1798) Greenville County, South Carolina,  Feb. 4, 1796  Reuben Coplin (Greenville Co) to John Bolding (Fh415, Fh416 would be too young) for L100 sterling sold 279 ac on N side of Saluda R; surveyed for Robert Hazelip and granted Nov. 3, 1787 to Robert Hazelip on Mill Cr; border: survey for Jacob Light, Daniel Bush, & vacant land on SE & SE, James Blasingame & vacant land on SW, & Saluda R on other sides. (signed) Reuben Coplin and Mary Coplin (sic); sitness James Avres, John Burns, & Joseph Ayres; wit. oath by J. Burns before Baylis Earle; rec. Aug. 4, 1796; book D p. 278. (1615) John Bolding was a witness Books D-E (1795 - 1798) Greenville County, South Carolina  Feb. 10, 1796  Elias Philips (Greenville Co) to John Burns (same); for L125 sterling sold (omitted) ac on "the" branches of & N side of Saluda R; border: Perry & part of "said" tract on N, said tract on W & S, & vacant land on E when surveyed; part of 1800 ac surveyed for James Blasingame, granted Apr. 2, 1787 by Gov. Thomas Pinckney to James Blasingame, & recorded in grant book 4W p. 486. (signed) Elias Philips; witness James "Ay",  John Bolding; wit. oath by  J "Bolin"  before John Blasingame; rec. Jul 25, 1798; Book E page 81. (1615) Inventory, 6 Nov. 1799, of estate of Jethro Walker, deceased by Benjamin Wilson, John Bowling and James Bell. Greenville Co. S.C. Wills and Estates Book. (1527) John Bowling, along with John Bowling Jr., was on a 1812 tax list of Sullivan County, Tennessee. (222) John Bolling married Mary Tarpley 1777 of Charlotte County, Virginia.  She was the daughter of Thomas and Mary (Camp) Tarpley.  They had children: John Tarpley 1778-1849 (Fh416), James Marion born 1780, Mary Meotaka born 1782, Sarah Elizabeth born 1785, Ara Jane 1788-1789, Joseph Marvin Ransome born 1791, Amelia Randolph born 1793, William Andres Meade born 1795, Robert Thomas born 1797, George Kennon born 1798 twin, Margaret Melverdia born 1798 twin, Rodney Rolfe born 1799 twin, David Blair born 1799 twin, Calvin Powhatan born 1801, Enoch Wesley born 1803, and Solomon Henry born 1804.  John Bolling died 1835 Sullivan County, Tennessee.  (488) John Boling was on the 1787 census of Pittsylvania County, Virginia, with 1 horse and 6 head of cattle.  (551)  John Bowling was on the 1787 census of Henry County, Virginia, with 1 male age 17-20, 1 horse and 4 head of cattle.  (551) John Bowling died 1835 in Sullivan County, Tennessee.  He was buried at the Bolling Cemetery in Sullivan County, Tennessee.  (7) John Bolen, Senior, was born about 1760.  He enlisted in the Revolutionary War 1780 in Henry County, Virginia. He was told his parents were born Henry County, Virginia.  John Bolling (Fh415) moved to Montgomery County, Virginia (then Botetourt).  He probably had a son John because he was John Sr.  He applied for a pension S.1790 in 1832, age 72,  in Sullivan County, Tennessee.  His statement details his revolutionary and other military service. (91)(658)(1155) John Bolen Sr. (Fh415) served in the American Revolutionary War.  He records for a pension reads like this: Bolen, John. S.1790, 21 Nov. 1832. Sullivan County, Tenn.  John (X) Bolen, Sr., of said county, aged 72, declares he enlisted in 1780 as a minute man from Henry County, Virginia, under Capt. Abraham Penn and was marched to Jamestown and joined Col. Carrington’s regiment. He guarded the magazine and plantations on the bay and river from the pillage that was daily committed by British troops, who were trying to take Negroes and stock from the citizens. He was within hearing of the guns at Dunmore’s engagement. He thinks he served five months.  A few weeks after returning home to Henry County he was ordered from Henry Court House to Bedford Court House under Capt. Peter Haston and served between two and three weeks in guarding prisoners. He moved to Montgomery County (then Botetourt) and immediately, in a few days of arriving , was drafted to go against the Indians on the Kanawha and marched under Lieut. Isham to a fort on that river. He was there some weeks under Capt. Parris. He served seven or eight weeks. 25 Jan. 1833.  Sullivan County, Tenn. John (X) Bolin Sr., of said county makes statement as to length of his service.  He was told by his parents he was born in Henry County, Virginia, and is 72 years and some months old. No jacket showing amount of pension and certificate number is now in file. I found the following on  the TENNESSEE PENSION ROLL OF 1835 REPORT FROM THE SECRETARY OF WAR IN RELATION TO THE PENSION ESTABLISHMENT OF THE UNITED STATES 1835.  REPORT IN OBEDIENCE TO RESOLUTIONS OF THE SENATE OF THE 5TH AND 30TH  OF JUNE, 1834 AND THE 3rd OF MARCH, 1835. IN RELATION TO THE PENSION ESTABLISHMENT OF THE UNITED STATES, WASHINGTON.  JOHN BOLEN, SULLIVAN COUNTY PRIVATE VIRGINIA LINE $23.66 ANNUAL ALLOWANCE $70.98 AMOUNT RECEIVED MARCH 1, 1833 PENSION STARTED AGE 74. (THIS REPORT WAS DONE IN 1835) (1423)  John Bolen was age 74 years when he received a pension in Tennessee for service on the Continental Line. (1208) John Bolen was a Virginian who served in the Revolutionary War and he received a pension in Tennessee. (385) John Bolling received land warrant #2230, 12 January 1784, for 100 acres for his three years service as a soldier on the Virginia Line. (13) John Bowling/Bolling served on the 7th Virginia Regiment of the Continental line in the Revolutionary War. (385) John Bolding  (Fh415) was born 16 April 1757 in Halifax County, Virginia and died. 17 June 1835 in Sullivan County Tennessee.  John Bolding married Mary Tarpley  born 21 Mar. 1769 in Charlotte County Virginia  and died 5 April 1856 in Sullivan County Tennessee. (1472) The Revolutionary War records belong to my John Bolin, Sr (Fh4472,M5) and not John Bolen (Fh415,U1). They are signed John Bolin, Sr. By the way their is an Elizabeth Boling b. 1804 d. 1880-1900 who married to Joseph Offield b.1794 d. 1861-1870. They were also in Sullivan County, Tennessee. This info was given to me by a Offield descendant  who has the family Bible. I have never heard of a Walter. There was a Samuel J. (the J. also stood for John), who also left area and went to Virginia. I saw a second marriage license for him and lost my record on it. I think that Hugh Boling that I told you was ancestor of Paul Phipps (source 834, Desc of  Hugh 4616a) was originally from Green County, Tennessee. I also forgot to tell you that John Sr. or his father also had lots of land in Virginia. A least this is what was told to all the family.  (1423) On the other John Bowling (Fh415) and Mary Tarpley. (Not my John Fh4472) I think there is something that is not correct with all that information. The mother had 15 pregnancies  and had 18 children. Three sets of twins. First child at 18 last child at age 43. And she lived to be 76. I do not believe this. Too many children in a 25 year span of time. I do not believe that her health would have allowed her to live to that age after having that many children. Of course these are only my thoughts. NOT one of these children remained in Sullivan County, Tennessee. I don’t think so. Some would almost have had to married into the areas other families and remained in the area. (1423) Personally, I don’t believe the marriage of John Bolling and Mary Tarpley existed. I believe that the John (Fh415, U1) that Judge Price has married to Mary Tarpley,  is really John Bolling (Fh418, 5N) who married Rebecca Rea. I believe John (Fh418) is the son of James (Fh258, will of 1772 in Pittsylvania County, VA.) The Obadiah line (DNA Group 5) is a son of John Bolling and Rebecca Rea. (1745) John Bolen Revolutionary Pension #S1790. (2088)
5U1
415g
Joseph Marion Bowling (Bolling) was born 1791 in Pendleton County, South Carolina the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bowling. (7)  Joseph Marvin Ransome Bolling was born 1791 in Pittylvania County, Virginia, the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bolling (Fh415). (488) Joseph Bolen was in the 1820 Census of Pendleton County, South Carolina with males 110110 and females 40010. (HeritageQuest.com)

5U1 
415i  
William Ransome Bowling was born 1799 in Pendleton County, South Carolina the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bowling. (7)  William Andres Meade Bolling was born 1795 in District Ninety Six, South Carolina, the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bolling (Fh415). (488)

5U1
415j
Robert Thomas Bowling (Bolling) was born 1797 in Pendleton County, South Carolina, the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bowling. (7)  Robert Thomas Bolling was born 1797 in District 96, South Carolina, the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bolling (Fh415). (488)

5U1
 415k  
Andrew Bowling (Bolling) was born 1795 in Pendleton County, South Carolina the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bowling. (7)

5U1 
415l  
George Kennon Bolling was born 1798, twin of Margaret Melverdia Bolling, in Sullivan County, Tennessee, the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bolling (Fh415). (488)

5U1 
415m
David Bowling (Bolling) was born 1799 in Pendleton County, South Carolina the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bowling. (7)  David Blair Bolling was born 1799 the twin of Rodney Rolfe Bolling, Sullivan County, Tennessee, the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bolling (Fh415).  (488)

5U1
415n
Rodney Bowling was born 1785 in Henry County, Virginia the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bowling. (7) Rodney Rolfe Bolling was born 1799 the twin of David Blair Bolling, in Sullivan County, Tennessee, the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bolling (Fh415). (488)

5N 416. John R. or Tarpley 1778-1849/m1798 Mary Pleasants (1782-1848)--His father was John #418




A descendant kit 7566 tested into DNA 5


Mary Pleasant 1799-1868 (twin)/m1818 Hiram Weatherbee (1800-1880)--Ancestor of Judge 



Zelma W. Price

or



Mary/m1840 Henry Bain 



James Pleasants 1799-1879 (twin)/Elizabeth Gibson (1797-1870)--See Family Group #296



Marvin Pleasants 1800->1850/Sarah Boldin



Joseph b1802



William 1804-1807



Robert 1807-1807



John b1810



Sarah b1812-twin/?m     Moses Weatherbee (1805-1852)—Brother of Hiram Weatherbee above  



Anne b1812-twin



Andrew  b1813



Martha Meotaka b1815



Ara Amelia Pleasant b1817



Elizabeth Pleasant b1819

5N 
Fh416  
John Tarpley Bolding (Fh416) was born 10 Dec. 1778 in Henry County, Virginia and died 12 August 1849. He married Mary Pleasants 3 Jan 1798. She was born 6 July 1782 in Halifax County, Virginia  and died 26 December 1848 in Franklin County Alabama. (1472) John Tarpley Bowling married 1798, Mary Pleasants. He died 1849 in Franklin County, Alabama. (488) From the following document it appears his father was John Fh418.




A descendant kit 7566 tested into DNA 5
SC Index 1810 Census Greenville Dist SC
Name:

Page:
Boling, E.
114
Elliott Fh2285,6X (Rin=50943)
Boling, Joh
112
John Fh416,418e 5N
Boling, O.
115
Obediah Fh4667,418d 5N
Bolling, Tully
106
Tully Fh738, 610g
Two Families 6X and 5N in Greenville, SC?

5N
John (Fh418) d<1810

5N
John (Fh416,418e) r1799,r1800,r1810,r1818—removed to Warren Co., TN


Descendant Kits #4832 and 7566—tested DNA 5

5N
Obediah (Fh4667,418d) l1797,r1798,r1801,r1802,r1810,r1818—See Kit #4701—tested DNA 5
Book K, page 269, 1818, Greenville County, SC
State of South Carolina
Know all men by these presents that we, OBADIAH BOLLING (Fh4667,418d), JOHN BOLLING (Fh416,418e), COLLINS BOLLING (418h), JAMES BOLLING (Fh277,418h), WILLIAM AYRES (Husband of Mary 418e), JOSEPH AYRES (Husband of Elizabeth 418i) & JOHN COOPER (Husband of Nancy 418a), of Greenville district state aforesaid for and in consideration of the sum of Four hundred dollars to us in hand paid by JAMES COOPER, of said state and district have granted, bargained and delivered by these presents do grant bargain sell and deliver unto him the said JAMES COOPER, all that tract of land originally granted to Robert Hazlet lying and being in the district of Greenville on Saluda River Two Hundred and Seventy some acres be the same more or less beginning on….(etc)
To have and to hold all and singular the premises before mentioned to the said JAMES COOPER, to him his heirs and assigns forever……
…witness our hands and seals the nineteenth day of January 1818.
Wit: John Ayres and Robert Alexander
Signed: Obadiah Bolding 
John Bolding

Collins Bolling
James Bolding
Wm. Ayres
Joseph Ayres
John (x) Cooper
State of South Carolina, Greenville District
Personally came by me, Robert Alexander being duly sworn and saith on said oath that he saw Obadiah Bolding, John Bolding, Collins Bolding, James Bolding, William Ayres, Joseph Ayres and John Cooper sign seal and deliver the within deed to James Cooper for the use and purpose within mentioned and that he saw John Ayres sign his name with himself as a subscribing witness sworn to and subscribed the 31 day March 1818.
James Alexander, P. P. Robert Alexander
Recorded 7 Sept 1818. 

John Bolding and his wife Mary (Pleasant) Bolding had a son Andrew Pleasants Bolding born 1813 in South Carolina who married Mary A. "Polly" Paterson. (659) I found a picture of the tombstone of Andrew Patton Bolding, Sr. (416j) born 26 July 1812 died 26 May 1874.  He is buried in the Stricklin Cemetery in Franklin County, Alabama. Born in Tennessee. He lived in a log cabin beside Little Bear Creek where remains of it can be seen today beside a very huge oak tree. The property is located about a mile and a half from Highway 247 on the Shiloh Road. He was first married to Polly Patterson (no marriage date in my information) and had several children. (1472) John Tarpley Bolling had a son James Pleasant Bolling (Fh296). (253) I feel that John R. Bolling (incl various spellings) may be the son of John Bolling and Rebecca Rhea (Fh418,5N) but have little to go on John R. was born prob 1780-1790 in VA, as far as we can tell. We know the family was in Greenville, SC prior to moving to Warren Co, TN around 1822-1824. (1414) 
John R. Boling (Bolin, Bouldin, etc), we do not know his wife's name, was born abt 1780-1790 in either SC or VA. John R Boling lived out his days in Warren Co, TN where his daughter Mary marries Henry Bain, whose father Peter Bain came from Greenville, SC, and before that from Fluvana Co, VA.. We think the families knew each other in SC. (7) Peter Bain in a letter to the Five Civilized Tribes about his wife Mary Boling. This tells us who some of the siblings were of John R Boling;

 

State of Arkansas
County of Garland

 

I Henry Bain of Garland County Arkansas, who being duly sworn depose and say; I am the identical person who married Mary Boland, the daughter of John R. Boland in the year I think in 1838 in Dekalb County and the state of Tennessee. I do not know the father of John R. Boland, but have the names of the brothers of John R. Boland as Obia, James, and Mark Boland. He had one sister named Fannie, who married
John Boles in South Carolina. The said Peter Bain is the son of Mary Boland and was born in the year 1842 and I am his father. I am 81 years of age and I have resided in Garland County about 18 years and still a citizen of Garland County.
Henry Bain (his signature)
Sworn and subscribed to before me this 24th day of August, 1896

 

Frank C. Place
County Clerk
1830 Census of Warren County, Tennessee as: (7)
Bouldin, John R. 2011001-032101

2 male under 5

1 male 10-15

1 male 15-20

1 male 40-50

3 female 5-10

2 female 10-15

1 female 15-20

1 female 30-40

1830 Warren CO TN Census
Bouldin

Noble

(Fh4666,911e,2I)

010000001-000000001
Boldin

Gideon

(Fh2445,4666b,2I)
220001-00001
Bouldin

John R.

(Fh416,5N)

2011001-032101 
Bouldin

Lewis

(Fh4626 or 4666c,2I)
30001-010001
Bolin

Temperance
(wife of Lewis Fh4626,2I)
00101-0012301
Bowland
David

(UK)


20001-10011
1836 Warren Co, TN Tax List
CIVIL DISTRICT 11:
Adcock, Leonard         132 acres
Adcock, William         48 acres
Bain, Arch
Bain, Peter             110 acres
Boling, John R.         90 acres
 

1840: Warren Co., TN census record.
John Bolen             12110001     00020001
Things that look wrong
John Tarpley Bowling (Bolling) was born 1778 in Henry County, Virginia the son of John and Mary (Tarpley) Bowling (Fh415). (488)

5N 418.
John 1745-1800/m     Rebecca Rea b1750--His father was James Fh258



ab  d
Nancy b>1774-<1784/m1800 John Cooper bc1780


ab
William b>1774-<1784-d>1807-<1810/m      Rebecca -----


a    d
Mary Agnes >1770-<1780-d1840-1850/m    William Ayres (1765-1840)


ab  d
Obadiah bc1769-1850/m     Sarah Langley (bc1765-d>1850)—See Family #4667




A descendant kit 4701 tested into DNA Group 5


abcd
John R. or Tarpley 1778-1849/m1798 Mary Pleasants--See Family Group #416



A descendant kit 4832 tested into DNA 5



A descendant kit 7566 tested into DNA 5

ab  d
Collins >1779-<1780-d>1818/m    Esther ----- (1775-1840)-Had son John M. bc1800 SC


abcd
James Marion 1781-1863/1/w m     Ann Pickens b1787—See Family Group #277

2/w    Widow ---- Bently

 


A descendant kit 804 tested into DNA 5




A descendant kit 1788 tested into DNA 5

a   d
Elizabeth bc1770/m      Joseph Ayres bc1762-d>1818


a
Children per Source #1745

c
Children John Tarpley and James Marion don’t belong here per sources #488 and #1527. See Fh415.

d
They or their husbands are mentioned in a 1818 document in Greenville Co.,SC

5N
Fh418 
John Bolling Sr.  was on the Henry County, Virginia, Tax List 1780.  See place index for others on that tax list. (1414)(1495) 
1787 Census of Virginia, Henry County
John Bowling
The census taker visited the families in this order:
04/24 Thomas Perry
04/27 Samuel Perry
05/04 William Berry
05/05 John Bowling
05/09 Thomas Cooper
05/09 Benjamin Rea
05/09 James Rea, Jr.
05/09 James Rea, Sr.
05/09 John Rea
05/24 John Cooper
06/18 William Bowling
07/12 James Bowling (1745)
John Bolling (Fh418) was the son of James Bolling (Fh258) who died before 1772 in Pittsylvania, VA.  James’ wife was Elizabeth Unknown. (1745) John Bolling and wife Rebecca lived on Smith River, 1782, Henry County, Virginia.  A Henry Sumpter also lived there and in 1795 a Henry Sumpter signed the marriage certificate of Frances Bolling (see 390n and 050c) ? and John M. Bowles.  (886) On 9 Apr 1790 Henry Sumpter of Henry County, Virginia, to Thomas Bolling (Fh679) of the same county for 100 acres on Rock Run Creek of Smith's River. (1414) I believe that John Bolling was married to Rebecca Rea. (1414) An interesting will from Henry County, Virginia, is also cited here:11 Nov 1788.  Henry County, Virginia, Wills Book 1, pg. 173.  Will of James Rea.  Written 11 Nov 1788.  Probated 27 Apr 1789.  Heirs: wife, Johanna -all estate both real and personal except smith tools which are to go to son, William Collings Rea.  All land after the death of Johanna Rea to go to son William Collings Rea except 40 acres where Thomas Cooper now lives - this to be given to Thomas Cooper.  Grandson, Jesse Roch(?) - one bed and furniture also one bay mare.  Son, John Rea, Mary Ars(? Almost illegible), Rebekah Bolling, Ann Burns, Kathrine Sanders - one shilling sterling each.  Son, James Rea - one large bible.  The rest of my estate to be divided between William Collings Rea, Elizabeth Cooper and Sarah Bolling.  Executors: sons, William Collings Rea and James Rea.  Signed James Rea.  Wits., James Rea, Jr., William Collings Rea, Robt Lorton and Thomas Cooper.  Proven by Wm Collings Rea.  Securities of Wm Collings Rea were George Hairston and John Redd.  27 Jul 1789.  Inventory of Estate of James Rea recorded.  Appraisers:  John Wash, W. Pace, Jn Pace. (1203) William Bolling (Bowling) from Virginia died while in the Continental Service as a private in the 14th Virginia Regiment and died at Valley Forge on March 11, 1778.  It is logical that this was the William Bolling described in the minutes of the first court held in Henry Count, Virginia, on April 20, 1778, as follows: “Elizabeth Cooper came to court and made oath that John Bolling, of Henry County, is the lawful heir of William Bolling, deceased, who went from the said county into the Continental service and there died”.  The statement would probably mean that John Bolling was the father, brother or son of William Bolling.  A likely explanation is that this John and William were brothers and the sons of James Bolling (Fh258) who died in Pittsylvania County, Virginia, with a will dated 20 May 1771 and filed 24 September 1772, listing sons John, James, and William in that order. (818) A poll taken in Henry County, Virginia, for Thomas Cooper, 9 Apr 1787 shows James Boldin (258e,Fh270), James Edwards, William Bolling (258f or 830f), John Bolling (258d or Fh415 or Fh418), Thomas Edwards and Augustine Thomas (Augustine Thomas was distantly related to Ursula Bell who married John Bolling (Fh367). (1414) John Bolling and Rebecca his wife of Henry County, Virginia sold 90 acres of land to Jacob Stalling of Montgomery County, Maryland. (824) Obadiah Bolling (Fh4667) was the son of John Bolling (Fh418) born about 1745 in Virginia and died before 1810 in Greenville District, South Carolina.  John Bolling (Fh418) was married to Rebecca Rea born about 1750 in Virginia and died between 1810-1820. (1745)  Personally, I don’t believe the marriage of John Bolling and Mary Tarpley existed. I believe that the John (Fh415, U1) that Judge Price has married to Mary Tarpley, is really John Bolling (Fh418, 5N) who married Rebecca Rea. I believe John (Fh418) is the son of James (Fh258, will of 1772 in Pittsylvania County, VA.) The Obadiah line (DNA Group 5) is a son of John Bolling and Rebecca Rea. (1745) Greenville County, SC, Deed Book D, 1799, page 278, John Bolding, 279 acres on Saluda River. (1745)

1745.
Informant A. Deason Smith, 110 Creekside Court, Greenwood, SC, 29649, adeasons@earthlink.net (2006), Died March 29, 2007, Descendant of Nancy, 610b, 7. 

1800 Census, Greenville County, SC, household 778, Image 40

John Bowlen

1 male, under 10 
3 males, 16 through 25 (Collins, James and perhaps William)

1 male, 45 and over

1 female, under 10

2 females, 16 through 25 (Fh418’s daughter, Nancy, who married John Cooper and Unknown’s wife.)

1 female, 45 and over

In 1800 there are 3 sons ages 16 through 25.  Two of these sons would be Collins and James.  The third son is unknown, perhaps William, and it appears that one of these sons is married and has a son and daughter (both 0-10) with all living with John, Sr.  If this theory is correct, the "widow" Rebecca age 26-45, found in the 1810 Greenville census with a son (10-16) may be the widow of this unknown, perhaps William, son of John.  Son Obediah is living next door to John, Sr. (1745)

Book K, page 269, 1818, Greenville County, SC
State of South Carolina
Know all men by these presents that we, OBADIAH BOLLING (418d), JOHN BOLLING (418e), COLLINS BOLLING (418f), JAMES BOLLING (418g), WILLIAM AYRES (husband of Mary 418c), JOSEPH AYRES (husband of Elizabeth 418h) & JOHN COOPER (Husband of Nancy 418a), of Greenville district state aforesaid for and in consideration of the sum of Four hundred dollars to us in hand paid by JAMES COOPER, of said state and district have granted, bargained and delivered by these presents do grant bargain sell and deliver unto him the said JAMES COOPER, all that tract of land originally granted to Robert Hazlet lying and being in the district of Greenville on Saluda River Two Hundred and Seventy some acres be the same more or less beginning on….(etc)
To have and to hold all and singular the premises before mentioned to the said JAMES COOPER, to him his heirs and assigns forever……
…witness our hands and seals the nineteenth day of January 1818.
Wit: John Ayres and Robert Alexander
Signed: Obadiah Bolding 
John Bolding 
Collins Bolling
James Bolding
Wm. Ayres
Joseph Ayres
John (x) Cooper
State of South Carolina, Greenville District
Personally came by me, Robert Alexander being duly sworn and saith on said oath that he saw Obadiah Bolding, John Bolding, Collins Bolding, James Bolding, William Ayres, Joseph Ayres and John Cooper sign seal and deliver the within deed to James Cooper for the use and purpose within mentioned and that he saw John Ayres sign his name with himself as a subscribing witness sworn to and subscribed the 31 day March 1818.
James Alexander, P. P. Robert Alexander
Recorded 7 Sept 1818. (1414)
5N
418b
In my opinion, the Unknown Son of John Fh418 is William in the following deed (1745):

Greenville County, SC, Deed Book H, page 12, 1807-1807

William Bolling to Willey Hughes.

State of South Carolina Greenville District.  Know all men by these presents that I, WILLIAM BOLDING of the State of South Carolina and district aforesaid, for and in consideration of three hundred dollars to me in hand paid by WILLEY HUGHES of the State and District aforesaid.  Have granted bargained and sold and by these presents do grant bargain and sell unto the aforesaid WILLEY HUGHES all that tract or parcel of land containing one hundred and twenty five acres more or less, situated and lying and being in the State and District aforesaid on Brush Creek waters of Reedy River, being a part of a tract of land originally granted to JOHN HUNT and certificate in the year of our Lord one thousand seven hundred and ninety two said HUNT conveyed the aforesaid one hundred and twenty five acres more or less unto WILLIAM TOWNS anno Domini one thousand seven hundred ninety five. Recorded in the clerks office District above mentioned, Book C, page 428 and 429 by reference this to said land, begins at a popler on the west side of Brush Creek then ... meanders of said creek to the … intersects THOMPSON’S line … thence along his line until it intersects the main road between Reedy River and Saluda then up the said road … the said line by LEMUEL ALSTON’s land to the beginning.  Said land was conveyed by the above mentioned WILLIAM TOWNS anno Domimi Eighteen hundred to SAMUEL CROWDER and by said CROWDER to JONATHAN STOKES and by said STOKES to me and is now by me conveyed to the above mentioned WILLEY HUGHES.  Together, etc…

I have here unto subscribed my name and sealed with my seal this 27th day of April in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and seven…

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of 

Test:  Thomas Wade Easley                                               William Bolding (seal)

           Robert Sutherfield

South Carolina Greenville District

Personally came before me, Robert Sutterfield and maketh oath that he saw WILLIAM BOLDING sign seal and deliver the within deed of conveyance to WILLEY HUGHES for the use and purpose within mentioned and was present and saw Thomas Wade Easley sign as a witness with himself.  Sworn and subscribed to this 21st day of October 1807.

Before me

Elisha Green, J. P.

Recorded the 21st day of October 1807.

I believe that William died shortly after this deed and his wife Rebecca is shown in 1810 (1745):

1810 Census, Greenville County, SC (Next door to Rebecca’s husband’s kin, James Cooper, Her brother in law, John Boling is 2 houses away.  Evidently William Bolding has died and she is living alone with one of her sons or he left.)

Rebecca Boling

1 male, 10 through 15

1 female, 26 through 44. (1745)
5N
418b
In my opinion, the Unknown Son of John Fh418 is William in the following deed (1745):

Greenville County, SC, Deed Book H, page 12, 1807-1807

William Bolling to Willey Hughes.

State of South Carolina Greenville District.  Know all men by these presents that I, WILLIAM BOLDING of the State of South Carolina and district aforesaid, for and in consideration of three hundred dollars to me in hand paid by WILLEY HUGHES of the State and District aforesaid.  Have granted bargained and sold and by these presents do grant bargain and sell unto the aforesaid WILLEY HUGHES all that tract or parcel of land containing one hundred and twenty five acres more or less, situated and lying and being in the State and District aforesaid on Brush Creek waters of Reedy River, being a part of a tract of land originally granted to JOHN HUNT and certificate in the year of our Lord one thousand seven hundred and ninety two said HUNT conveyed the aforesaid one hundred and twenty five acres more or less unto WILLIAM TOWNS anno Domini one thousand seven hundred ninety five. Recorded in the clerks office District above mentioned, Book C, page 428 and 429 by reference this to said land, begins at a popler on the west side of Brush Creek then ... meanders of said creek to the … intersects THOMPSON’S line … thence along his line until it intersects the main road between Reedy River and Saluda then up the said road … the said line by LEMUEL ALSTON’s land to the beginning.  Said land was conveyed by the above mentioned WILLIAM TOWNS anno Domimi Eighteen hundred to SAMUEL CROWDER and by said CROWDER to JONATHAN STOKES and by said STOKES to me and is now by me conveyed to the above mentioned WILLEY HUGHES.  Together, etc…

I have here unto subscribed my name and sealed with my seal this 27th day of April in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and seven…

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of 

Test:  Thomas Wade Easley                                               William Bolding (seal)

           Robert Sutherfield

South Carolina Greenville District

Personally came before me, Robert Sutterfield and maketh oath that he saw WILLIAM BOLDING sign seal and deliver the within deed of conveyance to WILLEY HUGHES for the use and purpose within mentioned and was present and saw Thomas Wade Easley sign as a witness with himself.  Sworn and subscribed to this 21st day of October 1807.

Before me

Elisha Green, J. P.

Recorded the 21st day of October 1807.

I believe that William died shortly after this deed and his wife Rebecca is shown in 1810 (1745):

1810 Census, Greenville County, SC (Next door to Rebecca’s husband’s kin, James Cooper, Her brother in law, John Boling is 2 houses away.  Evidently William Bolding has died and she is living alone with one of her sons or he left.)

Rebecca Boling

1 male, 10 through 15

1 female, 26 through 44. (1745)
5N
418h
Collins Bowling was born after 1779 and before 1780 to John and Rebecca (Rea) Bowling. Collins Bowling married Esther, last name unknown. I believe they had a son John M. Bolding born about 1800 in South Carolina. (1745) Collin Bolding bought land Books F - G  (1800 - 1807) Greenville County, South Carolina.  Jun. 7, 1801 John Pain (Greenville Co) to Collin Bolding (same); for L50 sold 100 ac; border: begins at a black gum (oak-lined out) at mouth of branch "on" Saluda R and joins a line agreed on by "the " parties; part of a grant Apr. 2, 1786 by Gov. Thomas Pinckney to James Blasingame. (signed) John Pin's mark "X"; witness James Ayres & Caty Ayres; proved Mar. 6, 1802 by John Pain before D Goodlett JQ; recorded Mar. 6, 1802; Book F page 378. (1615) Collin(s) Boling was in the 1810 Census of Greenville County, South Carolina, and had a son listed "4 males under 10"(?). (252)  Book K, page 269, 1818, Greenville County, SC
State of South Carolina
Know all men by these presents that we, OBADIAH BOLLING (Fh4667,418d), JOHN BOLLING (Fh416,418e), COLLINS BOLLING (418h), JAMES BOLLING (Fh277,418h), WILLIAM AYRES (Husband of Mary 418e), JOSEPH AYRES (Husband of Elizabeth 418i) & JOHN COOPER (Husband of Nancy 418a), of Greenville district state aforesaid for and in consideration of the sum of Four hundred dollars to us in hand paid by JAMES COOPER, of said state and district have granted, bargained and delivered by these presents do grant bargain sell and deliver unto him the said JAMES COOPER, all that tract of land originally granted to Robert Hazlet lying and being in the district of Greenville on Saluda River Two Hundred and Seventy some acres be the same more or less beginning on….(etc)
To have and to hold all and singular the premises before mentioned to the said JAMES COOPER, to him his heirs and assigns forever……
…witness our hands and seals the nineteenth day of January 1818.
Wit: John Ayres and Robert Alexander
Signed: Obadiah Bolding 
John Bolding

Collins Bolling
James Bolding
Wm. Ayres
Joseph Ayres
John (x) Cooper
State of South Carolina, Greenville District
Personally came by me, Robert Alexander being duly sworn and saith on said oath that he saw Obadiah Bolding, John Bolding, Collins Bolding, James Bolding, William Ayres, Joseph Ayres and John Cooper sign seal and deliver the within deed to James Cooper for the use and purpose within mentioned and that he saw John Ayres sign his name with himself as a subscribing witness sworn to and subscribed the 31 day March 1818.
James Alexander, P. P. Robert Alexander
Recorded 7 Sept 1818. 

Colling Bolen is in the 1820 Census of Greenville County, South Carolina. (535)  Collin Boling/Bowling was in the 1830 Census of McMinn County, Tennessee. (252) Collin Boling/Bowling was in the 1840 Census of Polk County, Tennessee.  (252) 

1810 Census, Greenville County, SC, Image 114
Boling, Collins
4 males, under 10
1 male, 26 through 44
1 female, 26 through 44
1820 Census, Greenville County, SC, Image13
Bolen, Colling
2 males under 10
1 male, 10 to 16
1 male, 16 to 18
2 males, 16 to 26
1 male, 26 to 44
1 male, 45 and over
1 female, under 10
1 female, 26 to 44 (1745)

Bolen, Colling 1820 Census, Greenville County, SC, Males 211211 Females 10010. (HeritageQuest.com)

5N 442.
John 1790->1870<1880/m1818 Sarah "Sally" Henson or Sarah “White Sally” Sizemore--His father was James #270 or William #744


 b
Mourning b1814/m1838 William Sizemore b1813—See 224e


 b
Blevins 1817-c1847/m1841 Nancy Lewis b1820—See 224i 


 b d
Eli 1819-dc1885/m1838 Nancy Bowling (1824-dc1885)-- daughter of William—See 224j


 b d
John 1820-1905/m1844 Nancy Bowling (1825-1887)


 bcd
Richard 1823/8-d<1900/m1850 Sally Bowlin b1825--daughter of Eli


 b
Graham 1825-1852/m1848 Nancy Hacker (1831-1910)


 b d
Louisa 1829/William Jones b1820


 b
Wright 1832-1865/m     Marinda Collins (1837-1890)


abcd
Mary “Polly” b1833


  bcd
James 1835-1903/mc1852 Delilah Hollon (1830-1903)


a    d
Nancy b1846/Levi Metcalf


a    d
William b1850


a
Ann b1859


a
Children in household in 1860 Census of Clay County, KY, some perhaps grandchildren


b
Children per the Bolling Family Association Database (2005)


c
Children in household in 1850 Census of Clay County, KY


d
Children per source #320

5N 
Fh442  
John Bowling was the son of James Bowling and -----Blevins(?). (239)(1343) John Bowling's parents were James and ----- (Blevins) Bowling. (117) John Bowling was born 1790 in Virginia the son of William and Sarah "Sally" (-----) Bowling (Fh744). (320) John Bowling was born 1790. (239)(1343) John Bowling was born 1790 in Virginia. (1143) John Bowling was born about1790. (117) In 1818 John Bowling married Sarah Henson in Clay County, Kentucky. (7)(85)(104)(239)(1212)(1343) In 1808 John Bowling married Sally Henson. (106) John Bolling may have married Sarah Henson in 1818. (117) John Bowling married Sally Henson. His children were: 

Eli born 1819 who married Nancy Bowling daughter of William Bowling. (320) 

John born 1820 who married Nancy Bowling. (320) 

Richard born 1828 who married Sally Bowling daughter of Eli Bowling (Fh224,5N). (320) 

Louisa born 1829 who married William Jones. (320) 

Polly born 1833. (320) 

James born 1836 who married Delilah Hollon. (320) 

Nancy born 1846 who married Levi Metcalf. (320) 

William born 1850. (320) 

John Bowling married Sarah “White Sally” Sizemore. Sizemore is a Cherokee Indian name. She had two children (twins) by her first husband (Begley). The twins were given the Bowling name. They were Polly Begley Bowling and Richard Begley Bowling both born 1830 (sic) in Perry County, Kentucky. (1143)  

John Bowling was in the 1820 Census of Clay County, Kentucky with 1 male 26-45 and 2 females under 10 and 1 female 16-26.  Other Bowlings listed on same page were William (over 45), John (over 45), Justus (age 26-45), Jesse Sr, (Fh350)(over 45), Elijah (age 16-26), Jesse Jr (age 16-26) and Christopher (age 26-45). (7) John Bowling (Fh442) is on that 1850 Clay County, Kentucky census age 60 (born around 1790) born in Virginia.  His wife is Sally age 55 born in Tennessee, I think.  Listed with them are:
Richard 

22 male born in KY (Occupation trade is none)
Mary 

19 female born in KY
Sally 

16 Female born in KY
James 

11 male born in KY (1442)

John Bowling was in the 1860 Census of Clay County, Kentucky. John Bowling, age 79 born VA was in the 1870 Census of Clay County, Kentucky.  Sally was age 69 born Virginia. (1143)

5M9 446. John 1794-1851/m1815 Lucy Clay bc1793-d>1860—His father was James #301


A descendant kit 33589 tested into DNA 5

  a
Ezekial b1817/m     Nancy -----


  a
James R. b1823/m     Polly -----


  a
Henry 1825-1904/m1846 1/w Susannah Adkins,m1851 2/w Rebecca Ratliff


*ab
Charles R. 1826/32 KY-1888/m1854 Aralenda Lovin 1836-1882


*ab
John R. b1828 KY/m      Louisa Porter


*ab
Fancey/Francey/Francis female b1831 KY


*ab
William A. b1833 KY




perhaps



William A. "Dog Leg" "Wild Bill" b1832->1880/m      1/w Nancy Mullins, 2/w m>1880 Julina 



Stepp


*ab
Joseph R. b1836 KY


*ab
Benjamin F. b1839 KY


*ab
Lucy A.E. b1842 KY


*
In 1850 Census of Pike County, Kentucky. A Henry Boling (perhaps a son or  more probable 


Henry Clay Bowling, son of  Sarah 460h) age 24 born NC is in same census.


a
Children per Source #1323


b
Children per Source #1414 from “web site”


c
John Bolin is in the 1820 Census of Floyd County, KY with with 200010 00100.

5M9
Fh446  
John Bowling/Bolling (Fh446) was born in Virginia in 1794. John Bolling/Bowling as we found his name spelled both ways in documents. He married Lucy Clay in Patrick County, Virginia (originally part of Henry County, Virginia) on Sept.17, 1815. According to the US Census, he was in Pike County, Kentucky by 1820 (sic, Pike created 1822 from Floyd); then 1830, 1840 and 1850.  He died in 1851 in Pike County, Kentucky. (1799) John Boling, born about 1794-95 in Virginia; died after 1850 possibly in Pike County, Kentucky; married Lucy Clay 17 September 1814 in Patrick County, Virginia. John is assumed son of James Bolling (Fh302,5M9) based on Patrick County, Virginia personal property tax lists; from 1812-1814 there were two males over age 16 living in James Bolling’s household. In 1815 there was only one male over 16 in James’s household, and one male over 16 in John Bolling’s household. John purchased 100 acres in Patrick County, Virginia on the waters of Sycamore Creek from Greenville Penn on 15 April 1818. On the same day John Boling and James Boling, his surety, mortgaged this property to George McCutcheon. The mortgage was to be paid in four installments the first due 1 January 1819, with the final payment due 1 January 1822. Interest was due from 1 January 1819 until paid. Throughout this deed John’s surname was spelled Boling, Bowlin, Bouldin, and Boldin, but John signed the document “John Boling.”
 John sold this property to John Heath for $100 on 20 December 1819. No reference was made to the mortgage John had made the previous year. By August 1820 John and his family were in Floyd County, Kentucky. (1988) John Bowling married 1815 Lucy Clay in Patrick County, Virginia. (1213) John Bolen (Fh446) was in the 1820 Floyd County, Kentucky with 200010 00100. (7) John Bolin is in the 1820 Census of Prestonsburg, Floyd County, KY with with 200010 00100. (HeritageQuest.com) Capt. John Bowling resided 1829 in Pike County, Kentucky. (1348) John Bowling was in Pike County, Kentucky in 1830 and 1840. (194) John Bowling is listed in the 1850 U.S. Census of Pike County, Kentucky.  John is listed as age 56 (i.e. born 1794) in Virginia.  Also listed in the household is Lucy age 57 born Virginia, Charles R. age 24 born Virginia, John R. age 22 born Kentucky, Fancey (female) age 19 born Kentucky, William A. age 17 born Kentucky, Joseph R. age 14 born Kentucky, Benjamin F. age 11 born Kentucky and Lucy A.E. age 8 born Kentucky. (7)(1155) In a 1850 census from Pike County Kentucky, there is a John Bowling (Fh446) (age 56, birth year would be about 1794) that is a mechanic.  He was born in Virginia and his real estate is valued at 250.
He is married to Lucy (age 57) from Virginia.  Living with them are the following:
Charles R 
(24) male, farmer
John R 

(22) male, farmer 
Francis 

(19) female
William A 
(17) male, farmer
Joseph R 
(14) male
Benjamin F 
(11) male
Lucy A E 
(8) female
Mitchell McCowan (can't make out the age) male, laborer
S(?) Roten 
(16) female
Everyone in this household with the exception of Lucy and John were born in Kentucky. (1442)

Things that seem wrong for Fh446
A court order gives John Bowling wife's name as Livey (Livcey).  In Floyd County, Kentucky, (when ?) John and Lucy Bowling are both blind and in their seventies and give their birth place as Tennessee. (194) 

5 4473.
John bc1774-1846/----- -----


  b
Celia 1785-d>1850-<1860/mc1808 Azariah Allred



ab
Susannah 1790-1871/m1818 John Wactor 1790-1884


ab
Arthur bc1791-1845/m1815 Mary Wactor--See Family Group #65


a
Son b1790-1800


a
Son b1790-1800


a
Daughter b1790-1800


  b
James b1805/m      Frances Pitts


  b
Ezekial bc1810-dc1843/m1832 Amanda Massey


a
In 1800 Census of Barnwell Dist., South Carolina 


b
Children per Source #1145

5
Fh4473 
John Bolen was in Barnwell District, South Carolina, in 1800 in household 059 (or 060) with 30100-20100-00. (9)(3)  John Bolin was born about 1765 (sic).  He was a resident of Barnwell Dist. South Carolina in 1800.  He died and was buried in Amite County, Mississippi in 1846.  His 5 children (born between 1785 and 1810) married into the various families of Allred, Wactor, Massey and Pitts. (1145)

5N 451.
Joseph b1793/m1807 Nancy Bowling--she the daughter of William #744--His father was James #270


ab
Lucinda/m1830 Stephen Grey


ab
Malinda/m1826 James Work


a
Children per Source #320 (William G. O'Connor)


b
Childrne per Source #1465 (Leon Morris) 

5N
Fh451
Joseph Bowling was the son of James Bowling and -----Blevins(?).  In 1807 he married Nancy Bolling in Clay County, Kentucky. (7)(85) In 1807 Joseph Bowling married Nancy Bowlin in Clay County, Kentucky. (1212) Joseph Boling married Nancy Bowlin 1807 and was in the 1810 Census of Clay County, Kentucky. (104) Joseph Boling was in the 1810 Census of Clay County, Kentucky. (869) Joseph Boling  (Fh451,son of James Fh270) was in the 1810 Census of Clay County, Kentucky with 3 0 1 0 0 - 1 0 1 0 0 - 0, the oldest male born 1784-1794. (1473) Joseph was born about 1790.  His parents were James and ----- (Blevins) Bowling.  In 1807 he married Nancy Bowling. (106)  Joseph Bowling was on the 1808-10 tax list of Clay County, Kentucky. (253) Joseph Bowling was the son of James and Mary "Polly" (Blevins) Bowling (Fh270).  Joseph Bowling married Nancy Bowling the daughter of William Bowling (Fh744).  Joseph Bowling had children: Lucinda who married 1830 Stephen Grey and Malinda who married 1826 James Work. (320) Joseph Bowling (Fh451) was in the 1830 Census of Clay County, Kentucky with FWM (5-10) 1,   (10-15) 1,   (20-30) 1,   (50-60) 1  FWF ((under 5) 1,   (5-10) 2,   (10-15) 1, (15-20) 2,   (40-50) 1. (1468) 

5M14 452. Joseph 1760-1839/mc1782 Valentine Haley b1762--Head of String M14



—could be same as Joseph Fh4585



Sarah b1780/m1801 Timothy Roark—See 4585a 



Larkin H. bc1786/m1808 Katharine Craboc(1788-1860)--See Family Group #4613




Descendant Kit 51006 tested into DNA Group 5



Lucy/m1801 James Eastridge—See 4585b



Mary/m1803 Michael Kearns



Absolam b1790 

5M14
Fh452
Joseph Bowling, along with Larkin (Fh4613,452a,5M14),  Benjamin (Fh150,5M14), and Joel (150a,5M14), was on the 1805 tax list of Anderson County, Tennessee.  (222) Descendant Kit 51006 tested into DNA Group 5. Joseph Bowling had a son Larkin H. Bowling (Fh4613) who was born about 1796. (432) Joseph Bowling was in Anderson County, Tennessee by 1817. His wife Voluntine Haley, daughter of David Haley, from will in Campbell County, Tennessee dated 9/5/1806. Heirs of David Haley are listed as Voluntine wife of Joseph Bowling, Sally wife of Capt Jason Cloud, David Haley and wife Betsy, and Elizabeth wife of William Witt. (698) Interestingly, I just checked 1805 Grainger County, Tennessee tax list and David Haley, Sr. & Jr. are there along with Alexander (005b,Fh025,P), William (005c,Fh745,P), David (Fh161,5M14), and Joseph (Fh4585,5M14).  Bet your Fh4585 and Fh452 are the same. Most of Claiborne County, Tennessee came from Grainger County. So Haley's probably never moved, just went from Grainger to Claiborne to Campbell. (698) From "Sketches of Tennessee Pioneer Baptist Preachers" by Burnett pp 70-71, "Joel Bowling, son of Larkin H. Bowling.... his grandfather, Joseph Bowling, was a native of Virginia." (698) A daughter of David and Ester Haley, Valentine, was born in Halifax County about 1762. She married Joseph Bolling. In the Will of David Haley, Anderson Co. TN, 5 Sept 1808, “I give and bequeath to my loving son in law and daughter to Joseph Boling and Valintain Boling his wife, at my decease the One Hundred Acres of land and plantation that I now live on.” (1414) Right now we have only one son of Joseph's so we can't really make a good guess. We just don't know who Joseph's father is. His birthdate is that awkward age which could make him the son of Christopher, Christopher Sr., John, William or even someone else we haven't researched. I'd rule out Christopher just now since no Chris' pop up.... but we really can't tell yet.  What we do know is whose son he isn't --- he doesn't belong to James d1771-2 Pittsylvania. (1414)
5M14 452e
Absolem Boling was mentioned in a survey 1812, Anderson County, Tennessee. (7) 1802 Anderson County, Tennessee tax list: Benjamin Bowling (Fh150, 5M14) 1 free poll (no acres). (1553)(1606) Joel Bowling (150a, 5M14)1 free poll 100 acres on Powell River. (1553)(1606) Absalom Bowling (UK) 1 free poll 125 acres Coal Creek Deed. (1553)(1606)

5  455.
Joseph 1753-1836/1/w ----- ----- (could be m1811 Fauquier, VA (Nancy Wine)) 

A descendant kit 2259 tested into DNA 5


Nancy bc1802-d<1858/m     James Belcher



Sarah Candice "Sally" 1813-1892/m1832 Enoch Solomon Stone



2/w m1818 Martha Williams d>1859

        

William bc1819-d>1859/m1838 Hannah Trusty

5 
Fh455
Joseph Bowling was born about 1753. (65)(91) Joseph Bolling was born about 1753.  (1071) In the 1880 Census, daughter Sarah Stone lists her father’s birthplace as KY, and her mother's as Virginia. Her father being born in Kentucky is not likely for someone born about 1753. (1596)
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	Household:
 Name 
Relation
Marital Status
Gender
Race
Age
Birthplace
Occupation
Father's Birthplace
Mother's Birthplace
 E. S. STONE 

 Self 

 M 

 Male 

 W 

 67 

 NC 

 Farming 

 NC 

 NC 

 Sarah STONE 

 Wife 

 M 

 Female 

 W 

 66 

 KY 

 None 

 KY 

 VA 

 Jospehh STONE 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 28 

 IN 

 Farming & Teaching 

 NC 

 KY 

 Martha WALLS 

 Niece 

 S 

 Female 

 W 

 16 

 IN 

 Keeping House 

 IN 

 IN 



Source Information:
 

Census Place
Center, Greene, Indiana

 

Family History Library Film  

1254280
 

NA Film Number  

T9-0280

 

Page Number  

148B   




Marriage and Children

The name of his first wife is unknown, but he had two children by her-- William and Sarah Candace.  Sarah Candace was born 13 May 1813 in Fauquirer County (sic, incorrect), "Old Virginia".  Joseph Bowling daughter Sarah Candace Bolling married Enoch Solomon Stone in 1832. Joseph Bolling's wife died and he married Martha Williams in 1818 in Kentucky. (1071) In the censes of 1850, 1860, 1870, and 1880, daughter Sarah gave her birthplace as Kentucky. (1596) Daughter Sarah C. Bolin was born 13 May 1813 in Kentucky. Sarah C. Bolin married Enoch Stone 5 Jan 1832 in South Carolina (sic, most have Kentucky). She died 25 November 1892 in Solsberry, Greene, Indiana. (1074) Joseph Bolding married Patsy Williams 19 April 1815, in Madison County, Kentucky. (1155) In 1818 Joseph Bowling married, not as first wife, Martha ----- in Madison County, Kentucky. They had a son William born about 1819. (91) Joseph Bowling's wife was Martha. (65) Joseph Bowling or Bolling married in Spring of 1818 in Madison County, Kentucky to Martha Williams. He had been married previously, name of that wife, not stated. Martha (Williams) Bowling reared a family of children. Names only two of these are shown, Sally and William. In 1858 Martha lived with the family of her daughter, Sally, then wife of Enoch Stone, of Green County, Indiana. In 1858, James Belcher was in Orange County, Indiana. He was son-in-law of Joseph Bowling--having married Joseph's daughter by his former marriage. (658) In a 1859 affidavit by William Bolling of Jackson Township, Orange County, Indiana, son of Joseph and Martha, states Martha resides in the home of Enoch Stone in Green County. Indiana. Her daughter Sally married Enoch Stone. (179) Pension Claim W 25257. Married: Martha Williams (2nd wife) Children: Sally: Married Enoch Stone, William, Daughter: by a former marriage, married James Belcher. (1743) Nancy born about 1802 whom we have believed to have been born in TN, possibly Anderson Co., was the daughter that married James Belcher. (1596) The bond for Joseph's (Fh455) imminent marriage was provided by a John Bolling - relationship unknown. Joseph was to marry a Martha Williams. The Williams family came from Amherst County, Virginia, which was another locale for many Bollings including a Joseph (I don't show one) - relationship unknown. Among them are several Bollings whose given names are the same as many descendants of Joseph. The use of traditional family names was repeated by most of Joe's descendants. Are there any descendants of the Bollings from Claiborne (2P territory)/Grainger Co TN (2P territory) being tested. There is a Joseph ((Fh4585,5M14) r1801,l1801,t1805) who lived in that area for about 20 years and disappeared 6 weeks before my Joseph appeared in Madison County, Kentucky - relationship unknown. I know that many of those in Claiborne/Grainger went to Alabama while others went north. What is interesting is that my Joseph's grandson migrated to the very spot in Arkansas where there was a family of Bowlings from Alabama. (1596) Martha, widow of Joseph Bolling, Revolutionary Pension #W25257. (2088)
Military

Joseph Bolling enlisted in the Revolutionary War from Virginia. He was injured at the battle of Monmouth. (1071) Joseph Bowling was in the Revolutionary War in Virginia. (91) Joseph Bowling enlisted as a regular soldier for three years beginning in 1777.  In 1780 Joseph Bowling was discharged at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.(65) Joseph Bolling received a land warrant #3093 for 100 acres on May 22, 1784 for his three year service as a soldier on the Virginia line. (13)(1341) Joseph Bolling received 100 acres for 3 years of service as a Private, Virginia State Line, 22 May 1784. (1263)  Joseph Bowling/Bolling, Born: About 1753, Died: Jan 30, 1836, Burial: Probably buried in Jackson Township, Orange County, Indiana. Service: Enlisted in Virginia, private in Capt. Peyton Valentine’s Company, Col. William Heath’s 3rd Virginia Regiment. Wounded in battle of Monmouth. Served until June 18, 1780, when he was discharged at Philadelphia, having served 3 years. Proof: Pension Claim W 25257. Married: Martha Williams (2nd wife) Children: Sally: Married Enoch Stone, William, Daughter: by a former marriage, married James Belcher. (1743) I posted the widow's pension request of a John Belcher (could be James Belcher’s father) who died at, or after, the battle of Germantown, citing Belcher's commanding officer as Col Heath, the same commander as Joseph Bolling, a fact that would likely place this John Belcher in Fauquier or Stafford Co with Joseph. I checked Gwathmey's "Roster of Virginians in the Revolution" John is listed as Belcher, John E., but NO regimental affiliation listed. Since Gwathmey relied heavily on pension records, and John died at Germantown, this is probably not surprising. Incidentally, I have Joseph's military record and he too was at Germantown. (1596)
Movement

Joseph Bolden was on the 1800 tax list of Madison County, Kentucky. (407) They lived in Crawford County, Indiana in 1820 and Orange County, Indiana in 1826. (91) Joseph Bowling made affidavit concerning his service in Crawford County, Indiana. He was allowed pension on his application executed July 22, 1826, at which time he resided in Orange County, Indiana, aged 73 years. (658) In 1826 Joseph Bowling was in Orange County, Indiana and in 1829 he was in Harrison County, Indiana. (65) Joseph Bowlen was in the 1830 U.S. Census of Harrison County, Indiana.  (7)   

Death

Joseph Bowling/Bolling died January 30, 1836. Joseph Bowling had Letters of Administration granted in 1836 or 1837. In 1858 in Green County, Indiana his widow applied for a pension W.25257. (91)  Joseph Bolling died 30 January 1836 in Orange County, Indiana.  (1071) 

5M14 4585. Joseph <1780-d>1805/ m     ------ ------- 



Sarah "Sallie"/mc1796/7 Timothy Roark—See 452a



Elizabeth "Lucy"/m1801 James Eastridge/Etheridge—See 452c

5M14
Fh4585

Joseph Boling of Grainger, Tennessee was bondsman for his daughter, Elizabeth, who married James Ethridge there in 1801. (although I have seen this record somewhere as Eastridge) (698) Joseph Boling has a land record in Grainger County, Tennessee, in 1801 and pays taxes there in 1805. (698) Sarah Bolen (4585a) married Timothy Roark before 1806 in Claiborne County, Tennessee. (833) Sarah or Sallie Bolen married Timothy Roark about 1796 or 1797. We do not know when or where they married, we do know that their first child, James, was born 9 Oct 1798 in Claiborne County, Tennessee. The story, passed down through the family goes something like this: The 11 year old Timothy Roark was a captive of the Indians for seven year. At about age 18 he escaped and took two white women with him. Timothy Roark married one of women that had escaped with him, Sarah or Sallie Bolen. I just leaned from Ina Mae Sandefur, of Kokomo, Indiana, that the other woman who escaped with Timothy was Sarah's sister, Lucy Bowling (4585b). Lucy Bowling married James Eastridge and they also settled in Claiborne, County, Tennessee. (1201) Joseph Bowling in Anderson County, Tennessee by 1817. His wife Voluntine Haley, daughter of David Haley, from will in Campbell County, Tennessee dated 9/5/1806. Heirs of David Haley are listed as Voluntine wife of Joseph Bowling, Sally wife of Capt Jason Cloud, David Bowling and wife Betsy, and Elizabeth wife of William Witt. (698) Interestingly, I just checked 1805 Grainger County, Tennessee tax list and David Haley, Sr. & Jr. are there along with Alexander (005b,Fh025,2P), William (005c,Fh745,2P), David (Fh161,5M14), and Joseph (Fh4585,5M14).  Bet you Fh4585 and Fh452 are the same. Most of Claiborne County, Tennessee came from Grainger County. So Haley's probably never moved, just went from Grainger to Claiborne to Campbell. (698)

5U1
 
Joseph Bowling, along with William (830f,5U1) and John Bowling (Fh415,830b,5U1), were in the Henry County, Virginia, militia in 1781.  (22)  Joseph Bowling and William Bowling were in Peter Hairston's Company of Henry County, Virginia, Militia on March 11, 1781.  (877) Henry County, Virginia, Deed Book 1, page 530, 09 Apr 1787 [inserted between pp. 530-31] "A poll taken of a section of Delegates at Henry County Courthouse this 9th of April 1787 for Abraham Penn, Esq." [included the following]: 

27. William Bolling (disputed) (830f,5U1)

65. Joseph Bolling (678e,Fh454,I) or  (269d,5N) or (UK)

110. John Bolling (disputed) (830b,Fh415,5U1) 

I believe that the John Bolin, Sr. (830b,Fh415,5U1) of Sullivan County, Tennessee shown on the Pension Rolls of 1835 and who filed a claim on 21 Nov 1832 declaring that he enlisted "as a minute man from Henry County, Virginia, under Capt. Abraham Penn in 1780" is the same as can be found with Abraham Penn in the above record. The reason the several Bollings were disqualified was because they seem to have voted more than once -- they voted for both guys running for the same office. (1414) A poll taken in Henry County, Virginia, for Thomas Cooper, 9 Apr 1787 shows James Boldin (Fh270,N), James Edwards, William Bolling (830f,5U1), John Bolling (Fh415,5U1 or Fh418,5N), Thomas Edwards and Augustine Thomas (Augustine Thomas was distantly related to Ursula Bell who married John Bolling (Fh367,N)).  (1414)

5M14 4613. Larkin H. 1785-d>1850/m1808 Catharine Craboc (1789-1860)--His father was Joseph #452




Descendant Kit 51006 tested into DNA Group 5



Mary 1808-1887/m     James A. Gross



Caswell Craboc 1810-1850/m1835/6 Mary Lindsay (1813-1883)



Euphama 1812-1895/m1836 Garland Stephen Lovin



Hugh B. 1813-1880/m     Charlotte ------ (b1826) 



Larkin 1813->1880/m1839 Catherine Gibbons b1818



Joel 1817-1900/m1838 Adaline M. Carroll (1821-1915)



George W. 1825-1895/m1848 Sarah Ann ------ (b1829)



Amanda Caroline b1825/35



Absalom b1827      



Valentine 1829-1905/m1850 Conrad Cornelius Storm Lindsay (1816-1888)



Randolph b1837

5M14   
Fh4613 
Larkin H. Bowling was born about 1796 the son of Joseph Bowling (Fh452).  He married prior to 1815 ----- -----.  They had children: 

a
Caswell born about 1816 who married 1836 Mary Lindsay (432)

b
Joel born about 1817 in Anderson County, Tennessee, who married 1838 Adaline M. Carroll. (432) From "Sketches of Tennessee Pioneer Baptist Preachers" by Burnett pp 70-71, "Joel Bowling, son of Larkin H. Bowling.... his grandfather, Joseph Bowling, was a native of Virginia." (698)

c.
Perhaps Larkin Bowlin (As spelled in their Family Bible), born 10 Apr 1813 in Tennessee, died after the 1880 Roane County, Tennessee census, thought to be buried in Old Smith Family Cemetery, Post Oak Tennessee (Roane); a member of Post Oak Christian Church last years of his life.  Parents unknown were from VA and NC. Larkin Bowlin and Catharine Gibbons were married 29 Jan 1839, Roane County, Tennessee. (698)
  

Larkin Bowling, along with Benjamin (Fh150), Joel (150a), and Joseph Bowling (Fh452), was on the 1805 tax list of Anderson County, Tennessee. (222) Larkin Bowling, Anderson County, Tennessee, JP court Minutes 1810 page 2 Page 51. (1553) Larkin Bolin was in the War of 1812, Tennessee.  (978) Larkin Bowling is in the 1830 Census of Anderson County, Tennessee, with a male age 15-20. (993)(994) Larkin H. Bowlin was age 64 born Virginia according to the 1850 Census of Tennessee.  In the household was Katharine age 62 born Pennsylvania, and Mandy C. age 15 and Randolph age 13. (985)(986) 

5N 4615.Levi 1780-d>1840<1850/mc1815 Mary "Polly" Asher b1783--His father was James #270


*
Daughter b1800-10


*
Son b1810-15


*
William 1817-<1900/Hannah or Minnie Wallen, or Winney Sizemore


*
Margaret b1818/m      John Holland


*
James b1820/m       Mary ----- --Had son Larkin b1844


*
Daughter b1820-25



John 1828-dc1899/m1852 Mary Mills


*
1830 & 1840 Census of Hawkins County, TN, per Source #1155

5N
Fh4615

Levi Bowling was born 1780 the son of James (Fh270) and Mary "Polly" Blevins. (320)  Some people believe Levi to be the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bowling (Fh390). (320) Levi Bolling was the son of Benjamin and Mary Patsy "Pattie" (Phelps) Bolling (Fh110). (874)   

Marriage and Children

Levi Bowling married Mary "Polly" Asher, the daughter of William and Peggy (Blevins) Asher. Levi Bowling had children: William born 1817 in Tennessee who married Hannah or Minnie Wallen, and James born 1820 in Tennessee who married Mary -----.  It is believed that Levi had other children who remained in Tennessee. (320) Four of the six children of Levi and Mary Bowling are identified as Margaret, William, James in Clay County, and John lived in Knox County, Kentucky. (1155)

Movement

Levi Bolin along with William Bolin signed a petition 1799 in Hawkins County, Tennessee. (7)  Levy Bolen, along with William Bolen (perhaps Fh780), was on the 1799 tax list of Hawkins, Tennessee. (222) According to the Minutes of Big Spring Primitive Baptist Church of Claiborne County, Tennessee, Levi Boling (Fh4615) was received by experience on August 4 Saturday 1802. (1155) Levi Bowling (Fh4615) was in the Hancock area of Hawkins County, Tennessee in 1830.  In this same county, Hawkins County, Tennessee, 1830, living in the Blackwater area was Dicey Bowling f.c., John Bowling f.c., and John Bowling f.c.  Now these people listed as f.c.  (free colored) were not Negroes, but a mixture of Indian and are now called by a false name of Melungons.  They were listed as white by all other census. (7) Levi Bolling went to Hawkins County, Tennessee. On the 1830 Census, page 84, he has a household of four males, four females, the oldest male being 50-60, i.e. born 1770-1780. (874) Levi Bowlin is on the 1830 and 1840 Census of Hawkins County, Tennessee.  Levi Bowlin is not on the census after 1840. Moved to Kentucky. (1155) Levi (Fh4615) and his wife Mary and son James are listed on the 1830 and 1840 census of Hawkins County, Tennessee. Levi (Fh4615) is not listed on the Hawkins County census after 1840 but is listed as a conveyor of deed in 1842. The 1830 and 1840 census of Hawkins County, Tennessee shows 3 sons and 3 daughters. Levi, Mary, and James Bowling sold a farm on Duck Creek, Hawkins County to Nancy Mathis on August 27, 1842. James Bowling sold another farm, also on Duck Creek, to Moore & McCarty on same day. John Bowling witnessed both transactions. The land that James Bowling sold to Moore & McCarty adjoined that of John Holland, husband of Margaret Bowling, daughter of Levi and Mary Bowling. The families of Levi Bowling, James Bowling, and John Bowling arrived in Clay County, Kentucky shortly after the sale of the two farms.(1155) Levi (Fh4615) does not appear on any of the Clay County, Kentucky tax lists from 1810 through 1840. (1155) William Bowling who married Winney Sizemore is NOT the son of Levi Bowling. William Bowling always claimed a Virginia birthplace and Levi was in Hawkins, TN at least from about 1799 on. A descendant of William & Winney (whose name I don't remember - Lillian I think) completely disavows any connection to Levi Bowling in her lineage & family lore. I think the erroneous connection to Levi came about because in the 1850 Clay Co. census, William & Winney were living next door to Levi's son, James L. Bowling & family who had just moved to Clay County, KY from TN. (1803)

5M9 4635. Markus bc1786-1855/mc1805 1/w Elizabeth Wright--His father was James #301


(Markus is likely the same person as Fh4653)


*
Washington


*
John


*
James 1811-1893/m1832 Ruth Harbor (bc1816-d>1880)


*
William


*
Catherine


*
Elizabeth


*
Ester/Frederick Shelton



2/w Mrs. Lida (Foley) Harbor


*
Children per source #961

5M9   
Fh4635 
Markus Bowling was born about 1786 the son of James and ---- (Carter) Bowling.  He married about 1805 Miss Elizabeth Wright.  They had seven children (See his family group sheet for the list of children).  In his old days, a widower, he married Mrs. Lida (Foley) Harbor. (961) I found that Marvel Bowling marriage to Litty Foley lists his name as Mark.  In the Rufus Bird article, Marvel is listed as Marvel Marcus. I found much of the article to be true.  I am trying to tie Marvel with Gabriel as brothers.  I have tracked my family to Patrick County, Virginia where the 1810 and 1812 tax records indicate that Marvel, James, James Jr, Thomas and Thomas Jr. (the last two spelled their names Bowlin) were the only Bowlings.  I come across a lot of information on our family from Ruval Morrison who is deceased but left 50 pages of research behind with a true genealogist who threw nothing away.  He and I may be related as we are finding some of his family intertwined in the puzzle. (1228) See Marvel Fh4653.

5M9   
Fh4635 
Markus Bowling was born about 1786 the son of James and ---- (Carter) Bowling.  He married about 1805 Miss Elizabeth Wright.  They had seven children (See his family group sheet for the list of children).  In his old days, a widower, he married Mrs. Lida (Foley) Harbor. (961) I found that Marvel Bowling marriage to Litty Foley lists his name as Mark.  In the Rufus Bird article, Marvel is listed as Marvel Marcus. I found much of the article to be true.  I am trying to tie Marvel with Gabriel as brothers.  I have tracked my family to Patrick County, Virginia where the 1810 and 1812 tax records indicate that Marvel, James, James Jr, Thomas and Thomas Jr. (the last two spelled their names Bowlin) were the only Bowlings.  I come across a lot of information on our family from Ruval Morrison who is deceased but left 50 pages of research behind with a true genealogist who threw nothing away.  He and I may be related as we are finding some of his family intertwined in the puzzle. (1228) See Marvel Fh4653.

5M9 4653. Marvel or Marvil 1780-1855/m1801 1/w Sarah "Salley" Wright-His father was James #301


(Marvel is likely the same person as Fh4635)



Polley S. b1802



John W. b1804 or John Clay b1802/m1830 1/w Sally Handy,m1861 2/w Helen Jones



Salley b1807/m1825 John Plaster



James 1811-1892/m1837 Ruth M. Foley (1816-1900)



Andrew Washington 1815-1870/m1835 Martha Handy, m1849 Lucinda B. Foley



Esther Hetta 1820-1865/Frederick Shelton--See 4635g



Maltilda b1822/3-1882/m1843 Wesley Foley (1823-1882)--lived in Patrick Co. VA



William D. or William W.



2/w m1841 Delila "Litty" Foley (1790-1886)-- See Fh4635

5M9   
Fh4653  
Marvel Bowling married Sallie Wright on 18 November 1801 in Amherst County, Virginia, witnessed by Peter Martin and surety was Andrew Wright, her father.  Marvel does not mention his parents so we were wondering if he could have been living away from home and working for either of the Martins or the Wrights. (1228) Marvel Bolling is on the 1810 (and 1821) tax list of Patrick County, Virginia.  Also on that tax list was James Boling, Sr.  and Jr., and two Thomas Bowlings. (7)(380) -----Bowling married Sarah S. Wright.  They had children: Polley S.  born 1802, John W. born 1804 and Salley born 1807.  All children were born in Amherst County, Virginia. (451) Son John W.  Bowling born 1804 is really John Clay Bowling born 1802. He is my 3 G grandfather. (1228) Son John Clay Bowling was the son of Marvel and Sallie Wright Bowling.  He first married Sally Handy on 20 MAR 1830 in Patrick County, Virginia.  He then married Helen Jones in Mercer County, Virginia in 1861.  John Bowling marriage record to Helen Jones he listed his parents as Marvel and Sarah Bowling and said that he was from Nelson County, Virginia.  Marvel Bowling supposedly died in Mercer County, Virginia in 1855 but we can find no record of the death or any burial.  I am wondering if Marvel, his son John moved or went somewhere and all were killed or just died somewhere else. (1228) Marvel Bolling was a witness in 1813, Patrick County, Virginia, when Gabriel Bowlin/Bolling Sr. (Fh232) bought some land.  I believe Marvel and Gabriel might have been brothers. (910) I wonder if there might have been 1 or 2 other brothers for Gabriel and Marvel, namely William and James Jr.  They all were in Patrick County, Virginia, at the same time and they appear in various combinations on each others business and family transactions. (1228) I found that Marvel Bowling marriage to Litty Foley lists his name as Mark.  In the Rufus Bird article, Marvel is listed as Marvel Marcus. I found much of the article to be true.  I am trying to tie Marvel with Gabriel as brothers.  I have tracked my family to Patrick County, Virginia where the 1810 and 1812 tax records indicate that Marvel, James, James Jr, Thomas and Thomas Jr. (the last two spelled their names Bowlin) were the only Bowlings.  I come across a lot of information on our family from Ruval Morrison who is deceased but left 50 pages of research behind with a true genealogist who threw nothing away.  He and I may be related as we are finding some of his family intertwined in the puzzle. (1228) James Bowling (Fh301) had a son Marvel Bowling (Fh4653) born 1780 Virginia and died 1855 Mercer County, Virginia (now West Virginia). See Markus Fh4635. Son James Bowling was in the 1880 Census of Mercer County, now West Virginia: 
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	Search results |  Download 

	Previous Household   

	Next Household 



	




	 
	Household:
 Name 
Relation
Marital Status
Gender
Race
Age
Birthplace
Occupation
Father's Birthplace
Mother's Birthplace
 James BOWLING 

 Self 

 M 

 Male 

 W 

 68 

 VA 

 Farmer 

 VA 

 VA 

 Ruth BOWLING 

 Wife 

 M 

 Female 

 W 

 64 

 VA 

 Keeping House 

 VA 

 VA 

 James BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 32 

 VA 

 Farm Labor 

 VA 

 VA 

 Green BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 24 

 VA 

 Farm Labor 

 VA 

 VA 

 Deliah BOWLING 

 MotherL 

 W 

 Female 

 W 

 89 

 VA 

  

 VA 

 VA 



Source Information:
 

Census Place
Beaver Pond, Mercer, West Virginia

 

Family History Library Film  

1255408
 

NA Film Number  

T9-1408

 

Page Number  

15B     




5M9   
Fh4653  
Marvel Bowling married Sallie Wright on 18 November 1801 in Amherst County, Virginia, witnessed by Peter Martin and surety was Andrew Wright, her father.  Marvel does not mention his parents so we were wondering if he could have been living away from home and working for either of the Martins or the Wrights. (1228) Marvel Bolling is on the 1810 (and 1821) tax list of Patrick County, Virginia.  Also on that tax list was James Boling, Sr.  and Jr., and two Thomas Bowlings. (7)(380) -----Bowling married Sarah S. Wright.  They had children: Polley S.  born 1802, John W. born 1804 and Salley born 1807.  All children were born in Amherst County, Virginia. (451) Son John W.  Bowling born 1804 is really John Clay Bowling born 1802. He is my 3 G grandfather. (1228) Son John Clay Bowling was the son of Marvel and Sallie Wright Bowling.  He first married Sally Handy on 20 MAR 1830 in Patrick County, Virginia.  He then married Helen Jones in Mercer County, Virginia in 1861.  John Bowling marriage record to Helen Jones he listed his parents as Marvel and Sarah Bowling and said that he was from Nelson County, Virginia.  Marvel Bowling supposedly died in Mercer County, Virginia in 1855 but we can find no record of the death or any burial.  I am wondering if Marvel, his son John moved or went somewhere and all were killed or just died somewhere else. (1228) Marvel Bolling was a witness in 1813, Patrick County, Virginia, when Gabriel Bowlin/Bolling Sr. (Fh232) bought some land.  I believe Marvel and Gabriel might have been brothers. (910) I wonder if there might have been 1 or 2 other brothers for Gabriel and Marvel, namely William and James Jr.  They all were in Patrick County, Virginia, at the same time and they appear in various combinations on each others business and family transactions. (1228) I found that Marvel Bowling marriage to Litty Foley lists his name as Mark.  In the Rufus Bird article, Marvel is listed as Marvel Marcus. I found much of the article to be true.  I am trying to tie Marvel with Gabriel as brothers.  I have tracked my family to Patrick County, Virginia where the 1810 and 1812 tax records indicate that Marvel, James, James Jr, Thomas and Thomas Jr. (the last two spelled their names Bowlin) were the only Bowlings.  I come across a lot of information on our family from Ruval Morrison who is deceased but left 50 pages of research behind with a true genealogist who threw nothing away.  He and I may be related as we are finding some of his family intertwined in the puzzle. (1228) James Bowling (Fh301) had a son Marvel Bowling (Fh4653) born 1780 Virginia and died 1855 Mercer County, Virginia (now West Virginia). See Markus Fh4635. Son James Bowling was in the 1880 Census of Mercer County, now West Virginia: 

	Household Record

	 1880 United States Census 


	 

	
	Search results |  Download 

	Previous Household   

	Next Household 



	




	 
	Household:
 Name 
Relation
Marital Status
Gender
Race
Age
Birthplace
Occupation
Father's Birthplace
Mother's Birthplace
 James BOWLING 

 Self 

 M 

 Male 

 W 

 68 

 VA 

 Farmer 

 VA 

 VA 

 Ruth BOWLING 

 Wife 

 M 

 Female 

 W 

 64 

 VA 

 Keeping House 

 VA 

 VA 

 James BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 32 

 VA 

 Farm Labor 

 VA 

 VA 

 Green BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 W 

 24 

 VA 

 Farm Labor 

 VA 

 VA 

 Deliah BOWLING 

 MotherL 

 W 

 Female 

 W 

 89 

 VA 

  

 VA 

 VA 



Source Information:
 

Census Place
Beaver Pond, Mercer, West Virginia

 

Family History Library Film  

1255408
 

NA Film Number  

T9-1408

 

Page Number  

15B     




5 4657.
Mitchell (?) bc1790/95-1837/Mary ----- bc1790/95-d>1870<1880 born in NC


a
Harrison C. bc1817-1842 /m<1833  Matilda “Martha” Peery 1809-1866




A Descendant kit 2788 tested in to DNA Group 5


a
Sarah b1820


a
Jane b 1824


a
Mitchell b1827/probably m1858 Matilda Noonkesser


a
John b 1829


a
Rachel b1838


a
Known offsprings (probably some older ones I don't have names for) per source #1426

5 
Fh4657 
Mitchell Boling, I now believe, is the Mitchell in Hawkins County, Tennessee. (1426) Mitchell could be my ancestor. My ancestors were in Sevier/Blount Counties, Tennessee (lived on the line between the two counties). (1426)

Children

He had children: 

1.
Harrison born about 1817 (bought land, Blount County, Tennessee, in 1835) and married Matilda Peery. (1426) Harrison Bolen bc1802 who married Matilda (Martha) Peery was a brother to Mitchell (b. 1790) and their parents were reportedly William Bolen and Mary who married before 1790 and lived in North Carolina. (1488) I am pretty sure son Harrison (4657a) was born prior to 1817 - on the 1840 census, he is listed as being between 30-40. I tend to believe that Mitchell was his older brother instead of his father. To fit into the 30-40 category in 1840, Harrison would have had to be born between 1800 and 1810.  Both Mitchell (born 1827) and John (born 1829) were wards of the court in Blount County, Tennessee.  They were apprenticed out.  Mitchell was mistreated and the court gave custody to Harrison. (1488) A Descendant kit 2788 tested in to DNA Group 5.
2.
Sarah born 1820 in Tennessee lived in Sevier County, Tennessee and had a son named Mitchell. (1426)

3.
Jane born 1824 in Tennessee and lived in Sevier County, Tennessee and had a son named Harrison. (1426) 

4.
Mitchell born 1827 in Tennessee and lived in Sevier County, Tennessee and had a son named John M (Mitchell?), Harrison became his guardian in Jan 1838. Have a copy of court action. Therefore their father had died. (1426) Both Mitchell (born 1827) and John (born 1829) were wards of the court in Blount County, Tennessee.  They were apprenticed out.  Mitchell was mistreated and the court gave custody to Harrison. (1488) 

5.
John born 1829 Tennessee and lived in Sevier County, Tennessee and I don't know much about him. (1426) Both Mitchell (born 1827) and John (born 1829) were wards of the court in Blount County, Tennessee.  They were apprenticed out.  Mitchell was mistreated and the court gave custody to Harrison. (1488)

6.
Rachel born April 1838, Sevier County, Tennessee about four months after their father died, Rachel had a son named John Mitchell. (1426) 

My theory is that the Hawkins County, Tennessee Mitchell was the father. The 1830 Census shows him with two males 0-5, one male 10-15, two 15-20 and one 30-40. It shows two females 5-10, one female 20-30 and one 30-40.  The ages of the known 6 siblings fit with the census and there are two males and one female extra. Two of them could have been a married couple living at home, or at any rate children who were almost adults in 1830 and out on their own by 1840 census. I have studied all the Bolings/Bolens etc with all possible spellings in the 1830 Census in Tennessee and there is not another family group that matches whatsoever. With so many of my ancestor's offspring being born in Tennessee, beginning with 1820 (but and that census is incomplete) I think my ancestor had to have been in Tennessee in 1830. The Hawkins Co Mitchell had a small land grant for Hawkins, applied for in 1827, and received in 1831. He just drops out of the census in 1840, can't find him anywhere, and you see this would fit with my unknown man dying in late 1837 or early 1838. (1426) The Mitchell in the Randolph, NC 1815 tax list could have been the same Mitchell of the 1779 tax list, but that is a span of 36 years. Perhaps more likely he is the Hawkins Co Mitchell.  There is definitely a difference of opinion about what happened to the Mitchell born to Benjamin Fh120 and Tabitha Bowling. The Hawkins County, Tennessee, Mitchell is the right age to have been their son and he did have land in Hawkins that bordered land owned by Isaac Boling, and Benjamin and Tabitha also had a son named Isaac. It's all rather circumstantial. (1426)

5 
Fh4657 
Mitchell Boling, I now believe, is the Mitchell in Hawkins County, Tennessee. (1426) Mitchell could be my ancestor. My ancestors were in Sevier/Blount Counties, Tennessee (lived on the line between the two counties). (1426)

Children

He had children: 

1.
Harrison born about 1817 (bought land, Blount County, Tennessee, in 1835) and married Matilda Peery. (1426) Harrison Bolen bc1802 who married Matilda (Martha) Peery was a brother to Mitchell (b. 1790) and their parents were reportedly William Bolen and Mary who married before 1790 and lived in North Carolina. (1488) I am pretty sure son Harrison (4657a) was born prior to 1817 - on the 1840 census, he is listed as being between 30-40. I tend to believe that Mitchell was his older brother instead of his father. To fit into the 30-40 category in 1840, Harrison would have had to be born between 1800 and 1810.  Both Mitchell (born 1827) and John (born 1829) were wards of the court in Blount County, Tennessee.  They were apprenticed out.  Mitchell was mistreated and the court gave custody to Harrison. (1488) A Descendant kit 2788 tested in to DNA Group 5.
2.
Sarah born 1820 in Tennessee lived in Sevier County, Tennessee and had a son named Mitchell. (1426)

3.
Jane born 1824 in Tennessee and lived in Sevier County, Tennessee and had a son named Harrison. (1426) 

4.
Mitchell born 1827 in Tennessee and lived in Sevier County, Tennessee and had a son named John M (Mitchell?), Harrison became his guardian in Jan 1838. Have a copy of court action. Therefore their father had died. (1426) Both Mitchell (born 1827) and John (born 1829) were wards of the court in Blount County, Tennessee.  They were apprenticed out.  Mitchell was mistreated and the court gave custody to Harrison. (1488) 

5.
John born 1829 Tennessee and lived in Sevier County, Tennessee and I don't know much about him. (1426) Both Mitchell (born 1827) and John (born 1829) were wards of the court in Blount County, Tennessee.  They were apprenticed out.  Mitchell was mistreated and the court gave custody to Harrison. (1488)

6.
Rachel born April 1838, Sevier County, Tennessee about four months after their father died, Rachel had a son named John Mitchell. (1426) 

My theory is that the Hawkins County, Tennessee Mitchell was the father. The 1830 Census shows him with two males 0-5, one male 10-15, two 15-20 and one 30-40. It shows two females 5-10, one female 20-30 and one 30-40.  The ages of the known 6 siblings fit with the census and there are two males and one female extra. Two of them could have been a married couple living at home, or at any rate children who were almost adults in 1830 and out on their own by 1840 census. I have studied all the Bolings/Bolens etc with all possible spellings in the 1830 Census in Tennessee and there is not another family group that matches whatsoever. With so many of my ancestor's offspring being born in Tennessee, beginning with 1820 (but and that census is incomplete) I think my ancestor had to have been in Tennessee in 1830. The Hawkins Co Mitchell had a small land grant for Hawkins, applied for in 1827, and received in 1831. He just drops out of the census in 1840, can't find him anywhere, and you see this would fit with my unknown man dying in late 1837 or early 1838. (1426) The Mitchell in the Randolph, NC 1815 tax list could have been the same Mitchell of the 1779 tax list, but that is a span of 36 years. Perhaps more likely he is the Hawkins Co Mitchell.  There is definitely a difference of opinion about what happened to the Mitchell born to Benjamin Fh120 and Tabitha Bowling. The Hawkins County, Tennessee, Mitchell is the right age to have been their son and he did have land in Hawkins that bordered land owned by Isaac Boling, and Benjamin and Tabitha also had a son named Isaac. It's all rather circumstantial. (1426)

5N 4667. Obadiah b>1764<1770-1850/m     Sarah Langley (bc1765-d>1850)—His father was John #418


A descendant kit 4701 tested into DNA Group 5

a
John Bolling 1793-1862/m     Nancy Shaffer (1801-1870)

a
William Langley Bolling 1795-1870/m      Letitia Douglas b1800

a
Sarah Bolling b1797

a
Margaret M. Bolling b1798/m      John Franklin Dickey (1798-1860)

a
Nancy Bolling b1800

a
Rebecca Bolling b1802/m      ----- Lawrence

a
Obediah Bolling b1807/m     Louisa ------


a
Children per Source #1745

5N
Fh4667
Obadiah Bolling (Fh4667) was the son of John Bolling (Fh418) born about 1745 in Virginia and died before 1810 (sic) in Greenville District, South Carolina.  John Bolling (Fh418) was married to Rebecca Rea born about 1750 in Virginia and died between 1810-1820. (1745) Obadiah Bolling was born between 1760 and 1770 in Virginia. Obadiah Bolling died before in Walker County, GA or Jefferson County, AL. (1745) A descendant kit 4701 tested into DNA Group 5. Obediah Bolding  bought land, Books D-E (1795 - 1798) Greenville County, South Carolina, Aug. 12, 1797. William Leach (Greenville Co) to  Obediah Bolding ; for L45 sold 850 ac on the main branch of Brush Cr of Reedy R; border Alston, Barnhill, Thompson, & Towns; part of 2 tracts: (a) 955 ac and (b) 708 ac granted Jun. 1792 by Gov. Charles Pinckney to (omitted). (signed) William Leach ; witness James Ayres & Joseph Ayres; wit. oath by Joseph Ayres before David Goodlett; rec. Sept. 15, 1798; Book E page 98. (1615b) Obediah Bolding  was a witness. Books D-E (1795 - 1798) Greenville County, South Carolina    Jan. 11, 1798 William Eubanks (Greenville Co) to Philip Perry (same); for L30 sterling sold 150 ac on Still House Br of Reedy R. & S side of Brush Cr; border: Perry on NW, vacant land, "Sedging", & Hough Roark. (signed) William Eubanks' mark "X"; witness Daniel Ayres &  Obediah Bolding; Wit. oath by D Ayres before James Carter; rec. Dec 3, 1798; Book E page 123. (1615) Obadiach (or Obadiah) Bolding was a witness Books F - G  (1800 - 1807) Greenville County, South Carolina Jan. 29, 1802 Nathaniel Stokes (Greenville Dist) to Lemuel Jas Alston (same); for $66.50 sold 38 ac; border: begins at a small red oak saplin "in or about" head of a hollow near said Stokes' "plantation' on a line marked for Thos Brandon, joins Timmons' old corner, said Alston, James Rickey, & crosses a branch. (signed) Nath Stokes; witness David Reid, Elijah Miller, & Obadiach (or Obadiah) Bolding proved Feb. 4, 1802 by David Reid before D Goodlett JQ; Feb. 4, 1802 dower renounced by Nancy Stokes, wife of Nath., before David Goodlett JQ (signed) Nancy Stokes' mark "X"; Book F page 363. (1615) Obadiah Bolding  was a witness, Books F - G  (1800 - 1807) Greenville County, South Carolina   Mar. 23, 1801 Martin Hewlet and wife Jane (Greenville Dist) to Larkin Tarrant (same); for $600 sold 130 ac on Saluda R; border;: begins at "confluence" of Mill Cr, runs down Saluda R to a conditional line "which line is fully laid down' by a deed from Samuel Mosley to John Machan, joins Mrs. Mary Sowell, & her spring branch; [full metes & bounds not mentioned]; includes an acre on N side of Mill Cr joining said mill "for the use of the same". (signed Martin Hewlett & Jeaney" Hewlett; witness Henry Paris & Obadiah Bolding; ; proved Sept. 5, 1801 by   Obadiah Bolding before John Burns JP; recorded Apr. 24. 1802; Book F page 441. (1615) 
Obadiah Bolling married Sarah Langley (bc1765-d>1850) born in Virginia and died in Jefferson County, AL. (1745) They had the following children (1745):
1 John Bolling, son of Obadiah Bolling (Fh4667) and Sarah Langley, was born Apr 03, 1793 in South Carolina and died 1862 in Union County, AR. He married Nancy Shaffer born Sep 10, 1801 in Tennessee and died 1870 in Union County, AR. (1745)
2 William Langley Bolling born Oct 05, 1795 in Virginia and died 1870 in Harrison County, TX. He married Letitia Douglas born May 28, 1800 in Tennessee.
3 Sarah Bolling born 1797

4 Margaret M. Bolling born 1798. She married John Franklin Dickey (1798 – 1860)
5 Nancy Bolling born 1800

6 Rebecca Bolling born 1802 in South Carolina and married ------Lawrence

7 Obediah Bolling born 1807. He married Louisa Unknown.

SC Index 1810 Census Greenville Dist SC
Name:

Page:
Boling, E.
114
Elliott Fh2285,6Z or 6X
Boling, Joh
112
John Fh416,418e 5N
Boling, O.
115
Obediah Fh4667,418d 5N
Bolling, Tully
106
Tully Fh738, 610g

Book K, page 269, 1818, Greenville County, SC
State of South Carolina
Know all men by these presents that we, OBADIAH BOLLING (418d), JOHN BOLLING (418e), COLLINS BOLLING (418f), JAMES BOLLING (418g), WILLIAM AYRES (husband of Mary 418c), JOSEPH AYRES (husband of Elizabeth 418h) & JOHN COOPER (Husband of Nancy 418a), of Greenville district state aforesaid for and in consideration of the sum of Four hundred dollars to us in hand paid by JAMES COOPER, of said state and district have granted, bargained and delivered by these presents do grant bargain sell and deliver unto him the said JAMES COOPER, all that tract of land originally granted to Robert Hazlet lying and being in the district of Greenville on Saluda River Two Hundred and Seventy some acres be the same more or less beginning on….(etc)
To have and to hold all and singular the premises before mentioned to the said JAMES COOPER, to him his heirs and assigns forever……
…witness our hands and seals the nineteenth day of January 1818.
Wit: John Ayres and Robert Alexander
Signed: Obadiah Bolding 
John Bolding 
Collins Bolling
James Bolding
Wm. Ayres
Joseph Ayres
John (x) Cooper
State of South Carolina, Greenville District
Personally came by me, Robert Alexander being duly sworn and saith on said oath that he saw Obadiah Bolding, John Bolding, Collins Bolding, James Bolding, William Ayres, Joseph Ayres and John Cooper sign seal and deliver the within deed to James Cooper for the use and purpose within mentioned and that he saw John Ayres sign his name with himself as a subscribing witness sworn to and subscribed the 31 day March 1818.
James Alexander, P. P. Robert Alexander
Recorded 7 Sept 1818. 

5N 4667a 
John Bolling, son of Obadiah Bolling (Fh4667) and Sarah Langley, was born Apr 03, 1793 in South Carolina and died 1862 in Union County, AR. He married Nancy Shaffer born Sep 10, 1801 in Tennessee and died 1870 in Union County, AR. (1745)

1850 Federal Census, Jefferson County, Alabama:
p. 148A:
#58/58:
John Boling (4667a, 5N), age 55, Methodist Clergyman, born SC
Nancy Boling, age 45, born Va
Mary Ann Boling, age 23, born Tenn
Thomas Boling, age 20, born Tenn
Amanda H. Boling, age 16, born Tenn
Sarah Jane Boling, age 14, born Ala
Nancy F. Boling, age 5, born Ala
Sarah Boling, age 86, born Va (mother of John 4667a and wife of Obadiah Fh4667)
Rebecca Lawrence, age 48, born SC (4667f) 

Creed F. Lawrence, age 19, born Tenn

5M15 4677. Pleasant bc1799-d>1870/1/w Margaret Bledseau or Bletcher--His father was William #780


a*
James 1825-1911/m1848 Mary Parsons


a*
Sarah bc1830/Andrew Jenkins 


a*
Mary A. 1832-1910/     Daniel Stout (b1838)


a*
Mahala bc1837


a
Thomas 1839-1869/m1866 Catharine Zwilling (1825-1869)


 *
Carlos (?) bc1838


a*
Rosanna 1840-1923/1/h m1860 James Baker, 2/h m1866 Milton B. W. Harman


a b
Pleasant "Pleas" 1849-1933 FAG=38304991/m1870 Sarah Margaret Shinabarger



2/w m1851 Hannah Glorist



Matilda



Nancy Jane 1855-1913/m1874 Milton Throckmorton 


*
In 1850 Census of Mason Township, Lawrence Co., Ohio.  James was in his own household.


a
Children per source #964


b
Pleasant 1849-1933 was their grandson, the son of James 1825-1911

5M15   
Fh4677,780a  
Pleasant Boling was born in Tennessee in 1800. He was the son of William and Nancy (Lawson) Boling (Fh780).  Pleasant Boling married Margaret Bledsoe. They lived in Lee County, Virginia and Lawrence County, Ohio. (7)
1840 Census of Elizabeth Township, Lawrence County, Ohio, page 20:




      Under 20   20-49     50-up


BOLEN 
Pleasant 


6
2
0
BOLEN 
Wm. 


1
2
2
1840 Census of Elizabeth Township, Lawrence County, Ohio, page 20:


Males
<5
5/10
10/15
15/20
20/30
30/40
50/60
60/70

BOLEN 
Pleasant
1


1


1

BOLEN 
Wm.





2


1
1840 Census of Elizabeth Township, Lawrence County, Ohio, page 20:


Females
<5
5/10
10/15
15/20
20/30
30/40
50/60
60/70

BOLEN 
Pleasant
2

2



1

BOLEN 
Wm.




1



1
Pleasant Bolan is in the 1850 Census of Mason Township, Lawrence County, Ohio, as age 47 born Virginia. Children in the household are from age 20 to age 11 all born Tennessee. (7) 
1850 Census of Mason Township, Lawrence County, Ohio:


Pleasant bc1803,VA


Sarah bc1830


Mary bc1832


Mahala bc1837


Carlos bc1838


Rosanna bc1839 (Ancestry.com)


Pleasant Boling was born about 1799. Pleasant Boling married Margaret Bledseau. They had a son James Boling born 1825 in Virginia, who married 1840 Mary Parson and who died 1911 in Norton, Kansas. (885) Pleasant Boling was born about 1803 in Virginia to William and Nancy Boling. He farmed there until 1839 when they moved to Lawrence County, Ohio. He was married to Margaret Bletcher. Margaret died and Pleasant married in 1851 Hannah Glorist. In 1856 Pleasant Boling and family moved to Nodaway County, Missouri. The 1860 census shows Pleasant with children Sarah and Thomas, so apparently second wife died in Ohio. (964) Pleasant Boling, age 67 (i.e. bc1803) Virginia, living with son Thomas in 1870 Nodaway County, Missouri. (1785)  Pleasant died in Kansas most probably with his daughter. (964) Pleasant and Margaret Boling were farming in Ohio, until 1856, when he came to this county (Nodaway, Missouri) and purchased a farm, which he operated many years. His last days, however, were spent in Kansas.  He was twice married and by his first wife had six children: Sarah, James, Mary A., Mahala, Thomas and Rose A., and by the second union he had two daughters: Matilda and Nancy J. (1785)

5 696.
Thomas d1826/m1804 1/w Mary Potts (1783-1816)—
Kit 245133 DNA 5


Thomas 1813-1897/m1832 Mary A. Davis, m1844 2/w Lydia Potts



2/w m>1816 ----- -----

5   
Fh696  
Thomas Bolen was a native of Virginia and an early settler of Ohio. Thomas Bolen married first ----- ----- and they had a son Thomas Bolen Jr. who was born 1813 in Jefferson County, Ohio, and died 1897 in York, Nebraska. Thomas Bolen's Sr. first wife died in 1816. He married second ----- ----. Thomas Bolen Sr. died in 1826. (852) Thomas Bolen married 1804 Mary Potts in Jefferson County, Ohio. (7) Thomas Bollen married Mary Potts, 1804, Jefferson County, Ohio. (287) I checked the Potts file and did not come up with any new information on my Jonathan Potts. The Jonathan Potts I am researching was born in 1754 and removed to Jefferson Co. Ohio, settling on land he received from his service during the Revolutionary War. He married Elizabeth English in 1788. Subsequently they had 12 children including Lydia Potts (my ggg-grandmother). Lydia Potts married Thomas Bolen (II). Thomas Bolen's father and mother were Thomas Bolen (I) and Mary Potts, presumably of Loudoun Co., Va. I guess at this point the information I am looking for is regarding (1)Jonathan's military service and (2) who in the world is Mary Potts and where did she come from? (3) and finally who is Thomas Bolen (I). I seem to be lost in a circle of Potts and Bolens. Do you have any answers to these questions (granted they are extremely vague)? I do intend to keep an eye on the website you gave me. 

Ephraims Potts 

1792, Elizabeth, , , , 
Pittsylvania, VA, , 

James Henry Potts 

1839, Virginia, , , , 

Marshall, MS, , 

2/w, Lydia Potts 

1844, Thomas, , , 696a, 
Henry, IL, , 

Mary Potts 

1804, Thomas, , , 696, 
Jefferson, OH, ,

5N 778.
William b1786/m1807 Malinda Walters and/or Sally Bowling-- He was the son of James #270. Sally 

Bowling was the daughter of William #744. 


*
Thomas Jefferson "Jeff" b1814-d>1850/m        Susan Cox


*
Russell b1814--Some have him as Family Group #578-with 2rd wife


*
Lucinda b1818/James Lovins


*
Nancy b1823/Eli Bowling--He the son of John #270i


*
Isham b1824/Mary Garland


*
Elizabeth b1826/James Garland


*
Sarah "Sally" b1832/Samuel Chestnut


*
Thursey b1833


*
Mary b1839/James Davidson


*
Children per Source #320

5 779.
William bc1786-1850--A Descendant kit 3269 tested in to DNA Group 5


*
Jonathn Lee 1806-1879/mc1839 Rebecca Powell


*
Leonard Dison 1818-1894/m    1/w Mary -----, 2/w Sarah Scales Webb (bc1837-d>1880)




A Descendant kit 4317 tested in to DNA Group 5


*
William Riley 1820-1899/m     Elizabeth Jane Holcombe


*
Children per Source #1440

5
Fh779 
William Bolin was in Pendleton District, South Carolina, in 1800 on page 010 with 10100-00100-00. (9)(7)(1322) Descendant kits 3269 and 4317 tested in to DNA Group 5. William Bolen was in Pendleton District, South Carolina in 1810 on page 141. (9) William Bolding came to the Secona Baptist Church in 1811 from a neighboring church.  William Bolding was elected church clerk in 1812.  William Bolding had 80 acres on Gregory's Creek on the "road from Secona to Keowee".  In 1822 William Bolding got in to a dispute over church matters and left the church.  William Bolding bought land here (Northeast Pendlelton, for a time Ninety Six District) in the early 1800s the deeds at the courthouse in Abbeville.  (1062)  William Bolding may have had sons Jonathan Bolding born 1806 in South Carolina on the Keowee River and two other sons Buck and Dyson who later went to Georgia. (1062) Son Jonathan Bolding's was of Virginia parentage. (1062) Descendants have heard over and over that there were three boys, Jonathan, Buck and Dyson. (1062) Dyson died 1894 in Franklin County, Georgia. (1440) 

5M15

780.
William 1776-1855/Nancy Lawson (1780-     )--Descendant Kit 75097 tested into DNA 5


Head of Family String M15
a
Pleasant bc1799 or 1803-d>1870/1/w Margaret Bledseau or Bledsoe, 2/w Hannah

 Glorist--See Family #4677


  a
Enoch 1808-d>1845


*a
Thomas bc1812-d>1880


  a
Riley b1816


  a
Winnie b1818


*a
Mahala or Delora or Mahola b1826


*
In 1850 Census of Mason Twp., Lawrence Co, Ohio.  William is age 73 born Virginia, Nancy is 


age 70 born Va.


  a
Children per Source #1847

5M15   
Fh780  
William Boling was born in 1776. (7) William Boling was born Auguest 1776 in Virginia. (1847) It is said that William Bowling had a brother Thomas. (7) 

DNA

A Descendent Kit 75097 tested in to DNA 5. 

Marriage and children

William Boling married to Nancy Lawson who was born 1780 in Virginia. See the Family Group for their children. (1847) William Boling married Nancy Lawson. They had children: Enoch, Thomas, Riley, Winnie, Delora and Pleasant who was born 1800 in Tennessee. (7)

Movement

William Boling was from Virginia and North Carolina and settled in Hawkins or Grainger County, Tennessee between 1794 and 1799. Grainger County was created from Hawkins in 1796. Also see William (Fh745) (7) 

1840 Census of Elizabeth Township, Lawrence County, Ohio, page 20:




      Under 20   20-49     50-up


BOLEN 
Pleasant 


6
2
0
BOLEN 
Wm. 


1
2
2
1840 Census of Elizabeth Township, Lawrence County, Ohio, page 20:


Males
<5
5/10
10/15
15/20
20/30
30/40
50/60
60/70

BOLEN 
Pleasant
1


1


1

BOLEN 
Wm.





2


1
1840 Census of Elizabeth Township, Lawrence County, Ohio, page 20:


Females
<5
5/10
10/15
15/20
20/30
30/40
50/60
60/70

BOLEN 
Pleasant
2

2



1

BOLEN 
Wm.




1



1
William Bolan is in the 1850 Census of Mason Township, Lawrence County, Ohio, as age 73 born Virginia. Wife Nancy is age 70 born Virginia. (964)

1850 Census of Mason Township, Lawrence County, Ohio:


William bc1777,VA


Nancy bc1780,VA


Thomas bc1815,VA


Mahala bc1826,VA (Ancestry.com)

The family may have moved to Ohio then Indiana. (1847)
Death
William Boling/Bolin died in Mason Township, Lawrence County, Ohio in 1855. (964)
5U1 830. William L. 1731-1776/m1752/5 Amelia Aureilla Randolph (1739-1780) -His father was not John Fh380 (1R)
 


Many think this family never existed.



A descendant kit 14348 tested into DNA 5

ba
Archibald b1757/m     Jane ---- 


ba
John 1756/7-1835/m1777 Mary Tarpley--See Family Group #415




A descendant kit 804 tested into DNA 5




A descendant kit 1788 tested into DNA 5



A descendant kit 4832 tested into DNA 5



A descendant kit 7566 tested into DNA 5

ba
Samuel 1758-1808/m1777 Aligail "Abby" Choice--See Family Group #610




but Samuel Fh610’s descendants tested into DNA Group 7


ba
Amelia "Meta" Meotaka b1761


 a
Elizabeth Blair 1764-1817/m1783 Aaron Weatherbee


 a
William bc1757 or b1767-d>1840  Could be Fh899


 a
Ann Randolph 1771-d>1844/m1819 Rev. John Peyton Powell



Jane (?)/William Hopkins



Rolfe (?)


a
Children per source #960


b
Children per source #1045

5U1 
Fh830  
William Bolling (Fh830) was born 5 April 1731 in Goochland County, Virginia and died 1776 in Henry County, Virginia. William Bolling  married 1 January 1755 to Amelia Randolph who was born  15 June 1735 and died 5 Sept 1787. She was born and died on Turkey Island Plantation in Virginia. (1472, Informant Beth Roberson) William Bolling was born 1731. (30)(45, Bolling, Edward “Watson” (1904-      ))(320) Col. William Bolling was "of Virginia". (1045) Col. William Bolling was born about 1731. (391) William Bolling married Amelia Randolph. (45) William Bolling was born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30)  William Bolling married first Amelia Randolph the daughter of Richard Randolph and Annie Meade. (391) William Bowling (Bolling) married Amelia Randolph. (946) William Bowling married in 1755 Amelia Randolph. (320) 


William Bolling was a descendant of Pocahontas. (45) I can find no evidence in Virginia records that William and Amelia (Randolph) Bolling existed. (818) I am looking for clues to the mystery of William and Amelia Bolling (Fh830). From the evidence (and that's all it is) we have from descendants in that line, it appears that it may have been the John Bolling who married Mary Tarpley (Fh415) (or maybe even his son, John Tarpley Bolling (Fh416) who initiated the story that William Bolling (1731-1776)(Fh830) was a son of Major John Bolling (1700-1757) (Fh380, 1R) and therefore a descendant of Pocahontas. The evidence is all too strong that John Bolling (Fh380) never had a son named William, so I am of the opinion that someone AFTER William Bolling/Bowling created the story. That would naturally mean that later progeny of the perpetrators and their kin would be inclined to give their own children names like Meotaka, Blair, Elizabeth, Pocahontas, etc. That would be particularly true if the story was believed on down the line toward the future. Thus, the names in this correspondence (which were all used in the nineteenth century) that related to either Elizabeth Blair or Pocahontas or Amelia Randolph are merely repetitions of names used in the past. This would be a natural thing for a family to do. Another point. Samuel Bolling (1758-1808)(Fh610) had no children with names that referred to a relationship with John and Elizabeth Bolling. It is interesting to note that of the eighteen children of John Bolling (1756-1835)(Fh415) and Mary Tarpley Bolling, six children had names that specifically referred either to Pocahontas or to the children of John and Elizabeth Blair Bolling or to the Randolph, Kennon, or Rolfe families. Yet, like Samuel Bolling (Fh610), John Bolling's other brother, William Bolling (perhaps Fh908), also failed to name his children after anyone related to Pocahontas. Since we are working on assumptions, I can only assume that it was somewhere in the John and Mary Tarpley line that things got a little twisted. I don't know how, and I don't know why. (739, Informant Alexander R. “Bud” Bolling  Jr)  

They had children:

     
a.  Archibald. (1045) Archibald born 1756 (320) Archabald Bolling was their 1st son and he was born 1756 in Halifax County, Virginia. (946) Archibald born 1757 (304) A Joseph Shores Price and William Dandridge bought 530 acres in Henry County, Virginia, on the north side of Marrowbone Creek on 20 Apr 1780 --- witnesses were Jane and Archibald Bolling and Thomas Lorton. (1414)

     
b.  John (1045) John (Fh415) (1757-1835) who married Mary Tarplay (320) John (Fh415) 1756-1835 (304) John was born 1757 in Halifax County, Virginia.  (7)




A descendant kit 7566 tested into DNA 5



A descendant kit 804 tested into DNA 5




A descendant kit 1788 tested into DNA 5



A descendant kit 14348 tested into DNA 5
     
c.  Samuel (1045) Samuel (Fh610) (1758-1808) who married Abagail Choice (320) Samuel (Fh610) 1758-1808 (304) Samuel (7) Samuel Bolling was their 3rd son. I have a copy of his (Samuel) bible.  (946) A son by his first marriage was Samuel Bolling (Fh610). (391) Samuel Bolling the son of William and Amelia Bolling died 1808 in South Carolina. (951) I strongly suspect that this Samuel Bolling was a son (or grandson) of William Bolling (Fh905) (died 1772) and his wife Ann (died 1790) in Orange County, Virginia, who had a son Samuel included in a "longest liver" lease there in 1749. This couple had a son William Bolling/Bowling who died a Valley Forge on August 20, 1778. (818) There is a Samuel Bolling Family Bible Record. At the bottom of what I have it states "Bolling Bible records owned by Sara Sullivan Erwin of Ware Shoals, S.C. The original of this sheet was certified". (no date) I find now that she was an author of a book printed in 1949 (See source #1045). So maybe she had this bible record 50 years ago. The Samuel Bolling Bible Record that I have gives Samuels birth date as of 27 September 1758. Sara Sullivan Erwin (supposed early holder of the Samuel Bolling Bible) also had the "James Sullivan Bible Record". Apparently an article in Magazine of Virginia Genealogy, Vol. 25, #4, pp3-13 the author Carolyn Bland, "proves" the record was a fake. This revealed that another "Bible record" which came from the same source as the "Samuel Bolling Bible" was shown to be factually inaccurate. Learning of this, I corresponded with another descendant of Samuel Bolling, Miss Sue Senter. She informed me that the Bolling Bible was not correct. She had corresponded with Mrs. Carolyn Bland, the author of the article in the Magazine of Virginia Genealogy who confirms that both Bibles Records are very similar in wording, abbreviations and structure. Mrs. Bland went into great amount of detail. As was revealed when Mrs. Bland corresponded with Sue Senter, both the Samuel Bolling "Bible record" and the James Sullivan "Bible record" are not the genuine article". (1442)

      
d.  Amelia Metoka born 1761 (320) Amelia Meotaka "Meta" born 1761 (304) Meta Meotaka who married James Sullivant Sr. (7) One daughter Amelia and one daughter Matoaka "Mata". (1045)


e.  Elizabeth Blair 1764-1817 (304) Elizabeth Blair (1764-1817) who married Aaron Weatherbee (320)

     
f.  William born 1767 (304)(320) William (7) William Bolling was born to William and Amalie (Randolph) Bolling in Halifax County, Virginia, the part that later became Pittsylvania and still later Henry County, Virginia. (960) A poll taken in Henry County, Virginia, for Thomas Cooper, 9 Apr 1787 shows James Boldin (Fh270), James Edwards, William Bolling (830f), John Bolling (Fh415 or Fh418), Thomas Edwards and Augustine Thomas (Augustine Thomas was distantly related to Ursula Bell who married John Bolling (Fh367)). (1414)


g.  Anne Randolph born 1771. (304) Ann who married John Peyton Powell (7) Anne born 1771 who married John Peyton Powell. (320)


 h.  Jane who married William Hopkins. (7)

They had four sons. (64)

William was a sergeant, 1758, in the French and Indian War. (45) A Revolutionary soldier in the Virginia Continental Line, died 1776 in service. (391) William Bolling died 1776. (45) 

Proven Bad Data

William Bolling was born to John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling (Fh380, 1R). (30)(320)(391)  William Bolling's father was Major John Bolling. (45)

5U1 
830b 
Archibald Bolling was born 1756 in Halifax County, Virginia, the son of William and Amelia (Randolph) Bolling. Apparently he had brothers Samuel, John, and Rolfe.  They went to Henry County, Virginia from Halifax County, Virginia.  John, Archibald, and Samuel were in the Militia.  Their father William Bolling was killed in 1776.  Their mother Amelia and John Bolling and his family stayed for a time in Henry County, Virginia, and the rest went to South Carolina.  Only mention of Archibald is a land grant 1779 to a Archable (sic). (946)  Archibold Bolling was born to William and Amalie (Randolph) Bolling in Halifax County, Virginia, the part that later became Pittsylvania and still later Henry County, Virginia.  Archibald Boling was on a list of person renouncing Great Britain and swearing allegiance to the Commonwealth of Virginia at Henry County, Virginia. Also on that list were John Boling, Joseph Boling, Christopher Boling Sr. and Christopher Boling. (960) Henry County, Virginia, Tax List 1780, Archibald Bolling (830a,U1). See place index for others on that tax list. (1414)(1495) Archibald Bolling was listed as a taxpayer 1782-1787 in Henry County, Virginia.  He was listed as living along.  This Archibald is the one who went with Samuel Bowling (Fh610) to that part of North Carolina that became east Tennessee.  Samuel Bowling went on to Laurens County, South Carolina and the descendants of Samuel say that Archibald Bolling soon came to South Carolina too. (7) Archibald Bolling was listed as a taxpayer 1782 in Henry County, Virginia. (347) In 1790 census of South Carolina, Abel had himself, 1 boy over 16, 3 males under 16, his wife and 1 girl.  In 1800 there were only three boys still with their parents.  I believe the three boys were Robert born 1782 (Fh550), Henry born 1784 (perhaps Fh250), and Daniel born 1786.  In those 1790 and 1800 censues he was listed as Abel next household to Samuel.  Samuel died in 1808. (946) A Joseph Shores Price and William Dandridge bought 530 acres in Henry County, Virginia, on the north side of Marrowbone Creek on 20 Apr 1780 --- witnesses were Jane and Archibald Bolling (could be 830b or Fh050) and Thomas Lorton. (1414) Archibald Bolling and his wife Jane Bolling (could be 830b or Fh050) both witnessed land deed dated 20 April 1780 in Henry County, Virginia, for Joseph Shores Price. (824)

5U1 
830f   
William Bolling (830f, could be Fh908,U1) and William Bolling (UK) were on the Henry County, Virginia, Tax List 1780.   See place index for others on that tax list. (1414)(1495) William Bowling, along with Joseph and John Bowling, were in the Henry County, Virginia, militia in 1781. (22) William Bowling and Joseph Bowling were in Peter Hairston's Company of Henry County, Virginia, Militia on March 11, 1781.  (877)  William Bowling was on the 1787 census of Henry County, Virginia, with 2 horses, and 5 head of cattle.  (551) Henry County, Virginia, Deed Book 1, page 530, 09 Apr 1787 [inserted between pp. 530-31] "A poll taken of a section of Delegates at Henry County Courthouse this 9th of April 1787 for Abraham Penn, Esq." [included the following]: 

27. William Bolling (disputed) (830f,U1)

65. Joseph Bolling (678e,Fh454,I) or  (269d,N)

110. John Bolling (disputed) (830b,Fh415,U1) 

I believe that the John Bolin, Sr. (830b,Fh415,U1) of Sullivan County, Tennessee shown on the Pension Rolls of 1835 and who filed a claim on 21 Nov 1832 declaring that he enlisted "as a minute man from Henry County, Virginia, under Capt. Abraham Penn in 1780" is the same as can be found with Abraham Penn in the above record. The reason the several Bollings were disqualified was because they seem to have voted more than once -- they voted for both guys running for the same office. (1414) A poll taken in Henry County, Virginia, for Thomas Cooper, 9 Apr 1787 shows James Boldin (Fh270,N), James Edwards, William Bolling (830f,U1), John Bolling (Fh415,U1 or Fh418,N), Thomas Edwards and Augustine Thomas (Augustine Thomas was distantly related to Ursula Bell who married John Bolling (Fh367,N)).  (1414) William Bowlin paid taxes in Sullivan County, Tennessee, in 1797.  (9) William Bowlin was on a 1797 tax list of Sullivan County, Tennessee. (222) William Bolen in 1840 was listed as a Revolutionary Pensioner in Sullivan County, Tennessee. (8) William Bolen, age 83, in 1840 (i.e. bc1757) was listed as a Revolutionary Pensioner in Sullivan County, Tennessee. (1208) A William Bowling was a Revolutionary War soldier from Virginia.  He received a bounty land Warrant. (569)

5U1
830I
Rolfe Bolling was apparently the son of William and Amelia (Randolph) Bolling.  Apparently he had brothers Archibald, John, and Samuel.  They came to Henry County, Virginia from Halifax County, Virginia.  John, Archibald, and Samuel were in the Militia.  Their father William Bolling was killed in 1776.  Their mother Amelia and John Bolling and his family stayed for a time in Henry County, Virginia, and the rest went to South Carolina.  (946)

4 or 5 845.William 1789-1855/m1811 Martha Jane Jefferson Meeks (b1794) “He an Orphan" per source #279


A descendant of William Fh845 was Kit 13209. This matched 11/12 two kits in DNA Group 4 and three kits in DNA Group 5. Kit 13209 is a 11/12 match with others in Group 4.  He does match kit 23846 12/12 and he is in Group 5.  Kit 23846 matches the rest of Group 5 11/12. So, I guess it is a toss up as to whether he belongs in Group 4 or 5, since he matches both by 11/12 or better, which is the definition of a match.  


a c
Wyatt 1812-1866/7/m1841 Mary Anne Nelson Hill 1817-1877


a c
Margaret b1815/m1839 Reuben C. Coffee


a c
Martha Mary 1817->1867/m1835 Robert Mays c1817->1877


a c
Robert Anderson 1818-1895/m1850 Emmaline Parker Stratton


a c
Richard M. or P. 1820->1867/m1850 Elizabeth Susan C. Meeks


abc
John James or John L. 1822-1902/3/m1845 Lucy Jane Mitchell b1828


a c
William Orville 1824-1900/m1845 Catherine Elizabeth Harvie bc1829


abc
Egbert Thatcher 1828-1895/m1850 Nancy Jane Jones b1834


a c
George W. 1832-1881/m1854 Elizabeth Penton


a c
Edward Ellis 1834-1864/6--single


a
Children per sources #279 and #1007


b
Children per source #1026


c
Children per source #485

5L 865. 
William b1786 or 1791-1857/1/w ----- ----- 2/w m1813 Elizabeth Perdue or m1818 Betsy Purdue--His 
father was Jesse #345



William 1814-1883/m1843 Elizabeth Howard



Jesse Isaac/m Jane Scott



Jack



Anderson K.



Polly



Sarah



Ardelin



Elizabeth

5L  
Fh865 
William Bowling was no doubt a descendant of Jesse Bowling (Fh345).  William Bowling married ----- Perdue. William Bowling lived in Giles County, Virginia and Mercer County, Virginia (now West Virginia).  He had children: William, Jesse, Jack, Anderson K., Polly, Sarah, Ardelin and Elizabeth.  John Bowling who married 1829 Sallie Walker was no doubt the son of William Bowling. (322)  William Bowling was the son of Jessie (Fh345) and Sarah (Robinson) Bowling.  He married a Perdue, and settled in Mercer County, Virginia, (now West Virginia), near the present site of Athens.  He was a pioneer settler in that district.  John Bowling who married Sallie Walker was a brother of William Bowling. (359) William Boling was in the 1820 Census of Giles County, Virginia. (348) William Bowling married Betsy Purdue, 30 May 1818, Giles County, Virginia. (7) 

5L 894.
William dc1757/m      Ann  ----- 


Head of Family String L


Thomas/m       Agnes -----



Jesse 1759-1815/m1785 Susan or Sarah Robertson/Robinson (1769-1813)--See Family #345 

5L
Fh894
 
William Bolling of Cumberland County, Virginia, married Ann {Unknown} and they had a son named Thomas Bolling who married Agness [Unknown]. William Bolling died and Ann [Unknown] married Francis Amos/Amoss. (1414) We believe Jesse (Fh345,5L) was a brother to Thomas Bolling (894a) who married Agnes unknown.... both sons of William Bolling (Fh894) and Ann Unknown of Cumberland Co., VA.  Ann, the widow, married secondly to Francis Amos, a neighbor. (1414) William Bolling and John Witch had an indenture of bargain and sale recorded, 1754 in Cumberland County, Virginia.  (423) Dk 2 pg 162  22 Jun 1754 William Bolling, Cum. to John Witch (same) leases to the said John Witch all land William Bolling purchased of the sd John Witch, lying on the north side of the main road, bd by George Carrington and Benjamin Harrison, incl. house and plantation wherein the sd John Witch now dwells. to have & hold said messuage or tenement during the term of 99 years from thence next ensuing if the sd John Witch and Mary, his wife shall happen to live so long, yielding and paying therefore yearly unto the sd William Bolling, the rent of one ear of Indian corn at and upon January 1. ... sgd. William (X his mark) Bolling. 
Wit: Francis Amoss, George Daniel, Edward Daniel.  
Ackg by William Bolling 23 Sep 1754 and rec.
William Bolling had an inventory dated 1757 in Cumberland County, Virginia. (35) Cumberland County, Virginia, Deed Book 2. p. 160 22 Jun 1754 from John Witch of Cum. to William Bolling (Fh894) Cum, 30 L for 200 ac in Cumberland on the branches of Willise Crk, bd eastwardly by Benjamin Harrison, southwardly by Edward Daniel, westwardly by Absolam Jordan, and northwardly by George Carrington.  Sgd. John (W his mark) Witch. Wit: Francis Amoss, George Daniel, Edward Daniel. Rec: 23 Sep 1754. (488) 27 Jun 1754 William Bolling Cum. to John Witch of Cum., leases to John Witch, all that part of the tract of land by the said William Bolling purchased of the said John Witch, which lies on the north side of the main Road, bounded by George Carrington and Benjamin Harrison, including the house and plantation wherein the said John Witch now dwells.  To have and to hold, the said messuage or tenement, land and premises above granted, with the appurtenances, for and during the term of 99 years from thence next ensuing if the said John Witch and Mary, his wife, shall happen to live so long, yielding and paying therefore yearly unto the said William Bolling, the rent of one ear of Indian corn at and upon January 1, and if it shall happen that the yearly rent of one ear of Indian corn shall be behind and unpaid by the space of 21 days next after the day of payment on which the same ought to be paid, being lawfully demanded, and no distress can be made for the same, then and from thenceforth it shall and maybe lawful for the said William Bolling into the said lands or tenements hereby demised, to reenter, repossess, and enjoy, and the said John Witch agrees that he shall truly pay the yearly rent aforesaid.  Sgd. William (x his mark) Bolling. Wit: Francis Amoss, George Daniel, Edward Daniel.  Rec: 23 Sep 1754. (488) Cumberland County, Virginia, Wills 1749 – 1950. Devisor: 28 Mar 1757 Inventory and Appraisal. Wm Bolling  (Fh894) Estate       Bk 1 p. 129 (see below). P. 129 Wm Bolling - In obedience to an order of Cumberland Court dated 24 May 1756, We, being sworn, have appraised the estate of William Bolling.  Includes: 1 bed, bolster, a sheet, bedstead, and cord, 1 table, 1 narrow axe, 1 bed, 1 blanket, and bedstead, 3 shilling hoes, 1 fiddle.  Total: L 8.10.9.  Sgd. 12 Sep 1756, Henry Dillen, William (x his mark) Palmer, Wm. Dillen. Rec: 28 Mar 1757. (488)
5L 894a             Thomas Bowling had land 1777 in Cumberland County, Virginia. (216) Dk 5 pg 15  9 Nov 1771 Thomas Bolling eldest son & heir at Law of William Bolling (Fh894) late of Cum. dec'd & Agness his wife & Ann Amos late widow & relicit of Willliam Bolling and mother of Thomas of Cum. and Joseph Carrington third party, 65L for 200 acres conveyed to William Bolling by John Witch dated 22 Jun 1754 in records of the county court of Cum., situated on branches of Willises Creek adj. George Carrington, Carter Henry Harrison  Walter Buchanan dec' and Joseph Carrington.
sgd. Thomas (x his mark) Bolling,  Ann (x her mark) Amos 
Wit: William Cannon, Geo Carrington, Nath. Carrington, Thomas Tucker, John Bates. 9 Nov 1771 and rec Nov Crt 1771. (1414) Dk 5 pg 364-66   15 Sep 1774  Thomas Bolling heir at law of late William Bolling dec'd of Cum. Co. and Agness his wife, and Ann Amos late widow of sd William Bolling & mother of Thomas Bolling to Joseph Carrington 65L for 200 acres on branches of Willieses Creek in Cum. Co. adj George Carrington, Carter Henry Harrison and Joseph Carrington, conveyed to William Bolling by John Witch 22 Jun 1754. Sgd. Thomas (x his mark) Bolling LS, Agness (x her mark) Bolling LS Wit: John Woodson, James Gilliam, Jr, Geo. Carrington  Rec: 19 Jan 1775. (1414) Valentine Papers (Virginia), Vol. 1-4, 1864-1908, 
http://search.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/sse.dll?gskw=Bowling&ti=0&prox=1&submit=Search&db=ValentinePapers

Mosby Family, Cumberland County Virginia Records.
William Mosby & Jesse Mosby , of Cumberland Co. , deed to Arthur Scott of same Co. 102 acres in Cumberland Co. adj. Jno. Scott , Richard Minter & Thos. Bowling . Jan. 27, 1777 , Ibid, p. 452 (Also see source 118 & 313 & 398) The 1779  Petition of Littleton Parish of Cumberland County, Virginia. The original manuscript does indeed show both Thomas Boling (894a) and Jesse Boling (Fh345) in 1779 signing this petition. (1414) Thomas Bolling is listed as head of household (4 people) 1782 in Cumberland County, Virginia. (43)  Thomas Bowling was on the 1787 census of Cumberland County, Virginia, with 1 horse and 2 head of cattle. (551) Thomas Bowling was in the 1820 Census of Cumberland County, Virginia. (348) Cumberland County, Virginia, Deed Book 5. p. 15   9 Nov 1771 Thomas Bolling (894a) eldest son and heir at law of William Bolling late of Cumberland deceased and Agness his wife and Ann Amos late widow and relicit of William Bolling and mother of Thomas of Cumberland & Joseph Carrington third part 65 L for 200 ac conveyed to William Bolling by John Witch dated 22 Jun 1754 in records of the court of County (Cumberland) situated on branches of Willises Crk adj. George Carrington, Carter Henry Harrison Walter Buchanan deceased and Joseph Carrington.  Sgd. Thomas x his mark Bolling, Ann + her mark Amos, Wit: William Cannon, Geo Carrington, Nath. Carrington, Thomas Tucker, John Bates.  Rec: 9 Nov 1771. (488)Cumberland County, Virginia, p. 364-66   15 Sep 1774 Thomas Bolling (894a), heir at law of late William Bolling deceased of Cumberland and Agnes his wife 1st part, Ann Amos late widow of William Bolling & mother of Thomas Bolling to Joseph Carrington 65 L for 200 ac on branches of Willises Creek in Cumberland, adj. George Carrington, Carter Henry Harrison and Joseph Carrington conveyed to Wm Bolling by John Witch 22 Jun 1754. Sgd Thomas x his mark Bolling, Agness x her mark. (488) We believe Jesse (Fh345,5L) was a brother to Thomas Bolling (894a) who married Agnes unknown.... both sons of William Bolling (Fh894) and Ann Unknown of Cumberland Co., VA.  Ann, the widow, married secondly to Francis Amos, a neighbor. (1414) 

5F 904.
William d1790--Head of Family String F
A descendant kit 1920 tested into DNA 5


William d1795--apparently no isssue



James c1767-1843/1/w mc1794 Jennet Ferguson, 2/w mc1802 Lucretia Bell-See Family Group 



#300



Nancy

5F  
Fh904  
William Bolin Sr. died and William Bolin Jr. (904a) was granted Administration July 26, 1790, Cumberland County, North Carolina.  Bondsmen were John McNeill and John Campbell. (591) William Bolin (904a) names his brother James Bolin (Fh300) in a will dated 1794 in Cumberland County, North Carolina.  (7) 

5F  
904a  
William Bolin names his brother James Bolin (Fh300) in a will dated 1794 in Cumberland County, North Carolina. (7)(371)  I have a copy of the will.  It is witnessed by a Nancy Bolin but I have no idea who she is. (371) There is a tombstone in the Bolin section of the Buies Creek Cemetery that has a date 1795.  William may be the name on it.  If so I feel this is William Bolin brother of James Bolin (Fh300). (371)

5 917.
William bc1745-d>1820<1830/Ann ----- 1749-1853



John b>1770-<1780, d>1820--Could be Fh372



William b1775-1795, d>1820



Michael ?--Could be Fh4656



Nancy 1796-1882/Francis Wood (1793-1882)




*************



William b1822 (?, probably grandson)/mc1839 Cynthia Hall

A descendant kit 4608 tested into DNA 5
5
Fh917
William Bowling was on the 1810 tax list of Lee County, Virginia. (380) A descendant kit 4608 tested into DNA 5. William Bowlin was on the 1810 Lee County, Virginia, tax list with 2 white tithables and 3 horses.  A Michael Bowlin (UK) was on the same 1810 list. (946) 1810 Lee County, Virginia, Tax Lists (head of household/date taken/tithables/slaves over 12 years/horses/notes) William Bowlin, 15 Mar 1810, 2-0-3. (1468) William Boling was in the 1820 Census of Lee County, Virginia, on page 127.  (348) William Boling was on the 1820 Census of Lee County, Virginia, with 211110-00010.

2—male under 10

1—male 10 to under 16

1—male between 16 and 18

1—male 16 to under 26

1—male 26 to under 45

0—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775

0—female under 10

0—female 10 to under 16

0—female 16 to under 26

1—female 26 to under 45

0—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775


On the same list was John Boling 200010-00311.  (946)  Ann Boling (bc1749, Consort of William Bowlin, Fh917) is on the 1830 Census of Lee County, Virginia, age 70-80.  (946) They had daughter Nancy and probably sons William & younger John. From early censuses I think John was probably father of William Bowling born about 1822 Virginia, resided in  Lee County, Virginia, died before 1900 Virginia. (not found in census) That William Bowling married about 1840 Cynthia Hall, parents unknown, born about 1825 Virginia, died before 1900 Virginia. (945) Ann Bowling is probably the woman age 80-90 in the household of William Bowling in the 1840 Census of Lee County, Virginia. (946)  Ann Bowling is in the 1850 Census of Lee County, Virginia, as age 100.  She is in the household of John Bowling, age 25. (946)  The 1850 Census of Lee County, Virginia, has a John Bowlin, age 25.  Living in the same household with John Bowlin are Marth Bowlin, age 45, Mary Bowlin, age 60 and Ann Bowlin, age 100.  All of the above were born in Virginia. (897) I received information from the Holston Territory Genealogical Society:  Ann Bowling, age 104 years, 4 months, died 27 November 1853, consort of William Bowlin, Informant Frances Wood, sister-in-law.  (897) In Lee County, Virginia death records, I found the following:  Ann Bowlin, 104 y 4 m d 27 Nov 1853 born Lee Co. Va. consort of William Bowlin; Francis Wood, son-in-law informant. Nancy Wood, wife of Francis Wood, 86 y 7 m died 15 Sep 1882. (946) I copied this from Lee County, Virginia: Ann Bolin died November 27, 1853 age104 yrs 4 mo married William Bolin. Informant Francis Ward (sic) son-in-law. (382) William Bowling probably born in the 1740s, died in the 1820s (widow Ann head of household in 1830 census) married Ann ___ born 1749, died Nov 1853 Lee County, Virginia. (age 104) Children (sons not proved, may have been other children): William (b. ~1775-95, d. after 1830), John (b. ~1770-80, d. after 1820), Nancy (1796-1882) m. Francis Wood. (1414)
� March 1826 Circuit Court, Patrick County, Virginia, Court Order Book 3, 1822-1831, FHL film 33346


� Mortgage, John Boling to George McCutcheon 15 April 1818, (recorded April court 1818), Patrick Co., VA, Deed Book 5, pp. 43-44, FHL film 33339. The first part of the deed states the grantee is George W. Fulcher, but later in the deed the name is recorded as George McCutcheon, and George McCutcheon signed the deed.
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